CONVERSION OF STREETS FROM ONE-WAY TO TWO-WAY OPERATION

HE 336 054.L95 2000 v.2

No.

ł

Final Report Executive Summary

prepared for

Michigan Department of Transportation

prepared by

Richard W. Lyles Chessa D. Faulkner Ali Muazzam Syed

Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering Michigan State University

26 July 2000

CONVERSION OF STREETS FROM ONE-WAY TO TWO-WAY OPERATION

Final Report Executive Summary

prepared for

Michigan Department of Transportation

prepared by

Richard W. Lyles Chessa D. Faulkner Ali Muazzam Syed

Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering Michigan State University

26 July 2000

Technical Report Documentation Page

1. Report No.	2. Government Accession No.	3. Recipient's Catalog No.	
4. Title and Subtitle		5. Report Date	
Conversion of Streets from One-Way to Two-Way Operation		26 July 2000	
		6. Performing Organization Code	
7. Author(s)		8. Performing Organization Report No.	
Richard W. Lyles, Ch Muazzam Syed	essa D. Faulkner, and Ali		
9. Performing Organization Name and Address		10. Work Unit No.	
Department of Civil a	nd Environmental Engineering		
Michigan State Unive	rsity	11. Contract or Grant No.	
East Lansing, Michigan 48824-1226		MDOT-94-1521-Z11	
12. Sponsoring Agency Na	ame and Address	13. Type of Report and Period Covered	
Michigan Department of Transportation		Executive Summary	
425 West Ottawa Str	reet		
		14 Spansoring Agangy Code	

16. Abstract

The objectives of this study were to perform a traditional literature review and contact practicing traffic engineers in different jurisdictions to establish an understanding of the current "state of the practice" for converting one-way streets (typically one-way pairs) to two-way operation. Two of the most significant findings of this review are that 1) a successful conversion from one-way to two-way operations is highly dependent on a meaningful public involvement process (supported by straightforward technical studies); and 2) that articulated technical/engineering guidelines for such conversions (e.g., threshold volumes) do not seem to exist. The technical desirability of such conversions is highly dependent on very local conditions (e.g., street widths, adjacent land use) and the political viability is dependent on the local support for, or opposition to proposed conversions.

17. Key Words	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	18. Distribution Stateme	ent	
19. Security Classification (this report) Unclassified	20. Security Classification (this page) Unclassified	21. No. of Pages	22. Price	<u> </u>

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The authors wish to acknowledge the support for this research which came from the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT). They also wish to express their appreciation to the MDOT professional staff who provided data and other background materials for this project. Moreover, there were numerous undergraduate and graduate students in the Departments of Civil and Environmental Engineering at the Michigan State University and Michigan Technological University who provided great assistance in data collection in the field during the summer of 1998.

DISCLAIMER

This document is disseminated under the sponsorship of the Michigan Department of Transportation and the United States Department of Transportation in the interest of information exchange. The sponsors assume no liability for its contents or use thereof.

The contents of this report reflect the views of the author who is solely responsible for the facts and accuracy of the material presented. The contents do not necessarily reflect the official views of the sponsors.

The State of Michigan and the United States Government do not endorse products or manufacturers. Trademarks or manufacturers' names appear herein only because they are considered essential to the objectives of this document.

This report does not constitute a standard, specification, or regulation.

CONVERSION OF STREETS FROM ONE-WAY TO TWO-WAY OPERATION Final Report Executive Summary

Table of Contents

title publication form	i ii
acknowledgement and disclaimer	iii
table of contents	iv
Introduction	1
Project Scope	1
Methodology/Approach	2
Synthesis and Discussion	2
Principal Findings	3
Consideration of One-Way to Two-Way Street Operation Conversions	5
Public Involvement Process	5
Technical Evaluation Issues	6
Future Work	9

References

ref-1

CONVERSION OF STREETS FROM ONE-WAY TO TWO-WAY OPERATION

Final Report Executive Summary

INTRODUCTION

The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) is receiving inquiries from local jurisdictions and other groups regarding the application of traffic calming and other nontraditional techniques for dealing with traffic circulation/operations in cities and towns. One of these techniques is the conversion of one-way street operations to two-way traffic. Such conversions, or at least consideration of such actions, are being done with increasing frequency in Michigan and elsewhere.

In this context, MDOT is desirous of being able to determine when such conversions are acceptable or desired. Thus, a project was undertaken to: perform a traditional literature search and contact traffic engineers and different jurisdictions to establish an understanding of the current "state of the practice" for converting one-way streets (typically one-way pairs) to two-way operation.

PROJECT SCOPE

Given that the primary purpose of the project was to develop a state-of-the-practice report, it was also expected that outcomes associated with street conversions could be documented. It was not, however, proposed to do any original quantitative analysis. The documentation would include collecting information (to the extent possible) regarding the following outcomes:

- the traffic characteristics before and after conversion (e.g., traffic volumes, operating speeds);
- changes in crash frequencies and/or patterns (e.g., did crash frequency increase, did the type and/or severity of crashes change);
- motorist response to changes;
- guidelines for when conversions are indicated/contraindicated;

- whether conversions are considered "successful" and the criteria used to assess success; and
- costs of conversion.

METHODOLOGY/APPROACH

The traditional literature search was done using the Transportation Research Information System; more specifically, **TRIS Online**. TRIS is the most comprehensive bibliographic listing of published work in the transportation field. Secondary sources of information were identified through review of documents found as a result of the TRIS search.

While the published record was expected to be useful, it had also been expected that much of the recent experience in street conversions may not be published (e.g., traffic engineers working in the public sector are not often represented in the literature). Therefore, attempts were made to identify engineers, consulting firms, and jurisdictions that had experience with such conversions. This experience was documented through review of published reports and informal phone, mail, and e-mail interviews/surveys. Primary sources of individuals to be contacted included: personal contacts with consultants, MDOT identification of field personnel in Michigan, known practitioners active in traffic calming, a list of state-level (e.g., DOT) contacts that had been developed at MSU in the context of another traffic engineering-related project, and referrals from initial sources (e.g., traffic engineers in cities who were recommended by state DOT personnel).

The intent was that a synthesis of the experience represented in the literature and current practice would yield guidelines and suggestions for when (i.e., under what conditions) the conversion of one-way streets to two-way operation would be a reasonable action and when such conversions would be contraindicated.

SYNTHESIS AND DISCUSSION

The literature review and survey of practitioners provided less information that had originally been hoped but the consistency of information that was obtained from a variety of sources indicates that a more than adequate picture of the state of the art/practice with respect to

page 2 of 9

conversion from one-way to two-way operations has been obtained. The following paragraphs are addressed to the original objectives of the project and how they have been achieved.

Principal Findings

-4 -4

Two of the most significant findings of this review are that the single most important factor in a successful conversion from one-way to two-way operations is a meaningful public involvement process (supported by straightforward technical studies) and that articulated guidelines for such conversions (e.g., threshold volumes) do not seem to exist. Rather, as one engineer (Wood 2000) put it, a (straightforward) traffic study will tell you whether such conversions are technically feasible or not. Beyond that, opinion regarding whether one-way streets are a good idea or not runs the gamut from Burke (2000) "in virtually all [reasonable] circumstances, one-way streets should be removed" to Stemley (1998) "by changing to a two-way system, a large backward step will be taken which will result in a downtown that is less inviting than it is right now."

Beyond these two points, there is great variance in the results of planning and implementing conversions. For example, in largely residential areas where one-way streets are **not** serving high volumes (and two-way volumes could be easily handled), conversion of one-way streets back to two-way operation seems likely to be favored by residents and of little concern to whatever small number of through motorists are present. On the other hand, in established and congested downtown areas or on heavily used commuter routes where development over the years has been predicated on one-way operations, both technical and public acceptance issues are likely to be significantly more substantial.

With respect to more specific objectives of this project:

The traffic characteristics before and after conversion (e.g., traffic volumes, operating speeds) are completely dependent on local conditions. Depending on pre- and post-conversion traffic patterns, an even daily split in traffic volumes between the two streets of a one-way pair can be expected to shift dramatically—one street becomes the principal two-way route in to or through an area while the other experiences significantly less volume. (Although it can easily be imagined where there would be exceptions to this "rule.")
Operating speeds can be expected to decrease, assuming that there are not significant

geometric changes as part of the conversion. This assertion is based on the fact in most instances, conversion **to** one-way operation resulted in higher speeds—it stands to reason that conversion back to two-way will have the opposite effect. Indeed, lowering vehicle speeds is often perceived as an objective and positive benefit of converting to two-way operation. Finally, unless there are geometric changes, capacity and level of service will almost always decrease after a conversion to two-way. Indeed, if the post-conversion level of service is **not** unacceptable, it may well be that the conversion will face minimal opposition (at least from a traffic operations perspective).

- Changes in crash frequencies and/or patterns (e.g., did crash frequency increase, did the type and/or severity of crashes change) are a little less clear. The prevailing wisdom with the original conversions to one-way operation was that there would be significantly fewer crashes (and crash rates) as a result of conversion. This was the result of, for example, fewer conflict points at intersections. Pedestrian safety was also generally perceived to be enhanced with one-way operation because of such things as making the street-crossing maneuver easier to undertake (e.g., the pedestrian only has to be concerned with traffic from one direction at intersections) and the ability to provide mid-block crosswalks. Some recent studies have, however, found that one-way operations are not necessarily inherently safer than two-way operations. Moreover, overall increases in crash frequencies have not been regularly reported. It would seem that the improvement or degradation of general (and specifically pedestrian) safety would be largely dependent on a large number of factors (e.g., conflicting volumes, adjacent land use, whether parking is/was allowed) of which one- versus two-way traffic operation would be only one—these vary significantly on a case-by-case basis.
- Motorist response to changes is often mentioned in the literature on conversions both to and from one-way operations. This typically seems to be an "up front" issue which apparently does not materialize as a significant issue later on (or, at least, has not been fully investigated later). By and large, the implication of most of the studies/experiences seems to be that people adapt reasonably quickly to the changes (whichever way they go).
- Guidelines for when conversions are indicated/contraindicated do not seem to exist in any meaningful way. This was clear from the survey that was undertaken—very few (two) indicated that any sort of guideline existed, and they were never provided. On the other hand, it was fairly clear from larger-scale studies (e.g., in Portland, Oregon) that a standard multi-objective evaluation process was required when the proposed conversion projects were large or expected to be controversial. It should be noted that larger-scale conversions are more likely to involve state-numbered routes and, thus, require more systematic and comprehensive study. Examples were provided earlier in the body of the report and in an appendix of the complete report. This is also discussed in more detail later.
- Whether conversions are considered "successful" appears to be almost exclusively dependent on whether concerned citizens, businesspeople, and/or engineers think they are or not. At the same time, the trend to conversion back to two-way operation is fairly recent and there does not appear to be much in the way of long-term evaluation. If such evaluations are being done, they are not being widely reported. In any event, since conversions are being done in the larger context of traffic calming and executing downtown business enhancement strategies, it will be quite difficult to isolate the effect of the conversions—when many

variables are changed, it is quite difficult to attribute changes (e.g., in crash frequencies or rates) to changes in only one of those variables.

• Similar to other points above, the costs of conversion varies substantially and are completely dependent on the scale of the conversion implementation. For example, if the one-way pair is through a largely residential area with little or no through traffic and carrying very low traffic volumes, a conversion could be accomplished with some minor changes in traffic control devices. On the other hand, a conversion through a congested area may involve substantial changes in signalization (including new and/or improved/updated signals) and geometric changes.

Consideration of One-Way to Two-Way Street Operation Conversions

Notwithstanding the lack of published guidelines on one-way to two-way conversions, the review of the literature does yield suggestions for the variables and issues that should be considered when contemplating them. Recommendations are given below for the two overarching aspects of one-to-two-way conversions: the public involvement process; and the scope of the technical considerations.

Public Involvement Process

The following checklist is offered as a beginning point for the development of a public involvement process for operations conversions. The checklist is based on the review of the literature and the results of the practitioner survey. Of primary concern is the inclusion of different interest groups.

- ✓ Define the "impact area," the spatial extent of the corridor where the impacts will be of most concern when the conversion to two-way operation is implemented.
- ✓ Identify organized groups, jurisdiction-based bodies, and others who have an interest in the impact area. These would include formal (e.g., chamber of commerce) and informal groups of businesspeople in the area, neighborhood associations, special-interest groups (e.g., an organized group of bicyclists), planning and zoning commissions, citizen advisory groups (e.g., traffic advisory commissions, historical preservation groups), emergency services providers (e.g., police, fire, emergency medical service providers), schools, delivery services (e.g., UPS), city councilpersons, the media, and others. Using the impact area definition, all individual citizens and affected businesses should also be identified. Care should be taken to incorporate "special users" in the process (e.g., residents of elderly housing facilities in the corridor, schools).

✓ Hold public information meetings early in the conversion planning process. This should be done when the conversion is first considered—the planning and implementation process must

be inclusive rather than presented as a finished, polished proposal. Meetings should also be held with any identified groups—the implementation agency must be willing to go **to** meetings of potentially interested groups and individuals rather than expecting that these people will simply show up at general public information meetings.

- ✓ Disseminate information regarding all aspects of the conversion planning and implementation to the public and all identified interested groups via meetings, informational flyers, and the media. The type of information to be disseminated includes who is responsible for identifying the conversion for consideration, a clear presentation of all pertinent information about the conversion (both "good news" and bad), and details about when/how implementation would occur. To the extent possible, supporters and nonsupporters of the conversion should be present at various presentation. The state agency should not appear to be the only active evaluator in the process.
- ✓ Once the decision to implement the conversion is made, it should be clearly articulated why the decision was made. For example, what were the deciding factors.

Technical Evaluation Issues

÷,

22

A preliminary list of the types of things to be covered in the technical evaluation is given below. Depending on the scale, type, and location of the proposed conversion, the list may be considerably shortened (or even expanded). Not all issues will have as much saliency as others in all situations. All analysis should be done for existing conditions and for all defined alternatives (e.g., level-of-service calculations should be done for existing conditions and all alternatives). This list contains the issues/actions identified in the literature review (including items listed in the ITE's *Traffic Engineering Handbook*—see appendix 5 of the full report for additional details) and the state of the practice survey.

overall planning and identification of alternatives

- ✓ define existing conditions
- ✓ define all conversion options to be considered (e.g., are there different limits that could be considered for "converted" segment or is it "all or nothing")
- ✓ identify role of streets in regional transportation network (e.g., is the existing one-way pair of local or regional significance)
- \checkmark estimate current and future trip lengths that might be affected by conversion
- ✓ consistency of proposed conversions with neighborhood, city, and regional planning goals and objectives

traffic operations

✓ street and intersection capacities before and after conversion

- \checkmark street and intersection levels of service before and after conversion
- ✓ geometric adequacy of the affected streets (e.g., pavement width)
- ✓ determine if minimally acceptable levels of service are achieved by all alternatives
- \checkmark delay time on and off converted streets
- \checkmark diversions to/from local system as a result of conversion
- \checkmark estimate diversions to/from other through streets in corridor
- ✓ determine if additional lanes (e.g., through corridor, turning lanes at intersections) required for conversion
- ✓ estimate decrease in (or under-utilization of) lanes on less heavily traveled streets (after conversion)
- \checkmark impacts on signal progression
- ✓ changes in left-turn conflicts
- ✓ increase/decrease in crash frequencies (overall and for specific crash types)
- ✓ increase/decrease in on-street parking
- ✓ determine the level of accommodation of through truck and local delivery
- ✓ undertake traffic control device inventories and required changes (including placement of signs, markings, and signals) for different alternatives
- ✓ determine the adequacy of sight distances for new two-way operation (assuming that existing streets had been designed for one-way operation)
- ✓ parking requirements

bicycle and pedestrian operations

- ✓ determine if bicycle lanes can be accommodated
- ✓ vehicle/bicycle interactions
- ✓ determine the location of major pedestrian generators and crossings
- ✓ changes in pedestrian environment (e.g., pedestrian-friendly geometry)
- ✓ pedestrian safety (e.g., adequate intersection and mid-block crossings for expected demand)
- ✓ pedestrian interaction with street traffic
- ✓ enhanced pedestrian signals

transit operations

- \checkmark transit route accommodation
- ✓ increased/decreased walking distances to transit stops (e.g., from major attractors)
- \checkmark transit interaction with other vehicles (e.g., stop location)
- ✓ enhancement of transit usage (e.g., better access)

neighborhood access

- ✓ neighborhood access improved or degraded (e.g., left turns in to and out of residential neighborhoods)
- ✓ increased/decreased traffic diversion into neighborhoods
- ✓ elimination of through traffic on neighborhood streets
- ✓ increased traffic on some residential streets serving through traffic

commercial/business issues

- ✓ improved access to adjacent properties (primarily businesses)
- ✓ less confusion for motorists, especially visitors
- ✓ reduced travel distance to destination
- ✓ enhancement or degradation of downtown or commercial district
- ✓ access to major generators (e.g., large employers, community centers, parking structures)

other issues/considerations

- \checkmark cost of conversion
- \checkmark public opinion

동국

- ✓ origination of support (or non-support)
- ✓ environmental impacts (e.g., increased/decreased air pollution due to conversion)
- ✓ timing and duration of implementation

This list of issues is not necessarily comprehensive nor would each item necessarily be relevant for every study. One of the first issues for the public involvement/planning process to consider is to identify which issues should be considered for any specific conversion proposal. In addition, to the extent possible, acceptable thresholds (for those variables that lend themselves to such measurements) should be discussed and established **before** technical analyses are done and results presented. For example, it should be established that level of service C is acceptable for an intersection prior to doing the analysis necessary to compute the level of service.

One of the goals for this project was to establish guidelines for when conversions from oneway to two-way operations might be advisable or acceptable. However, it is clear from the literature review and the survey responses that a single set of criteria is elusive. While traffic operation concerns can be the deciding factor in conversions (and especially if the operationsoriented outcomes are very bad), the ultimate impact of a conversion is extremely case-specific. Degradation in motorist delay, for example, is dependent on everything from simple traffic volumes to be accommodated to width of the streets to cross-street (and turning) volumes—what works in one area may result in an operations disaster elsewhere.

At the same time, the types of analyses that are implied in the "issues list" presented above are straightforward and are the staples of good traffic engineering practice. But, it is equally clear that not all of the important outcomes are neatly quantified or equally valued by all participants in the process. For example, in general, traffic engineers would probably favor alternatives that resulted in higher vehicle speeds (and lower delay) while it seems clear that others may view reasonably decreased (more pedestrian friendly) speeds in a more positive light. So, while it is important to do "good engineering" with respect to the outcomes of proposed conversions, it is as important to have an effective public involvement process where conflicting goals and objectives can be articulated.

FUTURE WORK

It is clear from the review of the literature and survey of practitioners that converting one-way pairs of streets back to two-way operations is a current fad of sorts. It is often discussed in the context of other projects consistent with traffic calming and generally improving downtowns. It is characteristic of the lack of knowledge about what makes downtowns and neighborhoods "work" that the effects of different traffic operations changes on business are largely unknown. It is similarly largely a matter of conjecture on even what the traffic operations impacts are when the one- to two-way conversions are implemented. There have been and are a fairly large number of conversions being considered in Michigan. The list includes Adrian, Jackson, Kalamazoo, Lansing, Mt. Pleasant, and Battle Creek. While not all of these conversions have (or will) included state trunklines, it seems appropriate that the impacts of some of these conversions on traffic operations should be evaluated in more depth. More ambitious work could also examine the relationship between these conversions and business/downtown development patterns.

REFERENCES

(references used in Executive Summary are shown with *)

Brown, Steven J., and Steve Fitzsimons. *Calming the Community (Traffic Calming in Downtown Sacramento)*, Institute of Transportation Engineers, 67th Annual Meeting, 1997.

Burch, J.S., Report of Committee on Traffic Regulations in Municipalities: One-Way Streets, Highway Research Board Proceedings, Highway Research Board, Washington, DC, 1938.

* Burke, Barney (unknown technical staff position in Mountain View, California). Personal email/phone correspondence April/May 2000.

Canning, W.S. and M.O. Eldridge, *Report of Committee on Traffic Regulations in Municipalities: One-Way Streets*, Highway Research Board Proceedings, Highway Research Board, Washington, DC, 1937.

Chamber of Commerce of the United States. One Way Business Streets, July 1954.

City of Lansing. *Executive Summary*, Transportation and Parking Office, City of Lansing, Lansing, Michigan. 1999.

City of Portland (Office of Transportation). Broadway-Weidler Corridor Plan—Technical Memorandum, Portland, Oregon 1996.

City of Portland (Office of Transportation). Belmont-Morrison Project (Report & Recommendations), Portland, Oregon. February, 2000.

Dorroh, Robert F., III, and Robert A. Kochevar. *One-Way Conversions for Calming Denver's Streets*, Resource Papers for the 1996 ITE International Conference, Institute of Transportation Engineers, p 109-114.

Ellis, Duane (engineer with City of Mt. Pleasant, Michigan). Personal e-mail/phone correspondence April/May 2000.

Enustun, N., Study of the Operational Aspects of One-Way and Two-Way Streets, Michigan Department of State Highways, Lansing, Michigan. January, 1969.

Folks, Thomas P., Javad Mirabdal, and Bond M. Yee. Sansome Street Contraflow Transit Lane: A Public Participation Success Story, ITE Journal, Institue of Transportation Engineers, p34-36, August 1998.

Forbes, Gerald. Vital Signs: Circulation in the Heart of the City—An Overview of Downtown Traffic, ITE Journal, Institue of Transportation Engineers, p26-29, August 1998.

Gattis, J.L. and Vergil G. Stover. *Planning Decisions and Public Attitudes About Roadway Operation*, Transportation Research Record 1237, Transportation Research Board, National Academy of Sciences, Washington, DC. 1989.

Hart, Jere. Converting Back to Two-Way Streets in Downtown Lubbock. ITE Journal, Institue of Transportation Engineers, p38, 45-46, August 1998.

Hocherman, I., A.S. Hakkert, and J. Bar-Ziv. *Safety of One-Way Urban Streets*, Transportation Research Record 1270, Transportation Research Board, National Academy of Sciences, Washington, DC. 1990.

Homburger, Wolfgang S., Elizabeth A. Deakin, Peter C. Bosselmann, Daniel T. Smith Jr., and Bert Beukers. *Residential Street Design and Traffic Control*, ITE and Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, NJ, 1989.

Jossi, Frank. One-Way Downtown Streets Move in Two Directions, Planning News, Chicago, Illinois, June 1998.

Lewis, Ray (engineer with West Virginia DOT). Personal e-mail/phone correspondence April/May 2000.

Lyles, Richard W., Anecdotal personal experience as Deputy Director of Planning, Urban Redevelopment Authority of Pittsburgh, 1967-73. East Lansing, Michigan, 2000

McShane, William R., Roger P. Roess, and Elena S. Prassas. *Traffic Engineering*, 2nd Edition, Prentice Hall, Upper Saddle River, New Jersey, 1998.

Pheres, Max (engineer with City of Battle Creek, Michigan). Personal e-mail/phone correspondence April/May 2000.

Pline, James L. (editor). *Traffic Engineering Handbook, 4th Edition*, Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, 1992.

Roth, Leland M., *A Concise History of American Architecture*, New York: Harper and Row, Publishers, Inc. 1979.

Smith, Bud (traffic engineer for Jackson, Michigan). Personal e-mail/phone correspondence dated 2 November 1999.

Smith, Craig (engineer with City San Luis Obispo, California). Personal e-mail/phone correspondence April/May 2000.

* Stemley, John J. One-Way Streets Provide Superior Safety and Convenience, ITE Journal, Institue of Transportation Engineers, p47-50, August 1998.

Temple, John F., *Peak-Period One-Way Operation of an Urban Expressway*, Transportation Research Record 906, Transportation Research Board, National Academy of Sciences, Washington, DC. 1983.

* Wood, Richard (engineer with Oregon DOT). Personal e-mail/phone correspondence April/May 2000.

CONVERSION OF STREETS FROM ONE-WAY TO TWO-WAY OPERATION

HE 336 054.L95 2000 v.1

•

:

Final Report

prepared for

Michigan Department of Transportation

prepared by

Richard W. Lyles Chessa D. Faulkner Ali Muazzam Syed

Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering Michigan State University

26 July 2000

CONVERSION OF STREETS FROM ONE-WAY TO TWO-WAY OPERATION

 $\left\{ \begin{array}{l} \sum\limits_{i=1}^{n} \sum\limits_{j=1}^{n} \sum\limits_{j=1}^{n} \sum\limits_{i=1}^{n} \sum\limits_{j=1}^{n} \sum\limits_{i=1}^{n} \sum\limits_{j=1}^{n} \sum \sum\limits_{j=1}^{n} \sum\limits_{j=$

} - -{. . . } . . .

Ĺ

Final Report

prepared for

Michigan Department of Transportation

prepared by

Richard W. Lyles Chessa D. Faulkner Ali Muazzam Syed

Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering Michigan State University

26 July 2000

Technical Report Documentation Page

1. Report No.	2. Government Accession No.	3. Recipient's Catalog No.	
4. Title and Subtitle		5. Report Date	
Conversion of Streets from One-Way to Two-Way Operation		26 July 2000	
		6. Performing Organization Code	
7. Author(s)		8. Performing Organization Report No.	
Richard W. Lyles, Chessa D. Faulkner, and Ali Muazzam Sved			
9. Performing Organiza	ion Name and Address	10. Work Unit No.	
Department of Civil	and Environmental Engineering		
Michigan State Univ	/ersity	11. Contract or Grant No.	
East Lansing, Michigan 48824-1226		MDOT-94-1521-Z11	
12. Sponsoring Agency	Name and Address	13. Type of Report and Period Covered	
Michigan Department of Transportation 425 West Ottawa Street		Final Report	
Lansing, Michigan 48993		14. Sponsoring Agency Code	
15. Supplementary Note	<u> </u>		
16. Abstract			

in different jurisdictions to establish an understanding of the current "state of the practice" for converting one-way streets (typically one-way pairs) to two-way operation. Two of the most significant findings of this review are that 1) a successful conversion from one-way to two-way operations is highly dependent on a meaningful public involvement process (supported by straightforward technical studies); and 2) that articulated technical/engineering guidelines for such conversions (e.g., threshold volumes) do not seem to exist. The technical desirability of such conversions is highly dependent on very local conditions (e.g., street widths, adjacent land use) and the political viability is dependent on the local support for, or opposition to proposed conversions.

17. Key Words		18. Distribution Statement		
19.	Security Classification (this report) Unclassified	20. Security Classification (this page) Unclassified	21. No. of Pages 97	22. Price

page ii

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The authors wish to acknowledge the support for this research which came from the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT). They also wish to express their appreciation to the MDOT professional staff who provided data and other background materials for this project. Moreover, there were numerous undergraduate and graduate students in the Departments of Civil and Environmental Engineering at the Michigan State University and Michigan Technological University who provided great assistance in data collection in the field during the summer of 1998.

DISCLAIMER

This document is disseminated under the sponsorship of the Michigan Department of Transportation and the United States Department of Transportation in the interest of information exchange. The sponsors assume no liability for its contents or use thereof.

The contents of this report reflect the views of the author who is solely responsible for the facts and accuracy of the material presented. The contents do not necessarily reflect the official views of the sponsors.

The State of Michigan and the United States Government do not endorse products or manufacturers. Trademarks or manufacturers' names appear herein only because they are considered essential to the objectives of this document.

This report does not constitute a standard, specification, or regulation.

page iii

CONVERSION OF STREETS FROM ONE-WAY TO TWO-WAY OPERATION Final Report

Table of Contents

	page
title	i
publication form	ii
acknowledgement and disclaimer	iii
table of contents	iv
list of tables and figures	v
Introduction	1
Project Scope	1
Methodology/Approach	2
Literature Review	3
Traffic Calming	3
One-Way Street Operations and Two-Way to One-Way Conversions	4
One-Way to Two-Way Conversions	7
Practitioner Survey	18
Synthesis and Discussion	21
Principal Findings	22
Consideration of One-Way to Two-Way Street Operation Conversions	24
Public Involvement Process	24
Technical Evaluation Issues	25
Future Work	28
References	ref-1
Appendix 1: TRIS Citations for "Traffic Calming"	1-1
Appendix 2: TRIS Citations for "One-Way Streets"	2-1
Appendix 3: TRIS Citations for "One-Way/Two-Way Conversions"	3-1
Appendix 4: Alternatives Evaluation Summary Matrix	4-1
Appendix 5: Excerpts from ITE's Traffic Engineering Handbook	5-1
Appendix 6: List of Contacts and Response Status	6-1
Appendix 7: Practitioner E-Mail Survey Instrument	7-1
Appendix 8: Summary of Responses to E-Mail Survey	8-1

page



10

and the second

CONVERSION OF STREETS FROM ONE-WAY TO TWO-WAY OPERATION

Final Report

INTRODUCTION

The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) is receiving inquiries from local jurisdictions and other groups regarding the application of traffic calming and other nontraditional techniques for dealing with traffic circulation/operations in cities and towns. One of these techniques is the conversion of one-way street operations to two-way traffic. Such conversions, or at least consideration of such actions, are being done with increasing frequency in Michigan and elsewhere. This is somewhat in opposition to long-standing traffic engineering approaches which tend to favor one-way operation when increased flow must be accommodated with lower travel delays. There may be safety concerns as well.

In this context, MDOT is desirous of being able to determine when such conversions are acceptable or desired. Thus, a project was undertaken to: perform a traditional literature search and contact traffic engineers and different jurisdictions to establish an understanding of the current "state of the practice" for converting one-way streets (typically one-way pairs) to two-way operation.

PROJECT SCOPE

Given that the primary purpose of the project was to develop a state-of-the-practice report, it was also expected that outcomes associated with street conversions could be documented. It was not, however, proposed to do any original quantitative analysis. The documentation would include collecting information (to the extent possible) regarding the following outcomes:

- the traffic characteristics before and after conversion (e.g., traffic volumes, operating speeds);
- changes in crash frequencies and/or patterns (e.g., did crash frequency increase, did the type and/or severity of crashes change);

- motorist response to changes;
- guidelines for when conversions are indicated/contraindicated;
- whether conversions are considered "successful" and the criteria used to assess success; and

1

costs of conversion.

The deliverables for the project include:

- a final report documenting the literature review and state-of-the-practice assessment;
- an annotated bibliography;
- a list of individuals, institutions, and jurisdictions (and contact information) that have undertaken conversions; and
- (if they can be supported by the literature and state of the practice) guidelines that MDOT could use for determining whether conversions are appropriate.

METHODOLOGY/APPROACH

The traditional literature search was done using the Transportation Research Information System; more specifically, **TRIS Online**. TRIS is the most comprehensive bibliographic listing of published work in the transportation field. **TRIS Online** is funded by the sponsors of the Transportation Research Board (TRB) and is hosted by the National Transportation Library through an agreement between the Bureau of Transportation Statistics and TRB. Secondary sources of information were identified through review of documents found as a result of the TRIS search. TRIS entries include articles from such sources as TRB's *Transportation Research Record* series, the American Society of Civil Engineers' *Journal of Transportation Engineering*, the Institute of Transportation Engineers' *ITE Journal*, and reports from various federal and state agencies, among others.

While the published record was expected to be useful, it had also been expected that much of the recent experience in street conversions may not be published (e.g., traffic engineers working in the public sector are not often represented in the literature). Therefore, attempts were made to identify engineers, consulting firms, and jurisdictions that had experience with such conversions. This experience was documented through review of published reports and informal phone, mail, and e-mail interviews/surveys. Primary sources of individuals to be contacted included: personal contacts with consultants, MDOT identification of field personnel in Michigan, known practitioners active in traffic calming, a list of state-level (e.g., DOT) contacts that had been developed at MSU in the context of another traffic engineering-related project, and referrals from initial sources (e.g., traffic engineers in cities who were recommended by state DOT personnel).

The intent was that a synthesis of the experience represented in the literature and current practice would yield guidelines and suggestions for when (i.e., under what conditions) the conversion of one-way streets to two-way operation would be a reasonable action and when such conversions would be contraindicated.

LITERATURE REVIEW

The traditional literature review produced mixed results. A TRIS Online search on 1) traffic calming yielded over 200 citations, 2) searching on one-way streets yielded just over 100, and 3) the) even more restrictive criterion of searching on one-way/two-way conversions yielded only seven (7). (The listings from the TRIS searches showing title, the journal/source reference, authors, and approximate date are shown in appendices 1, 2, and 3 respectively.) Not unexpectedly, not all of these citations are of use for the current project.

Traffic Calming

Many of the traffic calming citations refer to such things as mid-block speed control devices and specific residential neighborhood traffic concerns. Interestingly, all of the traffic calming citations date from the very late 1980s with the vast majority far more recent than that. This is indicative of the growing interest in these techniques. However, it should be noted that the implication that traffic calming is a relatively recent phenomenon is very misleading. Many socalled traffic calming techniques date back far earlier than these citations, albeit with different names. For example, separation of pedestrian and traffic movement, elimination of through

traffic from residential areas, and the like were key components of the plans for Radburn (a "garden city" in New Jersey), Chatham Village (a planned unit development in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania), and the so-called Greenbelt towns (e.g., in Wisconsin and Maryland). The planning, design, and implementation of all of these date to the 1920s and 30s (these developments are well documented in any number of references, see, e.g., Roth 1979). Moreover, the philosophical underpinning of these early examples dates back even further, to the late 1800s, and are found in classical city planning literature. Likewise, similar "traffic calming" techniques such as throttling down streets at intersections on collector/arterials, one-way loops for shopping districts, and pedestrian and transit malls were all considered and/or implemented as part of major urban renewal projects in the 1960s and 70s in Pittsburgh (Pennsylvania), St. Paul (Minnesota), and elsewhere (Lyles 2000). The point is that while traffic calming is often labeled as a "new" approach, its fundamental tenets effectively predate motorized vehicular traffic and modern congestion/operations problems. Typically, early (e.g., Pittsburgh in the late 1960s) debates about the use of various techniques pitted architects and city/urban planners against civil and traffic/transportation engineers. The former typically wanted more small-scale so-called walkable or pedestrian-friendly environments while the latter were more concerned about maintaining traffic flow and minimizing delay. Typically, both sides argued that their solutions were "safer." These same issues are being debated today although more traffic/transportation engineers appear to be open to trying traffic calming techniques. Much of the recent literature actually under the rubric of traffic calming deals with the general notion of calming traffic versus enhancing flow and not necessarily with the specifics of "what happened" in terms of measurable outcomes when various traffic calming applications were implemented. **One-Way Street Operations and Two-Way to One-Way Conversions**

By contrast to the traffic calming literature, the search on one-way street operation yielded citations going back as far as the 1930s. Much of the "research" is, however, anecdotal and

many conversions, both to and from one-way operation, are likely not reported in the literature as such projects do not often lead to publishable "research results" *per se*. This point notwithstanding, a considerable portion of the material that follows is from practitioners reporting on actual conversions from one-way to two-way operations.

The more specific issue of converting from one-way (back) to two-way street operations is a reversal of a long-standing traffic engineering approach to easing traffic congestion and enhancing traffic flow. Among the earlier references on one-way streets, Canning and Eldridge (1937) and Burch (1938) indicate that one-way streets can be implemented (on an appropriate existing network) virtually without cost, and that they decrease congestion, increase running speed, eliminate certain kinds of crashes (e.g., head-on collisions), are easier to drive on (driver attention needs are decreased through the elimination of the need to consider/monitor oncoming traffic), and signal progression is easier to attain. On the negative side, sometimes travel distances are increased (depending on destination location on the "other" street in the pair) and some kinds of crashes may be increased—e.g., pedestrians have to cross more lanes of traffic and potentially more intersections. Finally, there may be some driver confusion when different parts of the same street operate in different modes (i.e., one segment is two-way, another is one-way).

More recently, a two-to-one-way conversion in Michigan was reported on by Enustun (1969) and included some fairly specific results for trunkline two-way-to-one-way pair conversions in Kalamazoo and Lansing. The average speed increased from 18.1 to 23.5 mph in Kalamazoo and from 25.3 to 28.2 in Lansing. There was some indication that rush-hour volumes also increased—the one-way arterials presumably attracting traffic from other local streets. Travel distances (apparently derived in part from an analysis of volumes) did not appear to have increased—providing at least anecdotal evidence that one of the assumed negative aspects of such conversions was not always realized. The safety-related results were mixed with Kalamazoo experiencing an overall decrease in crashes while Lansing experienced an overall

increase. For both cities, there were "considerable" reductions in rear-end and mid-block crashes and some increase in pedestrian involvement. No information was provided regarding crash severity although it seems possible that with the increase in speed, that severity may have increased as well. $\tilde{f}(0)$

An experiment in Jacksonville, Florida, where a four-lane, two-way bridge (on a larger 2.8 mile section of highway) was converted to one-way operation during peak hours, was reported on by Temple (1983). While not a conversion to a one-way pair *per se*, this experiment (which was later continued) was controlled and monitored reasonably closely. Results included a virtual doubling of capacity in one direction, a reduction in stopped delay at a downstream toll plaza by 78%, and an increase in average running speed of 56%. Travelers in the non-peak direction (who could not use the facility during the peak hour) were forced to use alternative routes. Again, while this action is not consistent with the exact type of conversions of concern here, the results are generally consistent with those experienced elsewhere.

In another related study of two-way to one-way operation, Gattis and Stover (1989) undertook a survey to ascertain citizen perceptions with regard to changing Texas freeway frontage roads from two-way to one-way operation. In Texas cities, access to and from freeways and land uses adjacent to the freeways is often provided by frontage roads. In congested or high-volume areas, the frontage roads are typically one-way, while in less congested/low-volume areas, frontage roads are two-way. As volume/congestion increases, the frontage roads are sometimes changed from two-way to one-way operation. While freeway frontage roads are clearly different than urban arterials, the response of the citizens to such changes is still interesting with respect to perceived impacts. Responses of citizens were also compared to those of an expert advisory panel. In general a slight majority of the respondents favored one-way operation (compared to 92% of the advisory panel) although approximately 90% of the respondents thought adjacent business (relatively far from a cross-over) would be hurt (versus ~60% of the advisory panel). Only ~3% of the citizens thought two-way operation was safer (versus 8% of the advisory panel) while ~55% thought capacities would increase (versus 83% of the advisory panel). As noted, while freeway frontage roads are significantly different from trunklines operating through cities, the citizen concerns seem (intuitively) to be similar—safety is perceived to be much better while capacity (and presumably delay) is perceived to be somewhat improved while some business may suffer.

Hocherman et al. (1990) examined the safety aspects of one-way versus two-way streets in more detail. In their literature review, the authors note that prior research has shown that, generally, the two-way to one-way conversion results in an increase in travel speed and a decrease in the number of stops and total travel time. In addition, volumes and trip lengths are increased. One-way streets also have fewer points of potential conflict at intersections. They also report that some studies have shown a crash decrease of 20-30% with mid-block crashes being reduced by a greater amount. The safety studies have, however, typically been conducted in central business districts (CBDs) and/or on arterial streets. In the actual study done by the authors (in Jerusalem), crash rates were examined and disaggregated by type of roadway and location and were not restricted to CBD areas or arterials-rather all types of streets were studied. For non-CBD locations, one-way streets resulted in higher crash rates than two-way streets for all street types. The results for CBD streets were inconclusive because of small sample size. The higher rates could not be explained by differences in pavement width, free speed, or pedestrian volumes. The authors suggest that while one-way operation may increase safety in crowded, high-volume areas such as CBDs (based on earlier research), this may not be the case in other, more residential areas where one-way operation may be contraindicated.

One-Way to Two-Way Conversions

More to the point of the current work, in recent years there has been a movement to convert one-way streets (and one-way pairs, sometimes called couplets) back to two-way operation. Indeed, most of the pre-1990 sources are about conversion TO one-way operation. By contrast most of the post-1990 sources are about conversion FROM one-way operation. The latter has generally been done in the name of traffic calming. One example of this trend has occurred in Denver where apparently long-standing (from the late 1940s and early 50s) one-way streets were converted back to two-way operation (Dorroh and Kochevar 1996). In Denver, they note that one-way operation increases capacity 20-50% as many turning conflicts are eliminated which, in turn, also reduces crash potential. However, many of these relatively long streets (in Denver), which were used to disperse CBD-oriented traffic to the suburbs, went through residential neighborhoods. At least some of the citizens residing in these neighborhoods had sought (since the mid-1970s) to have these facilities converted to two-way operations. Studies in the 1970s, which focused primarily on traffic operations issues, apparently indicated that the congestion that would result from the conversion was untenable, and the streets were not converted. In the earlyto-mid 1980s, with a shift in the political power structure with more attention being paid to neighborhood concerns, conversion was again considered with the result that several one-way pairs were converted back to two-way operation. The reactions were mixed. One pair which handled 7,500 and 7,000 vehicles per day (largely directional flows) before conversion handled 600 and 11,600 after conversion. One street of the pair was designated as a local street while the other was designated as an arterial-the arterial street now carried both AM and PM peak traffic rather than just one peak. Predictably, those living on the street with the higher volumes were less favorable than those whose street was now "local." Other conversions were more or less successful depending on a variety of factors: some conversions were very successful because the pair did not carry extensive traffic and there were no significant shifts in congestion; others were perceived to be less successful because of parking problems and more limited access to downtown. Changes in traffic speeds and safety, if any, were not documented in the article. However, the clear lesson that the authors cite was the need for the community to be involved in

the entire planning of the conversion process and that conversions not be undertaken until consensus is reached. The implication of the article is that everyone needs to be involved in the process and to realize what will happen as a result of such conversions and that the affected neighborhoods must "sign off" on the changes in some way. A successful conversion project was as much a political exercise as a technical one.

나라

An example of an evaluation of a proposed conversion of a long-standing one-way pair back to two-way operation is provided by the City of Portland (Oregon). The study is documented in a "technical memorandum" by the city's Office of Transportation and is entitled "Broadway-Weidler Corridor Plan" (City of Portland 1996). Basically, this one-way pair (couplet) of streets (Broadway and Weidler) serves as a "neighborhood collector" supporting neighborhood-oriented commercial development. However, it is also designated as a major multi-modal arterial (including bicycle lanes)—changing the pattern of operation in this corridor was a major undertaking (unlike some of the changes that were accomplished in Denver on relatively underutilized streets). Alternatives that were investigated ranged from retaining the couplet to a complete "de-coupling" through the entire corridor. Other alternatives were basically decoupling the streets through part of the corridor. Issues that were considered in the evaluation included: bicycle provisions, pedestrian use, transit operations, traffic operations, on-street parking, heavy vehicle utilization, and neighborhood access. While numerous technical exercises were done (e.g., traffic was assigned to the various links for the different alternatives and capacity analyses were done for current and 2015 volumes for each link and intersection), the impacts of each alternative were summarized (more or less qualitatively) in a typical multiobjective format. Table 1 is an illustration of the layout and the types of comments that were made (selected illustrative comments from only one alternative are shown).

Table 1. Example of Transportation building for Alternative 2, Full De-Couple				
Transportation Element	Advantages	Disadvantages		
Bicycles	bike lanes westbound on Broadway and eastbound on Weidler	increased vehicle congestion for greater vehicle/bicycle conflicts		
Pedestrians	fewer high volume streets to cross	pedestrian crossing of two- way Broadway more difficult than one-way at unsignalized intersections		
Transit	consolidated transit routing on Broadway	bus stopping in traffic on two- way Broadway would delay traffic and impact transit operation		
Traffic	significant reduction in traffic volumes on Weidler (from 18,000 to 6,000 daily vehicles)	reduced level of service and difficult crossing two-way Broadway at unsignalized cross streets		
On-Street Parking	increased on specific streets	decreased on specific streets		
Heavy Vehicles	truck movement patterns would be similar to today	use of travel lanes for loading would not be possible		
Neighborhood Access	· · ·	more difficult neighborhood access at some intersections due to left-turn problems		

Table 1. Example of "Transportation Summary for Alternative 2, Full De-Couple"

Source: City of Portland 1996, table 2, page 8

In the final analysis, the conversion back to two-way operation was not recommended based (it

would appear) on the grounds of increased congestion and the non-fulfillment of some

neighborhood goals. The types of impacts that were explicitly considered included the

following:

- \checkmark bicycle lanes accommodation
- ✓ vehicle/bicycle interactions
- ✓ pedestrian environment (e.g., pedestrian-friendly geometry)
- ✓ pedestrian safety (e.g., crossing one-way street is easier)
- ✓ pedestrian interaction with street traffic
- ✓ enhanced pedestrian signals

✓ transit routes

 \checkmark transit interaction with other vehicles (e.g., stop location)

- ✓ enhancement of transit usage (e.g., better access)
- ✓ increasing/decreasing volumes on different streets
- ✓ increase in number of lanes on more heavily traveled streets (after conversion)
- ✓ decrease in (or under-utilization of) lanes on less heavily traveled streets (after conversion)
- \checkmark level of service mid-block and intersections during peak and off-peak hours
- ✓ signal progression

- ✓ left-turn conflicts
- ✓ increase/decrease in crash frequencies
- ✓ increase/decrease in on-street parking
- ✓ truck accommodation—both through trucks and local deliveries
- ✓ neighborhood access (e.g., left turns in to and out of residential neighborhoods
- ✓ increased/decreased traffic diversion into neighborhoods

In addition to the traffic-oriented impacts just listed, there was also considerable attention given to the impacts that the conversion alternatives would have on neighborhood goals and objectives (including public acceptance), businesses in the area, accomplishing regional objectives, and other broader-scale concerns. In the analysis/evaluation no thresholds were given for what was "acceptable" (e.g., intersection LOS must be maintained at C or better), rather the evaluation seemed to deal primarily with absolute and relative differences between the alternatives. This study serves to illustrate the complexity that can be involved in street operation conversions and how the important issues are often "local" in nature.

Another study from Portland (City of Portland 2000) was directed to the consideration of another couplet, the Belmont-Morrison project. The approach that was used was quite similar to that for the Broadway-Weidler corridor. This investigation also resulted in a recommendation to not de-couple the existing one-way pair. The primary factors mitigating against de-coupling were degradation of traffic operations, failure of other alternatives to meet a citizen advisory committee's design objective, elimination of parking near businesses, and lack of support for the de-coupling option. The latter was gauged through a broad survey of corridor residents and an "open house" that was held to explain the alternatives to interested parties. The overall "alternatives evaluation summary matrix" is provided in appendix 4. The exercise for this corridor again supports the notion that there needs to be a thorough and comprehensive review of impacts of proposed changes, that the affected interest groups (e.g., residents, business interests) need to be fully involved in the planning and evaluation process, and that decisions to "convert" or not are likely to be based on not only traditional traffic operations considerations but also specific local concerns.

Brown and Fitzsimons (1997) report on a similar process that took place in Sacramento (California). Although the source article did not contain as much detail as the Portland case studies, the traffic calming plan for downtown Sacramento was seven years in the making and a very politically-charged undertaking. The conversion of a one-way pair to two-way operation was one part of the overall calming plan. Of interest in this report was the fact that the expressed need for traffic calming originated in two neighborhoods adjacent to the CBD which were experiencing considerable through commuter traffic. Related issues that arose included the need to accommodate buses and emergency vehicles (a one-day field simulation using traffic cones was actually undertaken) and where diverted traffic would end up (e.g., are adjacent neighborhoods negatively impacted when one neighborhood is "calmed?"). It was also noted that a full Environmental Impact Report (as required by the California Environmental Quality Act) had to be prepared as part of the process. The most salient feature of this article was the identified need for a consistent and meaningful interaction among the various players (e.g., political figures, technical staff, different neighborhood interest groups) when developing, discussing, and implementing the traffic calming plan. It is interesting to note that this "finding" (and similar comments from several other sources) are no different than those historically made regarding the planning process for ANY significant transportation-related project. The need for effective and ongoing community involvement in planning transportation system elements is no different now than it was in the 1960s when there were major debates over projects such as the Embarcadero Freeway in San Francisco and the proposed I-95 route through the Boston area which resulted in the well-documented Boston Transportation Planning Review. The topics and

(3)

scale may be different (i.e., freeway alignments versus traffic calming), but the concerns of citizens and how to deal with them are not.

A less controversial conversion of one-way to two-way operation occurred in the Lubbock (Texas) CBD in 1995 (Hart 1998). The initial impetus for the conversion came from an ad hoc group of citizens which, in turn, resulted in a review by a formal citizens' advisory commission and, eventually, professional staff. Throughout the process, the professional staff was highly responsive to community needs and a good relationship was developed—the staff was viewed as being very inclusive with respect to planning and implementing traffic operations changes. The eventual recommendation was to convert to two-way operations. The advantages and disadvantages that were cited included:

advantages

- \checkmark less confusion for motorists, especially visitors
- ✓ improved access to adjacent properties (primarily businesses)
- ✓ reduced travel distance to destination

disadvantages

- \checkmark cost of conversion (approximately \$50,000)
- \checkmark increased congestion
- ✓ reduced effectiveness of two-way signal progression
- ✓ small town look
- ✓ unlikely conversion back to one-way operation if additional capacity was needed later

With respect to the traffic operations-related concerns, the highest peak hour volume on either existing street of the one-way pair was less than 600 vph and two-way volumes were less than 1,000 vph. Thus, the congestion-related disadvantages were not significant. The conversion was accomplished and monitored with the result that traffic volumes have remained approximately the same and crash frequencies have increased slightly (but the change was within the limits of year-to-year fluctuations). The responses from businesses and others have virtually all been positive with businesses actually reporting minor growth after several years of decline. Indeed,

the "small town look" which was originally perceived as a negative has been turned in to a positive for this medium-sized city of 200,000.

2

7.

The relatively easy and "stress-free" conversion in Lubbock, versus the more controversial experiences elsewhere, can be attributed to the relatively low level of impact of the conversion (e.g., traffic volumes are quite low in comparison), the fact that the original proposal for the conversion came from the affected community, and the positive way in which professional staff and the community interacted. The conversion was also a "stand-alone" project, not related to other traffic calming changes or public issues.

Another relatively low profile change from one-way to two-way operation on selected streets was accomplished in Lansing (Michigan) in 1999 (City of Lansing 1999). The changes were proposed as part of an overall comprehensive planning process for the downtown area which had been developed by technical staff with considerable input from citizens and various interest groups in the city. The driving factors in the consideration of the reversal of the long-standing one-way system were considered to be to make the downtown area more accessible for local residents and more "driver-friendly" for visitors. It should also be noted that there is considerable unused capacity in the downtown Lansing street system. Public involvement was accomplished in the original comprehensive planning exercise, through flyers to residents and businesses in the affected areas, and in presentations at various public meetings. The technical analysis that was done showed that there would be some loss of on-street parking, the intersections could easily handle off-peak flows and peak flows would be handled at an acceptable level. An analysis of traffic crashes indicated that no significant change in safety was predicted—the potential increase because of increased conflict points in some intersections would be offset by savings in other types of mid-block and some pedestrian crashes. Finally, it was recommended that conversions be undertaken in two phases to mitigate confusion. The first
phase of the conversion has been completed (at this point), and there have not been significant problems encountered.

Jossi (1998) also notes that downtown one-way to two-way conversions have also been done in Toledo (Ohio) and are being considered in St. Paul (Minnesota) and Albuquerque (New Mexico). Although not technically detailed, Jossi notes that these conversions are being considered or done as part of downtown rejuvenation/growth activities. The fears are basically related to the added congestion of operating two-way streets on sometimes limited street widths. Not all of the downtown interests have been in favor of these changes, although detailed arguments were not presented. The conflicts reported by Jossi appear to be classic ones between planners/downtown development coordinators and traffic operations-oriented concerns.

Folks et al. (1998) report on a significant project undertaken in San Francisco which, in addition to conversion of a one-way street to two-way operations, also included provision of improved transit service. The message that the authors deliver with respect to this successful conversion is one of process rather than resolving particularly thorny technical issues. Unlike some of the other successful conversion projects, this one was conceived by technical staff as a remedy for transit operations (delay) problems. Once identified as an alternative, the conversion of the one-way street was evaluated from a technical perspective (i.e., was it technically feasible) and, when determined to be feasible, presented to the public through a long and specified review procedure to ensure both public understanding and acceptance of the proposed project. The public process included public meetings, informational flyers, numerous press releases, meetings with key businesses and others that might be affected (adversely or otherwise), and working with several layers of commissions and review panels. While this project is viewed as a "public relations success" (Folks et al. 1998: p36), it should be noted that this was a project that was largely conceived of by technical staff and then "sold" (albeit very effectively) to the public

instead of being conceived by a citizens or other interest group. Nonetheless, the well-run process is still identified as a key factor in the ultimate decision to implement the changes.

Providing more of an overview of the current interest in converting one-way operations back to two-way is work by Forbes (1998) where the reasons and conventional wisdom *for converting to* one-way operations starting in the 1950s are outlined as well as the current reasons (and conventional wisdom) for *converting from* one-way to two-way operations in the 1990s. In the 1950s, one-way streets were seen as an opportunity to rid CBDs of congestion without construction of new facilities and as being supportive of increasing business and shopping activity in downtown areas. Indeed, Forbes cites the advocacy of the US Chamber of Commerce for one-way streets as being characteristic of the support that this technique had garnered (Chamber of Commerce of the United States 1954). Interestingly, increased business is also seen as a prime reason for the current interest in converting back to two-way operations. Forbes addresses this apparent contradiction (Forbes 1998: p27):

It is not that the one-way street strategy has failed, or that traffic volumes have subsided to levels commensurate with two-way streets. The one-way streets achieved the objective of ameliorating traffic congestion, and traffic volumes are higher than ever. However, in the 1990s the prevailing wisdom among urban planners and designers is that a busy street, a *somewhat* congested street, is an indicator of a healthy business environment. Moving cars into and/or through the downtown is no longer the objective. The new objective is to reduce speeds and volumes of vehicular volume to a level that is compatible with pedestrian traffic. One of the strategies for achieving this objective is converting from one-way streets to two-way streets.

Forbes goes on to indicate that economic decline was perceived to be a symptom of the congestion problem (and that one-way streets were, therefore, solutions). However, he indicates that this linkage has never been made in any substantive way. He does relate an experience in Hamilton (Ontario, Canada) where the Canadian Automobile Association commissioned a poll to examine the stated preferences of downtown shoppers for one-way and two-way street systems (Hamilton currently has many one-way streets). In response to a question regarding whether their shopping habits would change (as a result of such a conversion downtown), 82% said they

would not change, 10% would increase their downtown shopping visits (with a change), and 8% would decrease their downtown shopping visits. Overall, Forbes posits the relationship between economic activity and access/circulation patterns as being extremely difficult to adequately define and that to link significant changes of any one independent variable such as conversion from one-way to two-way street operations to downtown economic vitality is extremely questionable (at least as a general rule).

Finally, Stemley (1998) outlines the general case against converting from one-way street operations back to two-way operations in downtown areas. While acknowledging certain shortcomings of one-way patterns (e.g., confusion of some visitors, some extra travel distances, longer walk paths to transit stops, possible delay of emergency vehicles), he disposes of them as being relatively minor inconveniences (and most likely easily remedied for the most part). He also takes issue with the concerns of businesses about the adverse affect of such patterns (with arguments similar to those of Forbes noted earlier). He then reiterates the key reasons for oneway systems, grouping the benefits in three areas: safety (decreases in pedestrian and certain types of intersection crashes due to lower numbers of conflict points at intersections and elsewhere), capacity (increases in capacity and operating speed along with decreases in delay time), and convenience (mid-block pedestrian crossings are easier to accomplish, allowing onstreet parking is more likely, RTOR and LTOR movements are safer and easier). An unabashed supporter of one-way streets, he closes with the statement that "By changing to a two-way system, a large backward step will be taken which will result in downtown that is less inviting than it is now" (Stemley 1998: p50). While not questioning the findings that he cites, it should be noted that many are based on studies in New York City (done in the 1950s and 70s).

The consensus on one-way streets may well be represented in a couple of basic references on traffic engineering. For example, in ITE's *Residential Street Design and Traffic Control* (Homburger et al. 1989) it is noted that one-way streets (and/or pairs) have the effect of:

reducing through volumes when used to create discontinuities in residential areas, increasing speeds (which can be countered in residential areas by shortening the one-way links); minimizing starts and stops (as a result, for example, of good signal progression) and reducing noise, pollutant emission, and energy consumption; and being inherently safer than two-way streets due to the elimination of two-way friction. A similar list of advantages is presented by McShane et al. (1998) who cited the ease of signal progression, the elimination of many left-turn conflicts, and general safety and capacity benefits as advantages for one-way streets (they were not restricted to the residential street context). Finally, the ITE's Traffic Engineering Handbook (Pline 1992) summarizes the one-versus two-way operations issues in the following way: advantages include positive effects on capacity and delay, positive effects on traffic safety (in general), and a reduction in congestion; and disadvantages include some motorists traveling extra distances to their destinations, some migration of turning movement problems, confusion of some motorists (especially strangers), some potential adverse impacts on transit operations (e.g., increased distances to stops), and some possibly adverse impacts on emergency vehicle access. The excerpted section on one-way street operation from this important and widely-used reference is provided in appendix 5. Included in this excerpt is a listing of "criteria for use of one-way streets" which is useful in general and also as a guide in undertaking evaluations of one-way to two-way conversions. This is also discussed later in the last section of this report.

PRACTITIONER SURVEY

In addition to a review of the literature, a survey of practitioners was also undertaken. As noted earlier, in this instance several of the journal publications recounted in the prior section were from practitioners. Moreover, some of the materials received as a result of the survey were also reported in the previous section (e.g., the corridor reports from Portland, Oregon). The survey was distributed by e-mail although there were both telephone and e-mail follow-ups. The primary purpose of the survey was to ascertain whether there was much activity in terms of conversions from one-way to two-way operation. The basic list of e-mail contacts had been assembled as part of a prior research project where responsive representatives of state DOTs and state police agencies had been identified. This list was then supplemented through the identification of consultants thought to be active in traffic calming, practitioners identified by MDOT, and referrals from the original list (i.e., any one receiving the survey was asked for referrals to others who might have something to offer). The survey instrument for the conversion project was combined with a similar instrument for a related project about allowing parking on state trunklines. The survey was sent out and then a follow-up was sent to anyone who had not responded to the first solicitation. Separate copies were also sent to individuals identified in some other way or who were referrals from initial respondents. In total, contact was attempted with 193 individuals. A full listing of contact names, type of agency, survey response status, and follow-up status is provided in a spreadsheet in appendix 6.

A copy of the complete instrument (which includes introductory information, respondent identification information, and so forth) is provided in appendix 7 while the basic questions that were asked about one-way to two-way conversions are reproduced below:

- Has your organization done any projects that involved changing one-way operations to two-way?
- Has your organization produced any reports on the impacts of specific one-to-twoway conversions or on such conversions in general?
- Does your organization have policies, guidelines, or warrants on allowing (or when to do) one-to-two-way conversions?
- Has your organization done any projects, produced any reports, or have any policies or guidelines on the REVERSE type of conversions (i.e., two-way to one-way conversions)?

While the overall response rate was reasonable (72 responses [of some sort] from 193 total contacts), the number that had information to offer on conversions from one-way to two-way operations, 14, was disappointing. Even fewer of these, five (5), had written information (e.g.,

reports) that could be shared. Still fewer, two (2) had any sort of policy actually relating to such conversions. The remaining nine (9) had done conversion projects but did not have documentation that could be readily shared. A table showing the individual responses to the e-mail survey (not counting some other interview-type responses) is provided in appendix 8.

There were follow-up conversations (either phone or e-mail) with several sources. These are reported in anecdotal form. The traffic engineer for Jackson (Michigan) (Smith 2000), where the conversion of several one-way streets is being considered, indicated that the rationale for the current proposal was similar to that noted in the literature review: when the original conversion was made (25 years ago) the goal was to get traffic to go around downtown whereas now the goal is to get people to go downtown (for business enhancement).

This same sort of view was expressed by a representative of Mountain View (California) (Burke 2000). While Mountain View has not had one-to-two-way conversions *per se*, Burke indicated that the city wanted to decrease the number of lanes through the downtown area, make the area more pedestrian friendly, and generally de-emphasize the goal of maximizing vehicle speeds through downtown. He viewed one-way streets, in general, as being counterproductive in this context and cited several cities (that he knew of) that had "awful" one-way street systems, specifically Tulsa (Oklahoma) and Astoria (Oregon).

While not necessarily the avowed advocate for enhancing the pedestrian environment that Burke purported to be, an Oregon DOT representative (Wood 2000) noted that Oregon conversion projects that he was aware of (including the Portland projects discussed in the literature review and a project in Salem) were primarily done to enhance neighborhood livability and bicycle and/or pedestrian environments. He characterized the interests who favor conversion as citizens and sometimes city councils while those opposed are more likely to include traffic engineers and sometimes businesspeople who perceive that their businesses will be hurt. Some interesting comments were made by Duane Ellis (2000), an engineer for the City of Mt. Pleasant (Michigan) where a conversion had been done in the downtown area. Ironically, in Mt. Pleasant, the original one-way system had been implemented in the late 1970s as part of a larger "streetscape" project with the goal of making a more pedestrian friendly downtown. More recently, a downtown business group proposed the conversion back to two-way operation to enhance business in the area. There was some opposition from nearby residents who were afraid that the conversion back to two-way operation would be too confusing and safety would deteriorate. Upon conversion, there have apparently been no negative results and most of the businesses and residents are at least satisfied with the conversion. Contact with staff in San Luis Obispo (California), Battle Creek (Michigan), and in West Virginia (Smith 2000, Pheres 2000, and Lewis 2000, respectively) yielded reasons for proposed or implemented conversions as: increasing safety, reducing congestion, merchant/business complaints about congestion, and reducing high speeds. These comments are reasonably consistent with those noted elsewhere (although some contradictions were also noted—these will be discussed later).

Overall, the survey results were somewhat disappointing (while the response rate was adequate, the substantive responses were relatively few in number). However, assuming that the responses that were received are characteristic of the state of the practice, it would appear that the rationale for changes in one-way to two-way operation is generally consistent with what was noted in the literature review. While the original impetus for converting to one-way operation was to ease traffic flow/operations, the current "reverse" conversions are concerned with downtown and/or neighborhood enhancement.

SYNTHESIS AND DISCUSSION

The literature review and survey of practitioners provided less information that had originally been hoped but the consistency of information that was obtained from a variety of sources

page 21 of 28

indicates that a more than adequate picture of the state of the art/practice with respect to conversion from one-way to two-way operations has been obtained. The following paragraphs are addressed to the original objectives of the project and how they have been achieved.

Principal Findings

сц.

Two of the most significant findings of this review are that the single most important factor in a successful conversion from one-way to two-way operations is a meaningful public involvement process (supported by straightforward technical studies) and that articulated guidelines for such conversions (e.g., threshold volumes) do not seem to exist. Rather, as one engineer (Wood 2000) put it, a (straightforward) traffic study will tell you whether such conversions are technically feasible or not. Beyond that, opinion regarding whether one-way streets are a good idea or not runs the gamut from Burke (2000) "in virtually all [reasonable] circumstances, one-way streets should be removed" to Stemley (1998) "by changing to a two-way system, a large backward step will be taken which will result in a downtown that is less inviting than it is right now."

Beyond these two points, there is great variance in the results of planning and implementing conversions. For example, in largely residential areas where one-way streets are **not** serving high volumes (and two-way volumes could be easily handled), conversion of one-way streets back to two-way operation seems likely to be favored by residents and of little concern to whatever small number of through motorists are present. On the other hand, in established and congested downtown areas or on heavily used commuter routes where development over the years has been predicated on one-way operations, both technical and public acceptance issues are likely to be significantly more substantial.

With respect to more specific objectives of this project:

• The traffic characteristics before and after conversion (e.g., traffic volumes, operating speeds) are completely dependent on local conditions. Depending on pre- and post-conversion traffic patterns, an even daily split in traffic volumes between the two streets of a one-way pair can be expected to shift dramatically—one street becomes the principal two-way route in to or through an area while the other experiences significantly less volume.

(Although it can easily be imagined where there would be exceptions to this "rule.") Operating speeds can be expected to decrease, assuming that there are not significant geometric changes as part of the conversion. This assertion is based on the fact in most instances, conversion to one-way operation resulted in higher speeds—it stands to reason that conversion back to two-way will have the opposite effect. Indeed, lowering vehicle speeds is often perceived as an objective and positive benefit of converting to two-way operation. Finally, unless there are geometric changes, capacity and level of service will almost always decrease after a conversion to two-way. Indeed, if the post-conversion level of service is **not** unacceptable, it may well be that the conversion will face minimal opposition (at least from a traffic operations perspective).

- Changes in crash frequencies and/or patterns (e.g., did crash frequency increase, did the type and/or severity of crashes change) are a little less clear. The prevailing wisdom with the original conversions to one-way operation was that there would be significantly fewer crashes (and crash rates) as a result of conversion. This was the result of, for example, fewer conflict points at intersections. Pedestrian safety was also generally perceived to be enhanced with one-way operation because of such things as making the street-crossing maneuver easier to undertake (e.g., the pedestrian only has to be concerned with traffic from one direction at intersections) and the ability to provide mid-block crosswalks. Some recent studies have, however, found that one-way operations are not necessarily inherently safer than two-way operations. Moreover, overall increases in crash frequencies have not been regularly reported. It would seem that the improvement or degradation of general (and specifically pedestrian) safety would be largely dependent on a large number of factors (e.g., conflicting volumes, adjacent land use, whether parking is/was allowed) of which one- versus two-way traffic operation would be only one—these vary significantly on a case-by-case basis.
- Motorist response to changes is often mentioned in the literature on conversions both to and from one-way operations. This typically seems to be an "up front" issue which apparently does not materialize as a significant issue later on (or, at least, has not been fully investigated later). By and large, the implication of most of the studies/experiences seems to be that people adapt reasonably quickly to the changes (whichever way they go).
- Guidelines for when conversions are indicated/contraindicated do not seem to exist in any meaningful way. This was clear from the survey that was undertaken—very few (two) indicated that any sort of guideline existed, and they were never provided. On the other hand, it was fairly clear from larger-scale studies (e.g., in Portland, Oregon) that a standard multi-objective evaluation process was required when the proposed conversion projects were large or expected to be controversial. It should be noted that larger-scale conversions are more likely to involve state-numbered routes and, thus, require more systematic and comprehensive study. Examples were provided earlier in the body of the report and in an appendix. This is also discussed in more detail later.
- Whether conversions are considered "successful" appears to be almost exclusively dependent on whether concerned citizens, businesspeople, and/or engineers think they are or not. At the same time, the trend to conversion back to two-way operation is fairly recent and there does not appear to be much in the way of long-term evaluation. If such evaluations are being done, they are not being widely reported. In any event, since conversions are being done in the larger context of traffic calming and executing downtown business enhancement

strategies, it will be quite difficult to isolate the effect of the conversions—when many variables are changed, it is quite difficult to attribute changes (e.g., in crash frequencies or rates) to changes in only one of those variables.

• Similar to other points above, the costs of conversion varies substantially and are completely dependent on the scale of the conversion implementation. For example, if the one-way pair is through a largely residential area with little or no through traffic and carrying very low traffic volumes, a conversion could be accomplished with some minor changes in traffic control devices. On the other hand, a conversion through a congested area may involve substantial changes in signalization (including new and/or improved/updated signals) and geometric changes.

Consideration of One-Way to Two-Way Street Operation Conversions

Notwithstanding the lack of published guidelines on one-way to two-way conversions, the review of the literature does yield suggestions for the variables and issues that should be considered when contemplating them. Recommendations are given below for the two overarching aspects of one-to-two-way conversions: the public involvement process; and the scope of the technical considerations.

Public Involvement Process

The following checklist is offered as a beginning point for the development of a public involvement process for operations conversions. The checklist is based on the review of the literature and the results of the practitioner survey. Of primary concern is the inclusion of different interest groups.

- ✓ Define the "impact area," the spatial extent of the corridor where the impacts will be of most concern when the conversion to two-way operation is implemented.
- ✓ Identify organized groups, jurisdiction-based bodies, and others who have an interest in the impact area. These would include formal (e.g., chamber of commerce) and informal groups of businesspeople in the area, neighborhood associations, special-interest groups (e.g., an organized group of bicyclists), planning and zoning commissions, citizen advisory groups (e.g., traffic advisory commissions, historical preservation groups), emergency services providers (e.g., police, fire, emergency medical service providers), schools, delivery services (e.g., UPS), city councilpersons, the media, and others. Using the impact area definition, all individual citizens and affected businesses should also be identified. Care should be taken to incorporate "special users" in the process (e.g., residents of elderly housing facilities in the corridor, schools).

✓ Hold public information meetings early in the conversion planning process. This should be done when the conversion is first considered—the planning and implementation process must be inclusive rather than presented as a finished, polished proposal. Meetings should also be held with any identified groups—the implementation agency must be willing to go to meetings of potentially interested groups and individuals rather than expecting that these people will simply show up at general public information meetings.

- ✓ Disseminate information regarding all aspects of the conversion planning and implementation to the public and all identified interested groups via meetings, informational flyers, and the media. The type of information to be disseminated includes who is responsible for identifying the conversion for consideration, a clear presentation of all pertinent information about the conversion (both "good news" and bad), and details about when/how implementation would occur. To the extent possible, supporters and nonsupporters of the conversion should be present at various presentation. The state agency should not appear to be the only active evaluator in the process.
- ✓ Once the decision to implement the conversion is made, it should be clearly articulated why the decision was made. For example, what were the deciding factors.

Technical Evaluation Issues

A preliminary list of the types of things to be covered in the technical evaluation is given below. Depending on the scale, type, and location of the proposed conversion, the list may be considerably shortened (or even expanded). Not all issues will have as much saliency as others in all situations. All analysis should be done for existing conditions and for all defined alternatives (e.g., level-of-service calculations should be done for existing conditions and all alternatives). This list contains the issues/actions identified in the literature review (including items listed in the ITE's *Traffic Engineering Handbook*—see appendix 5 for additional details)

and the state of the practice survey.

overall planning and identification of alternatives

- \checkmark define existing conditions
- ✓ define all conversion options to be considered (e.g., are there different limits that could be considered for "converted" segment or is it "all or nothing")
- ✓ identify role of streets in regional transportation network (e.g., is the existing one-way pair of local or regional significance)
- \checkmark estimate current and future trip lengths that might be affected by conversion
- ✓ consistency of proposed conversions with neighborhood, city, and regional planning goals and objectives

traffic operations

- \checkmark street and intersection capacities before and after conversion
- ✓ street and intersection levels of service before and after conversion
- ✓ geometric adequacy of the affected streets (e.g., pavement width)
- ✓ determine if minimally acceptable levels of service are achieved by all alternatives
- ✓ delay time on and off converted streets
- ✓ diversions to/from local system as a result of conversion
- ✓ estimate diversions to/from other through streets in corridor
- ✓ determine if additional lanes (e.g., through corridor, turning lanes at intersections) required for conversion
- ✓ estimate decrease in (or under-utilization of) lanes on less heavily traveled streets (after conversion)
- ✓ impacts on signal progression
- ✓ changes in left-turn conflicts
- ✓ increase/decrease in crash frequencies (overall and for specific crash types)
- ✓ increase/decrease in on-street parking
- ✓ determine the level of accommodation of through truck and local delivery
- ✓ undertake traffic control device inventories and required changes (including placement of signs, markings, and signals) for different alternatives
- ✓ determine the adequacy of sight distances for new two-way operation (assuming that existing streets had been designed for one-way operation)
- ✓ parking requirements

bicycle and pedestrian operations

- ✓ determine if bicycle lanes can be accommodated
- ✓ vehicle/bicycle interactions
- ✓ determine the location of major pedestrian generators and crossings
- ✓ changes in pedestrian environment (e.g., pedestrian-friendly geometry)
- ✓ pedestrian safety (e.g., adequate intersection and mid-block crossings for expected demand)
- ✓ pedestrian interaction with street traffic
- ✓ enhanced pedestrian signals

transit operations

- \checkmark transit route accommodation
- ✓ increased/decreased walking distances to transit stops (e.g., from major attractors)
- ✓ transit interaction with other vehicles (e.g., stop location)
- ✓ enhancement of transit usage (e.g., better access)

neighborhood access

- ✓ neighborhood access improved or degraded (e.g., left turns in to and out of residential neighborhoods)
- ✓ increased/decreased traffic diversion into neighborhoods
- ✓ elimination of through traffic on neighborhood streets
- \checkmark increased traffic on some residential streets serving through traffic

commercial/business issues

- ✓ improved access to adjacent properties (primarily businesses)
- ✓ less confusion for motorists, especially visitors
- \checkmark reduced travel distance to destination
- \checkmark enhancement or degradation of downtown or commercial district
- ✓ access to major generators (e.g., large employers, community centers, parking structures)

en th

other issues/considerations

- \checkmark cost of conversion
- ✓ public opinion
- ✓ origination of support (or non-support)
- ✓ environmental impacts (e.g., increased/decreased air pollution due to conversion)
- \checkmark timing and duration of implementation

This list of issues is not necessarily comprehensive nor would each item necessarily be relevant for every study. One of the first issues for the public involvement/planning process to consider is to identify which issues should be considered for any specific conversion proposal. In addition, to the extent possible, acceptable thresholds (for those variables that lend themselves to such measurements) should be discussed and established **before** technical analyses are done and results presented. For example, it should be established that level of service C is acceptable for an intersection prior to doing the analysis necessary to compute the level of service.

One of the goals for this project was to establish guidelines for when conversions from oneway to two-way operations might be advisable or acceptable. However, it is clear from the literature review and the survey responses that a single set of criteria is elusive. While traffic operation concerns can be the deciding factor in conversions (and especially if the operationsoriented outcomes are very bad), the ultimate impact of a conversion is extremely case-specific. Degradation in motorist delay, for example, is dependent on everything from simple traffic volumes to be accommodated to width of the streets to cross-street (and turning) volumes—what works in one area may result in an operations disaster elsewhere. At the same time, the types of analyses that are implied in the "issues list" presented above are straightforward and are the staples of good traffic engineering practice. But, it is equally clear that not all of the important outcomes are neatly quantified or equally valued by all participants in the process. For example, in general, traffic engineers would probably favor alternatives that resulted in higher vehicle speeds (and lower delay) while it seems clear that others may view reasonably decreased (more pedestrian friendly) speeds in a more positive light. So, while it is important to do "good engineering" with respect to the outcomes of proposed conversions, it is as important to have an effective public involvement process where conflicting goals and objectives can be articulated.

FUTURE WORK

ψÌ

It is clear from the review of the literature and survey of practitioners that converting one-way pairs of streets back to two-way operations is a current fad of sorts. It is often discussed in the context of other projects consistent with traffic calming and generally improving downtowns. It is characteristic of the lack of knowledge about what makes downtowns and neighborhoods "work" that the effects of different traffic operations changes on business are largely unknown. It is similarly largely a matter of conjecture on even what the traffic operations impacts are when the one- to two-way conversions are implemented. There have been and are a fairly large number of conversions being considered in Michigan. The list includes Adrian, Jackson, Kalamazoo, Lansing, Mt. Pleasant, and Battle Creek. While not all of these conversions have (or will) included state trunklines, it seems appropriate that the impacts of some of these conversions on traffic operations should be evaluated in more depth. More ambitious work could also examine the relationship between these conversions and business/downtown development patterns.

REFERENCES (used in report)

Brown, Steven J., and Steve Fitzsimons. *Calming the Community (Traffic Calming in Downtown Sacramento)*, Institute of Transportation Engineers, 67th Annual Meeting, 1997.

Burch, J.S., Report of Committee on Traffic Regulations in Municipalities: One-Way Streets, Highway Research Board Proceedings, Highway Research Board, Washington, DC, 1938.

Burke, Barney (unknown technical staff position in Mountain View, California). Personal email/phone correspondence April/May 2000.

Canning, W.S. and M.O. Eldridge, *Report of Committee on Traffic Regulations in Municipalities: One-Way Streets*, Highway Research Board Proceedings, Highway Research Board, Washington, DC, 1937.

Chamber of Commerce of the United States. One Way Business Streets, July 1954.

1

City of Lansing. *Executive Summary*, Transportation and Parking Office, City of Lansing, Lansing, Michigan. 1999.

City of Portland (Office of Transportation). Broadway-Weidler Corridor Plan-Technical Memorandum, Portland, Oregon 1996.

City of Portland (Office of Transportation). Belmont-Morrison Project (Report & Recommendations), Portland, Oregon. February, 2000.

Dorroh, Robert F., III, and Robert A. Kochevar. *One-Way Conversions for Calming Denver's Streets*, Resource Papers for the 1996 ITE International Conference, Institute of Transportation Engineers, p 109-114.

Ellis, Duane (engineer with City of Mt. Pleasant, Michigan). Personal e-mail/phone correspondence April/May 2000.

Enustun, N., Study of the Operational Aspects of One-Way and Two-Way Streets, Michigan Department of State Highways, Lansing, Michigan. January, 1969.

Folks, Thomas P., Javad Mirabdal, and Bond M. Yee. Sansome Street Contraflow Transit Lane: A Public Participation Success Story, ITE Journal, Institue of Transportation Engineers, p34-36, August 1998.

Forbes, Gerald. Vital Signs: Circulation in the Heart of the City—An Overview of Downtown Traffic, ITE Journal, Institue of Transportation Engineers, p26-29, August 1998.

Gattis, J.L. and Vergil G. Stover. *Planning Decisions and Public Attitudes About Roadway Operation*, Transportation Research Record 1237, Transportation Research Board, National Academy of Sciences, Washington, DC. 1989.

Hart, Jere. Converting Back to Two-Way Streets in Downtown Lubbock. ITE Journal, Institue of Transportation Engineers, p38, 45-46, August 1998.

Hocherman, I., A.S. Hakkert, and J. Bar-Ziv. *Safety of One-Way Urban Streets*, Transportation Research Record 1270, Transportation Research Board, National Academy of Sciences, Washington, DC. 1990.

Homburger, Wolfgang S., Elizabeth A. Deakin, Peter C. Bosselmann, Daniel T. Smith Jr., and Bert Beukers. *Residential Street Design and Traffic Control*, ITE and Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, NJ, 1989.

Jossi, Frank. One-Way Downtown Streets Move in Two Directions, Planning News, Chicago, Illinois, June 1998.

Lewis, Ray (engineer with West Virginia DOT). Personal e-mail/phone correspondence April/May 2000.

Lyles, Richard W., Anecdotal personal experience as Deputy Director of Planning, Urban Redevelopment Authority of Pittsburgh, 1967-73. East Lansing, Michigan, 2000

McShane, William R., Roger P. Roess, and Elena S. Prassas. *Traffic Engineering*, 2nd Edition, Prentice Hall, Upper Saddle River, New Jersey, 1998.

Pheres, Max (engineer with City of Battle Creek, Michigan). Personal e-mail/phone correspondence April/May 2000.

Pline, James L. (editor). Traffic Engineering Handbook, 4th Edition, Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, 1992.

Roth, Leland M., A Concise History of American Architecture, New York: Harper and Row, Publishers, Inc. 1979.

Smith, Bud (traffic engineer for Jackson, Michigan). Personal e-mail/phone correspondence dated 2 November 1999.

Smith, Craig (engineer with City San Luis Obispo, California). Personal e-mail/phone correspondence April/May 2000.

Stemley, John J. One-Way Streets Provide Superior Safety and Convenience, ITE Journal, Institue of Transportation Engineers, p47-50, August 1998.

Temple, John F., *Peak-Period One-Way Operation of an Urban Expressway*, Transportation Research Record 906, Transportation Research Board, National Academy of Sciences, Washington, DC. 1983.

Wood, Richard (engineer with Oregon DOT). Personal e-mail/phone correspondence April/May 2000.

APPENDIX 1

And the second

- 1

TRIS Citations for "Traffic Calming"

appendix 1 page 1-1



THE INFLUENCE OF TRAFFIC CALMING DEVICES

CANADIAN GUIDE TO NEIGHBOURHOOD TRAFFIC

Conference: Institute of Transportation Engineers 67th Annual

UPON FIRE VEHICLE TRAVEL TIMES

AUTHOR(S): Coleman, MA

More.

____ More.

C(2)

00/00/1997

12/00/1998

Meeting

CALMING

00/00/1997	TRAFFIC CALMING, THE HELPFUL BAND-AID, IN VIRGINIA WHEN THE STATE DOT IS 100+ LOCAL DPW	<u>More</u>
	Conference: Institute of Transportation Engineers 67th Annual Meeting	
	AUTHOR(S): Kastenhofer, EO	:
00/00/1997	THE "DARK SIDE" OF TRAFFIC CALMING DEVICES - 1S IT SERIOUS?	<u> More</u>
	Federation AUTHOR(S): Dunne, MC	
00/00/1997	TRAFFIC CALMING EXPERIENCE IN THE UK Conference: XIIIth World Meeting of the International Road	<u>More</u>
	Federation AUTHOR(S): Taillaur, A	
08/00/1998	SLOW RIDE: CALMING TRAFFIC	<u> </u>
	Journal: American City and County Vol: 113 No: 9 AUTHOR(S): Black, T	
00/00/1998	WHAT TRAFFIC CALMING IS ALL ABOUT	<u>More</u>
14-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-1	Journal: Drivet/Education Vol: 8 No: 3	
11/00/1998	ITE/FHWA AGREEMENT ON TRAFFIC CALMING	<u> More</u>
	Journal: ITE Journal Voi: 68 No: 11 AUTHOR(S): Fontana, LM	
00/00/1998	TRAFFIC CALMING EXPERIMENTS IN TANZANIA	<u> </u>
	Conference: Urban Transport Policy: A Sustainable Development Tool	
00/00/1008	EFFECTS OF TRAFFIC CALMING SOUTHERS IN	
00/00/1998	DENMARK	<u></u>
	Conference: Fourth International Conference on Urban Transport and the Environment for the 21st Century (Edited by 1 C Borrego and L Sucharov)	
	AUTHOR(S): Jorgense, L	
00/00/1998	EFFECT OF WIDE TRAFFIC CALMING IN JAPAN:	<u>More</u>
	ACCIDENT AND SOCIO-ECONOMIC STUDIES IN IAPANESE "ROAD-PIA" PROJECTS IN THE 1890S	
	Conference: Fourth International Conference on Urban	
	Transport and Environment for the 21st Century (Edited by C	
	Borrego and L Sucharov)	
The last of the last of the state of the sta	AUTHOR(S): Tuchihashi, M	
03/12/1999	EVALUATING TRAFFIC CALMING BENEFITS, COSTS	<u>More</u>
	AND EQUITY IMPACTS AUTHOR(S): Litman T	
01/00/1008	VIRTUAL TRAFFIC CALMING	1 More
VII 90/1330	Journal: Traffic Engineering and Control Vol: 39 No: 1 AUTHOR(S): Lockwood, C	

1912

00/00/1997	CHAPTER 31: THE PRACTICE OF IMPROVING THE	<u>More</u>
	INEIGHBORHOOD STREET ENVIRONMENT THROUGH	
	I KAFFIC CALMING IN JAPAN, FROM THE GREENING	
	AUTHOR(S): Odani M	
10/00/1009	EEEECTIVE TO A EEEC CALVENC, ADDI ICATIONIS AND	1 More
10/00/1990	IMPLEMENTATION	
	AUTHOR(S): Saffel AI	
00/00/1998	TRAFFIC CALMING PRIMER	1 More
00/00/1999	HOW LOCAL JURISDICTIONS FINANCE	<u>More</u>
	TRAFFIC-CALMING PROJECTS	
	Journal: Transportation Quarterly Vol: 53 No: 3	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	AUTHOR(S): Deakin, E	
07/00/1999	RURAL TRAFFIC CALMING: RETURNING TO BASICS	<u> More</u>
	Journal: IMSA Journal Vol: 37 No: 4	-
	AUTHOR(S): Suzman, J	
00/00/1999	TRAFFIC CALMINGBEWARE OF THE BACKLASH	<u>More</u>
	Conference: Enhancing Transportation Safety in the 21st	
-	Century ITE International Conference	
	AUTHOR(S): Cline, E	
00/00/1999	A TRAFFIC CALMING TOOLBOXA TECHNICAL	<u> </u>
	RESOURCE DEVELOPED FOR THE SOUTH WESTERN	
	REGION OF CONNECTICUT	
	Conterence. Enhancing Transportation Safety in the 21st	
	AUTHOR(S): Court. T	
00/00/1997	THE CHORRO AREA NEICHBORHOOD TRAFFIC	1 More
0.01:0 01:1 > > 1	CALMING PLAN: A CASE STUDY IN NEIGHBORHOOD	
	TRAFFIC CALMING	
	Journal: COMPENDIUM OF TECHNICAL PAPERS: ITE	
	DISTRICT 6 50TH ANNUAL MEETING.	
	AUTHOR(S): NEUSTAEDTER, CRAIG S.	

Criteria: TRAFFIC AND CALMING	Records Collection	
	135 TITLES	
Dieploy: 1.25 of Total Found: 223	100 ABSTRACTS	
Display. 1-25 of Total Found. 225	132 KEYWORDS	

Pages: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

TRIS is a bibliographic database funded by sponsors of the <u>Transportation Research Board</u> (TRB), primarily the state departments of transportation and selected federal transportation agencies. TRIS Online is hosted by the <u>National Transportation Library</u> under a cooperative agreement between the <u>Bureau of Transportation Statistics</u> and TRB.

7/26/00 1:31 PM

1

4 U.S. Department of Transportation

Bureau of Transportation Statistics

(National) Ransportation Dibrary

TRIS OTHER v1.5 SEARCH RESULTS LIST



Criteria: TRAFFIC AND CALMING Search Period: ALL Sort: PUBDATE Display: 26-50 of Total Found: 223

Records Collection 135 TITLES 100 ABSTRACTS 132 KEYWORDS



BASKET

0 item(s) are in the BASKET [Max 100]

Select the items below by checking the boxes, then select a function from the BASKET CONTROL panel above.

Select/Deselect all displayed items

Pages: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Date	Description	More
00/00/1993	TRAFFIC CALMING - A GUIDE TO STREET SHARING AUTHOR(S): Wallwork, MJ	<u>More</u>
09/00/1996	DEVELOPING AND IMPLEMENTING TRAFFIC CALMING WARRANTS Conference: Compendium of Technical Papers for the 66th ITE Annual Meeting AUTHOR(S): Perone, JP	<u> More</u>
09/00/1996	CALMING URBAN STREET CRIME THROUGH TRAFFIC CALMING: PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION Conference: Compendium of Technical Papers for the 66th ITE Annual Meeting AUTHOR(S): Ochia, K	<u> More</u>
09/00/1996	TRAFFIC CALMING - DO'S AND DON'TS TO ENCOURAGE BICYCLING Conference: Compendium of Technical Papers for the 66th ITE Annual Meeting AUTHOR(S): DeRobertis, M	<u> </u>
08/00/1996	CALMING TRAFFIC Journal: GOVERNING AUTHOR(S): Lemov, D	<u>More</u>
00/00/1996	A TRAFFIC CALMING PLAN FOR VIRGINIA'S RURAL ROUTE 50 CORRIDOR - FAUQUIER AND LOUDOUN COUNTIES INCLUDING ALDIE, MIDDLEBURG, AND	More

7/26/00 1:32 PM

1 of 4

	UPPERVILLE	
08/00/1997	U.S. EXPERIENCE WITH TRAFFIC CALMING Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 67 No: 8 AUTHOR(S): Ewing, R	<u></u>
08/00/1997	URBAN TRAFFIC CALMING TREATMENTS: PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND DESIGN CONFORMANCE Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 67 No: 8 AUTHOR(S): Davis, WJ	<u>More</u>
08/00/1997	THE INFLUENCE OF TRAFFIC CALMING ON EMERGENCY RESPONSE TIMES Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 67 No: 8 AUTHOR(S): Atkins, C	<u>More</u>
00/00/1997	TRAFFIC CALMING IN AUSTRALIA - MORE THAN NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT Conference: Transportation and Sustainable Communities Challenges and Opportunities for the Transportation Professional. 1997 ITE International Conference AUTHOR(S): Brindle, R	<u>More</u>
00/00/1997	TRAFFIC CALMING AND THE NEOTRADITIONAL STREET Conference: Transportation and Sustainable Communities Challenges and Opportunities for the Transportation Professional. 1997 ITE International Conference AUTHOR(S): Ben-Joseph, E	<u>More</u>
00/00/1997	DO WE NEED TRAFFIC CALMING WARRANTS? Conference: Transportation and Sustainable Communities – Challenges and Opportunities for the Transportation Professional, 1997 ITE International Conference AUTHOR(S): Lockwood, IM	<u>More</u>
00/00/1997	NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC CALMING - DO WE NEED WARRANTS Conference: Transportation and Sustainable Communities Challenges and Opportunities for the Transportation Professional. 1997 ITE International Conference AUTHOR(S): Kanely, BD	More
00/00/1997	THE INFLUENCE OF TRAFFIC CALMING ON EMERGENCY RESPONSE TIMES Conference: Transportation and Sustainable Communities Challenges and Opportunities for the Transportation Professional. 1997 ITE International Conference. AUTHOR(S): Atkins, C	<u>More</u>
00/00/1997	TRAFFIC CALMING (THE BAND-AID) ON A STATE DOT LEVEL - THE VIRGINIA EXPERIENCE Conference: Transportation and Sustainable Communities Challenges and Opportunities for the Transportation Professional. 1997 ITE International Conference.	<u> </u>

्वे

	AUTHOR(S): Kastenhofer, EO	TY I SHOW THE A
01/00/1998	INSTITUTE OF TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERS	More.
	WORKS TO DEFINE "TRAFFIC CALMING"	
	Journal: TRANSAFETY REPORTER Vol: 16 No: 1	
01/00/1998	TRAFFIC CALMING IN AUSTRALIA, CANADA, AND	<u>More</u> .
	EUROPE	
	Journal: TRANSAFETY REPORTER Vol: 16 No: 1	
03/00/1998	THE DO'S AND DON'TS OF TRAFFIC CALMING	<u>More</u>
	Journal: Traffic Safety Vol: 98 No: 2	
	AUTHOR(S): Lewis, D	
12/00/1997	TRAFFIC CALMING ACTIVITY IN MINNESOTA	<u>More</u>
	AUTHOR(S): Giese, JL	
03/00/1998	TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES: WHAT, WHY, WHERE,	<u> </u>
	AND HOW	
	Conference: Harmonizing Transportation and Community	
	Goals - The Challenge for Today's Transportation Professional.	
	ITE International Conference	
	AUTHOR(S): Ewing, R	
03/00/1998	GROWING PAINS OR GROWING CALMER? LESSONS	<u> </u>
	LEARNED FROM A PILOT TRAFFIC CALMING	- -
	PROGRAM	
	Conference: Harmonizing Transportation and Community	
	ITE International Conference	
	AUTHOR(S): Davis RE	
03/00/1998	DOES TRAFFIC CALMING MAKE STREETS SAFER?	1 More
00,00,1770	Conference: Harmonizing Transportation and Community	
	Goals - The Challenge for Today's Transportation Professional.	
	ITE International Conference	
	AUTHOR(S): Beaubien, RF	
03/00/1998	LIABILITIES / SAFETY ISSUES WITH TRAFFIC	_ More.
	CALMING DEVICES	
	Conference: Harmonizing Transportation and Community	
	Goals - The Challenge for Today's Transportation Professional.	
	ITE International Conference	
	AUTHOR(S): Dabkowski, JA	[
03/00/1998	RECRUITING PRIVATE HELP FOR A PUBLIC	<u> </u>
	DEMONSTRATION PROJECT: TAKING THE "HUMP"	
	OUT OF TRAFFIC CALMING	
	Conference: Harmonizing Transportation and Community	
	Goals - The Unahenge for Loday's Transportation Professional.	
	AUTHOR(S). Aspelin K	-
00/00/11000		1
00/00/1998	BRINGING IT ALL TOGETHER: MESHING HIGHER	More More
	DENSITIES, IKANSTI FACILITIES, AND I KAFFIC	
	CATARIA III AFARI JETABONHAAA DA911/E99	1

の日日の日本によった時



Criteria: **TRAFFIC AND CALMING** Search Period: **ALL** Sort: **PUBDATE** Display: **26-50** of Total Found: **223**

Records Collection 135 TITLES 100 ABSTRACTS 132 KEYWORDS



Pages: 1|2|3|4|5|6|7|8|9|



Q U.S. Department of Transportation

Bureau of Transportation Statistics

(National) @ransportation () ibrary

RIS Online v1.5 SEARCH RESULTS LIST



Criteria: TRAFFIC AND CALMING Search Period: ALL Sort: PUBDATE Display: 51-75 of Total Found: 223

Records Collection 135 TITLES 100 ABSTRACTS 132 KEYWORDS



BASKET Add 0 item(s) are in the BASKET [Max 100].

Select the items below by checking the boxes, then select a function from the BASKET CONTROL panel above.

Select/Deselect all displayed items

Pages: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Date	Description	More
09/00/1993	EXTENSIVE TRAFFIC CALMING RESULTS OF THE ACCIDENT ANALYSES IN 6 MODEL TOWNS Conference: Compendium of Technical Papers, ITE, 63rd Annual Meeting AUTHOR(S): Blanke, H	<u>More</u>
09/00/1993	TRAFFIC CALMING - IDEAS INTO PRACTICE Conference: Compendium of Technical Papers, ITE, 63rd Annual Meeting AUTHOR(S): O'Brien, A	<u> </u>
01/00/1994	THE EVALUATION OF RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC CALMING: A NEW MULTI-CRITERIA APPROACH Journal: Traffic Engineering and Control Vol: 35 No: 1 AUTHOR(S): Brennan, DT	<u> More</u>
01/00/1994	NATIONAL BICYCLING AND WALKING STUDY. CASE STUDY NO. 19: TRAFFIC CALMING, AUTO-RESTRICTED ZONES AND OTHER TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES - THEIR EFFECTS ON BICYCLING AND PEDESTRIANS AUTHOR(S): Clarke, A	<u>More</u>
00/00/1994	IMPROVED TRAFFIC ENVIRONMENT - A CATALOGUE OF IDEAS. DANISH EXPERIENCES ON TRAFFIC CALMING Conference: Strategic Highway Research Program (SHRP) and Traffic Safety on Two Continents, Proceedings of the	<u>More</u>

 $\bigcup_{i \in \mathcal{I}}$

ļ	Conference	
	AUTHOR(S): Herrstedt, L	
00/00/1994	PREVENTING CHILD PEDESTRIAN INJURY:	More
	PEDESTRIAN EDUCATION OR TRAFFIC CALMING?	,
	Journal: AUSTRALIAN JOURNAL OF PUBLIC HEALTH	
	Vol: 18 No: 2	
 	AUTHOR(S): Ashton, T	
08/00/1995	TRAFFIC CALMING COLLECTOR STREETS PORTLAND'S EXPERIENCE	<u> </u>
	Conference: 65th ITE Annual Meeting, 1995 Compendium of	
	Technical Papers	
	AUTHOR(S): Burchfield, RM	
09/00/1995	SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC CALMING	<u>More</u>
	Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 65 No: 9	
	AUTHOR(S): Walter, CE	
00/00/1989	TRAFFIC CALMING	<u>More</u>
00/00/1994	TRAFFIC CALMING DO'S AND DON'TS	More
	Conference: Compendium of Technical Papers, 64th ITE	
	Annual Meeting	
	AUTHOR(S): Drdul, R	
00/00/1996	REESTABLISHING TRUST: DEVELOPING A	<u> More</u>
	COMMUNITY-BASED TRAFFIC CALMING PROGRAM	
	Conference: Moving Forward in a Scaled-Back World.	
	Chailenges and Opportunities for the Transportation	
	AUTHOR(S). Smith B	
00/00/1006	TPAFFIC CALMING. THE LOCAL ADEA TRAFFIC	- I More
00/00/1990	MANAGEMENT (LATM) APPROACH	<u> </u>
	Conference: Moving Forward in a Scaled-Back World	
	Challenges and Opportunities for the Transportation	
	Professional, 1996 ITE International Conference.	
	AUTHOR(S): Perone, JP	
07/00/1995	TRAFFIC CALMING	More
	AUTHOR(S): Hoyle, CL	
00/00/1995	TRAFFIC CALMING - IDEAS INTO PRACTICE	More
	Conference: Technology Tools for Transportation	
	Professionals - Moving into the 21st Century. Resource Papers	
-	for the 1995 International Conference.	
ļ	AUTHOR(S): O'Brien, A	-
00/00/1997	WHAT IS TRAFFIC CALMING?	More
	Conference: Transportation and Sustainable Communities.	
	Challenges and Opportunities for the Transportation	8
	Protessional, 1997 ITE International Conference.	
	AUTHOK(S): Kulash, W	

 $\{ {\boldsymbol{\gamma}}_{i}, {\boldsymbol$

an vivan Vivan Samanan

ò

00/00/1997	WHAT IS TRAFFIC CALM	/ING?	and the second	<u>More</u>
	Conference: Transportation the Transportation Professic Conference.	n and Sustainable Communimal. 1997 ITE Internation	nities for Ial	
00/00/1007	AUTHOR(S): LUCKWOOD,			
00/00/1997	URBAN TRAFFIC CALMI CONFORMANCE WITH A GUIDELINES Conference: Traffic Conges Century: Challenges, Innova AUTHOR(S): Davis, WJ	NG MEASURES - AASHTO AND MUTCD stion and Traffic Safety in ations, and Opportunities	the 21st	<u> </u> <u>More</u>
07/00/1997	TRAFFIC CALMING IN A NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFF Journal: ITE Journal Vol: (AUTHOR(S): Brindle, R	USTRALIA - MORE TH FIC MANAGEMENT 67 No: 7	IAN	More
07/00/1997	DEVELOPING A CANAD CALMING Journal: ITE Journal Vol: AUTHOR(S): Chartier, G	IAN GUIDE TO TRAFF	IC .	<u>More</u>
07/00/1997	TRAFFIC CALMING IN E Journal: ITE Journal Vol: AUTHOR(S): Schlabbach,	UROPE 67 No: 7 K		<u> More</u>
07/00/1997	ITE TRAFFIC CALMING Journal: ITE Journal Vol: AUTHOR(S): Lockwood,	DEFINITION 67 No: 7 IM		<u> More</u>
00/00/1997	SAFETY BENEFITS OF T Journal: Transportation Re AUTHOR(S): Geddes, E	RAFFIC CALMING esearch Record No: 1578		<u>More</u>
00/00/1997	RENEWED COMMITMEN PEDESTRIAN SAFETY Journal: Transportation Re AUTHOR(S): Nederveen,	NT TO TRAFFIC CALM esearch Record No: 1578 AAJ	ING FOR	<u> More</u>
01/00/1998	NEGATIVE EFFECTS OF DEVICES AND THEIR IM IMPACT OF TRAFFIC CA ENVIRONMENT Journal: Transportation Re Environment Vol: 3 No: 1 AUTHOR(S): Dunne, M	MID-BLOCK SPEED C (PORTANCE IN THE O ALMING ON THE esearch. Part D: Transport	ONTROL VERALL	<u>More</u>
01/00/1998	TRAFFIC CALMING - A O VARIETY OF SOLUTION Journal: APWA Reporter	COMMON CHALLENG S Vol: 65 No: 1	E WITH A	<u>More</u>
Criteria: TR Search Peri Sort: PUBD Display: 51-	AFFIC AND CALMING od: ALL ATE 75 of Total Found: 223	Records Collection 135 TITLES 100 ABSTRACTS 132 KEYWORDS		

ibrary



Select the items below by checking the boxes, then select a function from the BASKET CONTROL panel above.

Select/Deselect all displayed items

Pages: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Date	Description	More	
00/00/1990	CALMING TRAFFIC IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS AUTHOR(S): Tolley, R	<u>More</u>	
03/00/1991	TRAFFIC CALMING - HOW MUCH FOR KINGHURST? Journal: Traffic Engineering and Control Vol: 32 No: 3 AUTHOR(S): Dain, M	<u>More</u>	
01/00/1991	MODEL PROJECT 'AREA-WIDE TRAFFIC CALMING'. DOCUMENTATION OF MEASURES MODEL AREA 'BERLIN-MOABIT' AUTHOR(S): Buettner, C		
02/00/1992	TRAFFIC CALMING DESIGN - A SPEED MANAGEMENT METHOD Journal: Accident Analysis and Prevention Vol: 24 No: 1 AUTHOR(S): Herrstedt, L	<u>More</u>	
02/00/1992	LOCAL STREET SPEED MANAGEMENT IN AUSTRALIA - IS IT "TRAFFIC CALMING"? Journal: Accident Analysis and Prevention Vol: 24 No: 1 AUTHOR(S): Brindle, Ray	<u> I More</u>	
02/00/1992	SPEED MANAGEMENT AND TRAFFIC CALMING IN URBAN AREAS IN EUROPE: A HISTORICAL VIEW Journal: Accident Analysis and Prevention Vol: 24 No: 1 AUTHOR(S): Herrstedt, L	<u>More.</u>	
09/00/1991	PROJECT: AREA-WIDE TRAFFIC CALMING. VOL. 6. DOCUMENTATION OF MEASURES, PART ESSLINGEN AUTHOR(S): Buettner, C	<u>More.</u>	

-11 63

, Ì

09/00/1993	GEOMETRIC ASPECTS OF TRAFFIC CALMING IN	1 More
	SHARED STREETS	<u> </u>
	Conference: Compendium of Technical Papers, ITE, 63rd	
	Annual Meeting	
	AUTHOR(S): Craus, J	
00/00/1999	TRAFFIC CALMING: A COMPILATION OF TECHNICAL	<u>More</u>
	REPORTS, PAPERS, CONTACTS, FACT SHEETS, AND SEMINAR MATERIALS	
00/00/1993	TOWARDS TRAFFIC CALMING: A PRACTIONERS'	More
	MANUAL OF IMPLEMENTED LOCAL AREA TRAFFIC	
	MANAGEMENT AND BLACKOUT DEVICES.	
	AUTHOR(S): HAWLEY, LUDMILLA.	
00/00/1992	TRAFFIC CALMING IN BETHESDA AND	<u> </u>
	CRICKHOWELL = LLEDDU TRAFFIG YM METHESDA A	
	CHRUCYWEL.	
00/00/1994	LIVING WITH TRAFFIC: TWENTY-SEVEN	<u>More</u>
	CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE ART AND PRACTICE OF	
- -	TRAFFIC CALMING, 1978-1992.	
	Journal: ROAD & TRANSPORT RESEARCH.	
	AUTHOR(S): BRINDLE, R. E.	
00/00/1995	RESIDENTIAL CARE: TRAFFIC CALMING IS MORE	<u> More</u>
	THAN JUST A MATTER OF ROAD HUMPS	
-	Journal: HIGHWAYS.	
	AUTHOR(S): BULPHT, MALCOLM.	
00/00/1995	TRAFFIC CALMING: VEHICLE ACTIVATED SPEED	<u> More</u>
	LIMIT REMINDER SIGNS.	
	AUTHOR(S): WEBSTER, DAVID C.	
00/00/1995	THE EFFECTS OF TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES ON VEHICLE DYNAMICS.	<u> </u>
00/00/1996	LIVING WITH TRAFFIC: TWENTY-SEVEN	<u>More</u>
	CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE ART AND PRACTICE OF	
	TRAFFIC CALMING, 1979-1992.	
prostou ere ado en reterritamo in direce e endo, esta in secos	AUTHOR(S): BRINDLE, RAY.	
00/00/1996	RESULTS OF TRAFFIC CALMING STREET DESIGN	<u> More</u>
	EFFORTS IN NORWAY.	
	Journal: SAMFERDSEL	
	AUTHOR(S): AAS, HARALD.	
00/00/1995	TRAFFIC CALMING: VEHICLE NOISE EMISSIONS	<u> </u>
	ALONGSIDE SPEED CONTROL CUSHIONS AND ROAD	
	HUMPS.	
	AUTHOR(S): ABBOTT, PHIL.	
00/00/1996	THE EFFECT OF TRAFFIC CALMING ON NOISE	More
	LEVELS.	
	Journal: NOISE CONTROL, THE NEXT 25 YEARS.	
	AUTHOR(S): MARSTEIN, A.	

00/00/1993	TRAFFIC CALMING: THE	E SOLUTION TO URBAN	<u>More.</u>
	IRAFFIC AND A NEW VI	SION FOR NEIGHBORHOOD	
	LIVABILIIY.		-
	TP ANSPORTATION	ADVOCATING RESPONSIBLE	
00/00/1007	DENTLODDIC & CANAD		
00/00/1997	DEVELOPING A CANAD.	IAN GUIDE TO TRAFFIC	<u>More.</u>
	CALIMING.		
	ATTEOD(S), DV MILE S	VENIE ET AL	
	AUTHOR(S). BT MIRE S	NENC CLAG.	
09/00/1997	THE EFFECTS OF TRAFF	IC CALMING MEASURES ON	<u> </u>
r or an a fair an	VEHICLE AND IKAFFIC		
	JOUFNAI: IRAFFIC ENGIN	EEKING AND CONTROL,	
	AUIDOR(S): ABBUII, P	· · · ·	
00/00/1997	ADAPTATION OF DANIS	H TRAFFIC CALMING DESIGN	<u> </u>
	PRINCIPLES IN THE REC	CONSTRUCTION OF A	
	COLLECTOR STREET IN	A SCHOOL ZONE.	
	DISTRICT & SATU ANNU	OF TECHNICAL PAPERS: ITE	
	AUTHOD(S). STEELAN I	AL MEETING. DADVI	
	AUIHOR(S): STEFFAN,	DARIL.	
00/00/1997	CALMING THE COMMUN	NITY: TRAFFIC CALMING IN	More
	DOWNTOWN SACRAME	NT.	
	Journal: COMPENDIUM	OF TECHNICAL PAPERS: THE	
•	DISTRICT 6 SOTH ANNU.	AL MEETING.	
	AUTHOR(S): BROWN, S	IEVEN J.	· · · · · ·
03/17/1995	SUCCESSFUL TRAFFIC (CALMING IN HOWARD	<u> More.</u>
	COUNTY, MD		
	Journal: URBAN TRANSI	PORTATION MONITOR,	
Criteria: TR/	AFFIC AND CALMING	Becords Collection	
Search Perio	od: ALL	135 TITLES	
Sort: PUBD		100 ABSTRACTS	

Pages: 1|2|3|4|5|6|7|8|9|

TRIS is a bibliographic database funded by sponsors of the <u>Transportation Research Board</u> (TRB), primarily the state departments of transportation and selected federal transportation agencies. TRIS Online is hosted by the <u>National Transportation Library</u> under a cooperative agreement between the <u>Bureau of Transportation Statistics</u> and TRB.

How BTS protects your privacy when you visit our website.

132 KEYWORDS

Display: 76-100 of Total Found: 223

en i Si i çasi 7/26/00 1:32 PM

.



Date	Description	More
12/00/1986	TRAFFIC OPENING OF NEW DWELLING-HOUSE GROUPS BY APPLICATION OF PRACTICABLE SIDEWALKS WITH ADDITIONAL ELEMENTS FOR TRAFFIC CALMING Journal: DIE STRASSE Vol: 26 No: 12 AUTHOR(S): SCHNEIDER, U	<u>More</u>
05/00/1988	QUALITY STREETS: HOW TRADITIONAL URBAN CENTRES BENEFIT FROM TRAFFIC-CALMING Journal: TEST REPORT ; No: N75	<u> More</u>
00/00/1989	DEVELOPMENT OF TRAFFIC CALMING IN A HEAVILY-TRAFFICKED SHOPPING STREET Journal: TRAFFIC ENGINEERING & CONTROL Vol: 30 No: 10 AUTHOR(S): HOPKINSON, PG	<u>More.</u>
00/00/1989	THREE GENERATIONS OF TRAFFIC CALMING IN THE FEDERAL REPUBLIC OF GERMANY Journal: PLANNING AND TRANSPORT RESEARCH AND COMPUTATION AUTHOR(S): KELLER, HH	<u>More</u>
01/00/1990	THE THEORY AND PRACTICE OF TRAFFIC CALMING: CAN BRITAIN LEARN FROM THE GERMAN EXPERIENCE? Journal: TRANSPORT AND SOCIETY DISCUSSION PAPER ; No: 10	<u> More</u>

1 of 3

 $\frac{|\mathbf{k}|}{|\mathbf{k}|} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{j=1}^{n} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{i=1}^{n$

ì.

ė, "

	AUTHOR(S): HASS-KLAU, C	
04/00/1990	SPEED MANAGEMENT AND THE ROLE OF TRAFFIC CALMING IN ROAD SAFETY Journal: RESEARCH PAPER EDINBURGH COLLEGE OF ART, DEPT OF No: 35 AUTHOR(S): PHARAOH, T	<u> More</u>
00/00/1990	MEASURES FOR TRAFFIC CALMING IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS Journal: THE WHEEL EXTENDED No: 73 AUTHOR(S): MICHIYASU, O	<u>More</u>
06/00/1991	TRAFFIC CALMING IN AUSTRALIA: A DEFINITION AND COMMENTARY Journal: AUSTRALIAN ROAD RESEARCH Vol: 21 No: 2 AUTHOR(S): BRINDLE, RE	<u>More</u>
06/00/1991	TRAFFIC CALMING GUIDELINES AUTHOR(S): PHARAOH, TC	<u>More</u>
00/00/1991	A METHODOLOGY FOR RANKING AREA WIDE TRAFFIC CALMING SCHEMES Journal: PLANNING AND TRANSPORT RESEARCH AND COMPUTATION Vol: P341 AUTHOR(S): WILTSHIRE, PJ	<u>More</u>
00/00/1991	TRAFFIC CALMING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT POLICY Journal: PLANNING AND TRANSPORT RESEARCH AND COMPUTATION Vol: P341 AUTHOR(S): SCHLABBACH, K	<u>More</u>
00/00/1999	TRAFFIC CALMING IN NEW DEVELOPMENTS: AVOIDING THE NEED FOR FUTURE FIXES Journal: Transportation Research Record No: 1685 AUTHOR(S): Ewing, R	<u>More</u>
01/00/2000	TRAFFIC-CALMING BASICS Journal: Civil Engineering Vol: 70 No: 1 AUTHOR(S): Knapp, KK	<u>More</u>
00/00/1992	TRAFFIC CALMING (1990-1992): A SELECTION OF ABSTRACTS ADDED TO THE TRL LIBRARY DATABASE DURING THE ABOVE PERIOD	<u>More</u>
00/00/1993	TRAFFIC CALMING CAN IT BE DONE IN AMERICA?. Journal: TRANSPORTATION QUARTERLY, AUTHOR(S): GRAVA, SIGURD	<u>More</u>
00/00/1993	PLANNING TOOLS FOR AREA-WIDE URBAN TRAFFIC CALMING. Journal: STRASSENVERKEHRSTECHNIK. AUTHOR(S): TOPP, HARTMUT H.	<u>More</u>
00/00/1991	PEDESTRIAN SAFETY AND TRAFFIC CALMING / Journal: PROCEEDINGS (CHARTERED INSTITUTE OF TRANSPORT)	<u>More</u>

7/26/00 1:33 PM

	AUTHOR(S): DICKINS, IA	VN S. J.	
00/00/1993	TRAFFIC CALMING AND	AMBULANCE SERVICES	<u>More</u>
	Journal: ZEITSCHRIFT FU	∏R	
	VERKEHRSWISSENSCHA		
	AUTHOR(S): LEVEN, FRA	ANZ-JOSEF.	100,000
05/23/1994	ADMINISTRATION PLAN	FOR AIR TRAFFIC REFORM	<u> </u>
	FAILS TO CALM QUALM	S IN CONGRESS, INDUSIRY /	
	AUTHOR(S): BY PAUL PAUL	AGE.	
00/00/1992	A TRIAL OF TRAFFIC CA	LMING ON A SUB-ARTERIAL	More
	ROAD IN SYDNEY.		
	Journal: PROCEEDINGS I	PENZ ANNUAL CONFERENCE.	
	AUTHOR(S): BARNES, JO	DHN W.	
00/00/1998	00/00/1998 SLOW DOWN, YOU'RE GOING TOO FAST!: THE		<u> </u>
	COMMUNITY GUIDE TO	TRAFFIC CALMING.	
	AUTHOR(S): PUBLIC TECHNILOGY, INC.		
00/00/1998	CITY OF CALABASAS CI	FYWIDE TRAFFIC CALMING	<u>More</u>
	PROGRAM (MULHOLLAND HIGHWAY CASE STUDY).		
	Journal: 1998 COMPENDI	UM OF TECHNICAL PAPERS.	
	AUTHOR(S): KHOKSHID, ANOIEL F.		
00/00/1998	NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFF	IC MANAGEMENT: THE	<u> More</u>
	CHALLENGE IN GAINING RESIDENT CONSENSUS TO		
	Implement TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES.		
	AUTHOR(S): BRINE, AN	FONY.	-
00/00/1998	A SURVEY OF TRAFFIC (CALMING PRACTICES IN THE	More
	UNITED STATES.		
	AUTHOR(S): DEAKIN, ELIZABETH.		
00/00/1999	TRAFFIC CALMING: STA	TE OF THE PRACTICE.	More
	AUTHOR(S): EWING, REID H.		1
Criteria: TR	AFFIC AND CALMING	Records Collection	
Search Period: ALL		135 TITLES	
Sort: PUBDATE Display: 101-125 of Total Found: 223		100 ABSTRACTS	

Pages: 1|2|3|4|5|6|7|8|9|

132 KEYWORDS

TRIS is a bibliographic database funded by sponsors of the <u>Transportation Research Board</u> (TRB), primarily the state departments of transportation and selected federal transportation agencies. TRIS Online is hosted by the <u>National Transportation Library</u> under a cooperative agreement between the <u>Bureau of Transportation Statistics</u> and TRB.

How BTS protects your privacy when you visit our website,

£83



Pages: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Date	Description	More
00/00/1997	SOME AUSTRALIAN EXPERIENCES WITH WARRANTS Conference: Transportation and Sustainable Communities for the Transportation Professional. 1997 ITE International Conference AUTHOR(S): Brindle, R	<u> </u>
03/00/1998	NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT: PROCESS AND RESULTS Conference: Harmonizing Transportation and Community Goals - The Challenge for Today's Transportation Professional. ITE International Conference AUTHOR(S): Fox, WC	<u>More</u>
00/00/1997	NARROW RESIDENTIAL STREETS: DO THEY REALLY SLOW DOWN SPEEDS? Conference: Institute of Transportation Engineers 67th Annual Meeting AUTHOR(S): Daisa, JM	<u>More</u>
10/00/1998	HOW THEY HELP COMMUNITIES: TRAFFIC ENGINEERING STUDIES Journal: Public Works Vol: 129 No: 11	<u> </u>
00/00/1998	METHOD FOR ESTIMATING EFFECT OF TRAFFIC VOLUME AND SPEED ON PEDESTRIAN SAFETY FOR RESIDENTIAL STREETS Journal: Transportation Research Record No: 1636 AUTHOR(S): Davis, GA	<u>More</u>

and the second se

ŝ

ċ.

12/00/1997	SPEED LIMIT REDUCTIONS IN BUILT-UP AREAS: EFFECTS ON SPEED AND ACCIDENTS	
12/00/1998	DRIVE NICELY Journal: Planning Vol: 64 No: 12 AUTHOR(S): Knack, RE	<u> </u>
00/00/1998	NMA SAYS IT'S STANDING UP FOR MOTORIST RIGHTS Journal: Driver/Education Vol: 8 No: 4	<u>More</u>
09/00/1997	A STUDY ON SPEED HUMPS AUTHOR(S): Giese, KL	<u> </u>
00/00/1997	CHAPTER 21: PUTTING PEOPLE AT THE CENTER OF PLANNING IN BRITAIN: FROM 'FEET FIRST' TO 'STREETS FOR PEOPLE'. FROM THE GREENING OF URBAN TRANSPORT, EDITION 2. AUTHOR(S): Hanna, J	<u>More</u>
03/00/1999	INVESTIGATING SPEED MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES AUTHOR(S): Fitzpatrick, K	<u> </u>
00/00/1999	DESIGNING SPEED CONTROLLED SUBDIVISIONS WITHOUT ROAD HUMPS Conference: Enhancing Transportation Safety in the 21st Century ITE International Conference AUTHOR(S): Butzier, D	<u> More</u>
09/00/1998	HANDBOOK OF SPEED MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES AUTHOR(S): Fitzpatrick, K	<u>More</u>
00/00/1999	CALMING NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC WITH SPEED HUMPS: COMPARING POLICIES AND PROGRAMS IN METRO ATLANTA Conference: Transportation Frontiers for the Next Millennium: 69th Annual Meeting of the Institute of Transportation Engineers AUTHOR(S): Chalmers, LA	<u> More</u>
00/00/1999	EVALUATION OF VDOT'S TRAFFIC CALMING GUIDE AND PILOT PROGRAM Conference: Transportation Frontiers for the Next Millennium: 69th Annual Meeting of the Institute of Transportation Engineers AUTHOR(S): Arnold, ED, Jr	<u> </u>
00/00/1999	DESIGNING SPEED CONTROLLED SUBDIVISIONS WITHOUT ROAD HUMPS Conference: Transportation Frontiers for the Next Millennium: 69th Annual Meeting of the Institute of Transportation Engineers AUTHOR(S): Fuess, M	<u> </u>
00/00/1999	"TRAFFIC CALMING" ON ARTERIAL ROADWAYS? Conference: Transportation Frontiers for the Next Millennium: 69th Annual Meeting of the Institute of Transportation	<u> More</u>

	Engineers		4	
05/00/1000	AUTHOR(S): Skene, M			
05/20/1999	Conference: Transportation	ARTERIALSCON	Fillannium	<u> </u>
	69th Annual Meeting of the I	Institute of Transportation	menuum. n	-
	Engineers			-
· · · · · · · · · · · · ·	AUTHOR(S): Robinson, CC			
00/00/1999	0/00/1999 TRAFFIC CALMING IN THE NETHERLANDS			<u>More</u>
	Conference: Transportation	Frontiers for the Next M	fillennium:	
69th Annual Meeting of the Institute of Transportation			n	
	Lugineers		-	
11/00/1000	AUTION(5), UC WIL, I			
11/00/1999	SHOPPING CENTER TRAI	S TO KOUNDABOUT . FFIC WOES	IO CALM	
	Journal: Pavement Vol: 14	Nat 7		
	AUTHOR(S): Shenkle, LA			
08/00/1999	08/00/1999 TRAFFIC CALMING. STATE OF THE PRACTICE			More
	AUTHOR(S): Ewing, R		•	
02/00/2000	A MODEL OF SPEED PRO	FILES FOR TRAFFIC	CALMED	<u>More</u>
-	ROADS			
Journal: Transportation Research. Part A: Policy and Practice				-
	Vol: 34 No: 2			
	AUTHOR(S): Barbosa, HM			
02/00/2000 PORTLAND'S CITY-WIDE SPEED BUMP STUDY:			r:	<u> </u>
	Journal: Public Works Vol:	131 No: 2		
00/00/1999	CAUTION, SPEED BUMPS	S AHEAD: THE DEMA	ND FOR	<u>More</u>
	TRAFFIC CALMING IS RISING, BUT MAKING STREETS			
	SAFER AND MORE COMFORTABLE FOR PEOPLE IS			
	STILL LARGELY UNMAPPED TERRAIN.			
	AUTHOR(S): ORRICK PF	N. TYLLIS	a ta se	
00/00/1998	EFFECT OF AREA WIDE	TRAFFIC CALMING IN	J TAPAN'	More
	ACCIDENT AND SOCIO-	ECONOMIC STUDIES	OF	
	JAPANESE "ROAD-PIA" P	ROJECTS IN 1980S.		
	Journal: URBAN TRANSP	ORT IV.		
AUTHOR(S): TUCHIHASHI, M				
Criteria: TRA	AFFIC AND CALMING	Records Collection		
Search Period: ALL		135 TITLES		
Display: 126-150 of Total Found: 223		100 ABSTRACTS 132 KEYWORDS		

Pages: 1 |2| 3 |4| 5 |6| 7 |8| 9|
1 of 4



Select the items below by checking the boxes, then select a function from the BASKET CONTROL panel above.

Select/Deselect all displayed items

Pages: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Date	Description	More
12/00/1992	ROAD HUMS FOR THE CONTROL OF VEHICLE SPEEDS Journal: Traffic Engineering and Control Vol: 34 No: 1 AUTHOR(S): Lines, CJ	<u>More</u>
00/00/1993	AN IMPROVED TRAFFIC ENVIRONMENT: A CATALOGUE OF IDEAS	<u>More</u>
09/00/1993	RESIDENTIAL STREET DESIGN - DO THE BRITISH AND AUSTRALIANS KNOW SOMETHING WE AMERICANS DON'T? Conference: Compendium of Technical Papers, ITE, 63rd Annual Meeting AUTHOR(S): Ewing, R	<u>More</u>
04/00/1994	A VERKEHRSBERUHIGUNG DESIGN FOR AN AMERICAN ROAD Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 64 No: 4 AUTHOR(S): Halperin, K	<u> More</u>
00/00/1994	RESIDENTIAL STREET DESIGN: DO THE BRITISH AND AUSTRALIANS KNOW SOMETHING AMERICANS DO NOT? Journal: Transportation Research Record No: 1455 AUTHOR(S): Ewing, R	<u> </u>
00/00/1995	THE MODERN ROUNDABOUT ARRIVES IN VERMONT Journal: AASHTO Quarterly Magazine Vol: 75 No: 1 AUTHOR(S): Redington, T	<u> </u>

ι,

07/00/1997	ROUNDABOUTS - CURRENT SWEDISH PRACTICE AND RESEARCH Conference: Third International Symposium on Intersections	<u> More</u>
	AUTHOR(S): Bergh. T	
01/00/1998	NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT: DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA'S STREET CLOSURE EXPERIENCE Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 68 No: 1 AUTHOR(S): Castellone, AJ	<u> More</u>
02/00/1998	SPEED HUMP EFFECTIVENESS AND PUBLIC ACCEPTANCE Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 68 No: 2 AUTHOR(S): Ballard, A	<u>More</u>
00/00/1997	TRANSPORTATION AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES: CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR TRANSPORTATION PROFESSIONALS. RESOURCE PAPERS	<u> I More…</u>
08/00/1998	TWO FOR TEA Journal: Planning Vol: 64 No: 6 AUTHOR(S): Wormser, L	<u>I More</u>
09/00/1998	BETTER USE OF ROAD CAPACITY - WHAT HAPPENS TO THE TRAFFIC? Journal: Public Transport International Vol: 47 No: 5 AUTHOR(S): Cairns, S	<u>More</u>
00/00/1998	MEASURES TO REDUCE THE CO2-EMISSIONS FROM THE TRANSPORT SECTOR IN THE CITY OF STOCKHOLM Conference: Fourth International Conference on Urban Transport and Environment for the 21st Century (Edited by C Borrego and L Sucharov) AUTHOR(S): Lindqvist, E	<u>More</u>
00/00/1997	CHAPTER 18: ALTERNATIVE POLICIES FOR REDUCING DEPENDENCE ON THE CAR. FROM THE GREENING OF URBAN TRANSPORT, EDITION 2. AUTHOR(S): Adams, J	<u>More</u>
06/00/1999	CENTRAL ARTERY TO PUMP NEW LIFE INTO BOSTON Journal: American City and County Vol: 114 No: 6 AUTHOR(S): Beck, D	<u> </u>
02/00/1999	INVESTIGATING THE EFFECTS OF ROADWAY DESIGN ON DRIVER BEHAVIOR: APPLICATIONS FOR MINNESOTA HIGHWAY DESIGN AUTHOR(S): Carmody, J	<u>More</u>
00/00/1999	HARMONIZATION PROGRAMSWHAT IS THE ROLE OF LIABILITY? Conference: Enhancing Transportation Safety in the 21st Century ITE International Conference AUTHOR(S): Beaubien, RF	<u> </u>

-

prostation of

ALC: NOT

3 of 4

00/00/1999	MULTI-WAY STOPSTHE	E RESEARCH SHOWS THE	<u>More</u>
	Conference: Transportation 69th Annual Meeting of the I Engineers	Frontiers for the Next Millennium: nstitute of Transportation	
	AUTHOR(S): Bretherton, V	VM, Jr	
00/00/1999	PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT I COUNTY NEIGHBORHOC PROGRAM Conference: Transportation 69th Annual Meeting of the I Engineers	IN THE ATHENS-CLARKE D TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT Frontiers for the Next Millennium: nstitute of Transportation	<u> </u>
	AUTHOR(S): Clark, DE		2
00/00/1994	DEVELOPMENTS IN TRA EUROPE : THE CASE OF A SPEED	NSPORT TELEMATICS IN AUTOMATIC DEBITING AT	<u> I More</u>
	Symposium (16th : 1994 : Pr AUTHOR(S): Hills, P.	iladelphia, Pa.). Technical digest	
01/00/2000	TOWARDS A NORTH AM STANDARD FOR SPEED I Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 7 AUTHOR(S): Braaksma, JF	ERICAN GEOMETRIC DESIGN HUMPS 0 No: 1	<u> </u>
00/00/1999	STREET RECLAIMING: C. AND VIBRANT COMMUN AUTHOR(S): Engwicht, D	REATING LIVABLE STREETS	<u> </u>
00/00/1995	A WORD ON THE STREE Journal: WORLD TRANSF AUTHOR(S): JAMES, AL	Г. PORT POLICY & PRACTICE, AN.	<u> </u>
00/00/1998	TRANSPORT POLICY-MAKING: THE CURSE OF THE UNCOMFORTABLE CONSEQUENCE Journal: JOURNAL OF TRANSPORT GEOGRAPHY, AUTHOR(S): BLACK, COLIN.		More.
12/18/1998	SPOKANE IMPLEMENTS PROVIDE FOR EXTRA PA Journal: URBAN TRANSP	ANGLED PARKING TO RKING ORTATION MONITOR,	<u>More.</u>
Criteria: TR/ Search Peri Sort: PUBD Display: 151	AFFIC AND CALMING od: ALL ATE -175 of Total Found: 223	Records Collection 135 TITLES 100 ABSTRACTS 132 KEYWORDS	

Pages: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9



	STUDY NO. 16: A STUDY OF BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN PROGRAMS IN EUROPEAN COUNTRIES AUTHOR(S): Wynne, GG	
00/00/1992	WINNING BACK THE CITIES AUTHOR(S): Kenworthy, J	<u>More</u>
12/00/1994	A GUIDEBOOK FOR RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT. FINAL REPORT AUTHOR(S): Ewell, J	<u>More.</u>
11/00/1994	BICYCLING & WALKING IN THE NINETIES AND BEYOND: APPLYING SCANDINAVIAN EXPERIENCE TO AMERICA'S CHALLENGES AUTHOR(S): Gilleran, BF	<u>More.</u>
05/00/1995	TAKE BACK YOUR STREETS: HOW TO PROTECT COMMUNITIES FROM ASPHALT AND TRAFFIC	<u>More.</u>
00/00/1993	SPEED BEHAVIOUR AND TRAFFIC SECURITY AT REGIONALLY SMOOTHED TRAFFIC AUTHOR(S): Blanke, H	<u>More.</u>
00/00/1995	EVALUATION OF DIFFERENT TYPES OF PEDESTRIAN-VEHICLE SEPARATIONS Journal: Transportation Research Record No: 1502	<u> <u> </u></u>

F.C.

201

	AUTHOR(S): Sarkar, S	
10/00/1995	BICYCLE FACILITY PLANNING: A RESOURCE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AUTHOR(S): Musser, T	<u> More</u>
00/00/1995	TECHNOLOGY TOOLS FOR TRANSPORTATION PROFESSIONALS - MOVING INTO THE 21ST CENTURY Conference: Technology Tools for Transportation Professionals - Moving into the 21st Century	<u>More</u>
04/00/1995	BICYCLE SAFETY-RELATED RESEARCH SYNTHESIS AUTHOR(S): Clarke, A	<u>More</u>
12/00/1995	SUMMARY REPORT OF THE FHWA STUDY TOUR FOR SPEED MANAGEMENT AND ENFORCEMENT TECHNOLOGY	<u>_1 More</u>
00/00/1996	PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES IN SOUTH AFRICA: RESEARCH AND PRACTICE Journal: Transportation Research Record No: 1538 AUTHOR(S): Ribbens, H	<u> More</u>
00/00/1996	DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC AND PARKING NEEDS RELATED TO DOWNTOWN ECONOMIC TRENDS Journal: Transportation Research Record No: 1552 AUTHOR(S): Edwards, JD	<u>More</u>
00/00/1997	TRAFFIC CONGESTION AND TRAFFIC SAFETY IN THE 21ST CENTURY: CHALLENGES, INNOVATIONS, AND OPPORTUNITIES. PROCEEDINGS OF THE CONFERENCE, CHICAGO, ILLINOIS, JUNE 8-11, 1997 Conference: Traffic Congestion and Traffic Safety in the 21st Century: Challenges, Innovations, and Opportunities	<u> More</u>
08/00/1997	INTEGRATION OF TRANSPORTATION AND LAND USE PLANNING THROUGH RESIDENTIAL STREET DESIGN Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 67 No: 8 AUTHOR(S): Lowe, A	<u> More</u>
00/00/1997	WINDOWED TRANSPORTATION PLANNING MODEL Journal: Transportation Research Record No: 1607 AUTHOR(S): Huang, Y	<u>More</u>
00/00/1998	DRIVING OUT SUBSIDIES Journal: ALTERNATIVES JOURNAL Vol: 24 No: 1 AUTHOR(S): Litman, T	<u>More</u>
01/00/1998	WILL 'FEEWAYS' LOOSEN L.A. COUNTY GRIDLOCK? Journal: Civil Engineering News Vol: 9 No: 12	<u> </u>
01/12/1998	ROADS LESS TAKEN Journal: ENR Vol: 240 No: 2 AUTHOR(S): Cho, A	<u>_1 More</u>
03/00/1998	PARTNERS IN MOTION: D.C. CONGESTION BUSTERS Journal: Public Roads Vol: 61 No: 5 AUTHOR(S): Marston, P	<u> More</u>

 $\{\cdot, i\}$

00/00/1997	NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFF Conference: Institute of Tra Meeting AUTHOR(S): Krueger, CL	IC CONTROLS IN CHI insportation Engineers 6	ICAGO 7th Annual	<u> More</u>
07/00/1998	PIONEERING CHANGE IN Journal: Roads and Bridges AUTHOR(S): Schneider, K	N PENNSYLVANIA Vol: 36 No: 7		<u> More</u>
12/00/1996	AN AUSTRALIAN REVIE AND THE LAND PLANNI Conference: Second Nation AUTHOR(S): Brindle, RE	W OF ACCESS MANA NG CONNECTION al Access Management (GEMENT Conference	<u> More</u>
00/00/1998	MEASURING THE SAFET BICYCLE CROSSINGS US METHODOLOGY Journal: Transportation Res AUTHOR(S): Garder, P	Y EFFECT OF RAISEI SING A NEW RESEAR search Record No: 1636) CH	<u>More</u>
Criteria: TR/	AFFIC AND CALMING	Pacarda Collection		

Search Period: ALL Sort: PUBDATE Display: 176-200 of Total Found: 223 Lecords Collection 135 TITLES 100 ABSTRACTS 132 KEYWORDS

Pages: 1 |2|3|4|5|6|7|8|9|

TRIS is a bibliographic database funded by sponsors of the <u>Transportation Research Board</u> (TRB), primarily the state departments of transportation and selected federal transportation agencies. TRIS Online is hosted by the <u>National Transportation Library</u> under a cooperative agreement between the <u>Bureau of Transportation Statistics</u> and TRB.

How BTS protects your privacy when you visit our website.



	AUTHOR(S): Siemer, BC	
00/00/1999	TRAFFIC MITIGATION SUCCESS STORIES IN PHOENIX Conference: Transportation Frontiers for the Next Millennium 69th Annual Meeting of the Institute of Transportation Engineers	<u> More</u>
	AUTHOR(S): Dittberner, RA	
00/00/1999	ROUNDABOUTSTHE ROUND SOLUTION DOES NOT ALWAYS FIT THE SQUARE PROBLEM	<u>More</u>
	Conference: Transportation Frontiers for the Next Millennium: 69th Annual Meeting of the Institute of Transportation Engineers AUTHOR(S): Henry, MJ	
00/00/1999	SCHOOL CROSSING SAFETY IMPROVEMENT STUDY Conference: Transportation Frontiers for the Next Millennium: 69th Annual Meeting of the Institute of Transportation Engineers AUTHOR(S): Yu, L	<u>More</u>
00/00/1998	NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC CONTROL PLANNING FOR SMALL CITIES Conference: Crossroads 2000 AUTHOR(S): Hartman, L	<u> More</u>
07/00/1999	CITY OF PLANO NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PROGRAM Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 69 No: 7 AUTHOR(S): Langston, AC	<u>1 More</u>
00/00/1999	SMART GROWTH FACE-OFF SPARKS DEBATE Journal: HMAT Vol: 4 No: 3	More
01/00/2000	THE ECONOMIC IMPACT OF SPEED HUMPS ON HOUSING VALUES Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 70 No: 1 AUTHOR(S): Bretherton, WM, Jr	<u>More</u>
00/00/1999	STREET DESIGN GUIDELINES FOR HEALTHY NEIGHBORHOODS	<u> </u>
00/00/1999	TRAFFIC ENGINEERING HANDBOOK. FIFTH EDITION	More
03/00/2000	HITTING THEM WITH THE HARDWARE Journal: Roads and Bridges Vol: 38 No: 3 AUTHOR(S): Wilkins, W	<u>More</u>
03/00/2000	SIGNS OF THINGS TO COME: SAFETY INNOVATIONS ARE UNVEILED AT ATSSA'S 30TH ANNUAL CONVENTION AND TRAFFIC EXPO Journal: Roads and Bridges Vol: 38 No: 3	<u>More</u>
03/00/2000	ANALYSIS AND DEVELOPMENT OF NEW INSIGHT INTO SUBSTITUTION (ADONIS) OF SHORT CAR TRIPS BY CYCLING AND WALKING Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 70 No: 3	<u> </u>

티

19

3 of 3

04/00/2000	ROUNDABOUTS: AN INF Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 7	ORMATIONAL GUIDE 0 No: 4	<u>More</u>
00/00/2000	BUILDING BETTER COM QUALITY GROWTH	MUNITIES: A TOOLKIT FOR	<u> </u>
	AUTHOR(S): Bauer, D		
00/00/1998	SPEED AND SPEED MAN	AGEMENT SYNTHESIS	<u>More</u>
00/00/2000	HARMONIZING PLANO'S MANAGEMENT PROGRA Conference: Transportation	NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC M Operations: Moving into the 21st	<u> </u>
	Century AUTHOR(S): Lalani, N		
10/00/1999	LITERATURE REVIEW OF AND PEDESTRIAN INJUR AUTHOR(S): Leaf, WA	N VEHICLE TRAVEL SPEEDS IES	<u>More</u>
00/00/1998	HARMONIZING TRANSPO GOALS THE CHALLENGE TRANSPORTATION PROF Conference: ITE INTERNA	ORTATION & COMMUNITY E FOR TODAY'S TESSIONAL ATIONAL CONFERENCE	<u> More</u>
Criteria: TR/		Records Collection	4095-04 Balance Contractor Contractor

Search Period: ALL Sort: PUBDATE Display: 201-223 of Total Found: 223 Records Collection 135 TITLES 100 ABSTRACTS 132 KEYWORDS

Pages: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

TRIS is a bibliographic database funded by sponsors of the <u>Transportation Research Board</u> (TRB), primarily the state departments of transportation and selected federal transportation agencies. TRIS Online is hosted by the <u>National Transportation Library</u> under a cooperative agreement between the <u>Bureau of Transportation Statistics</u> and TRB.

How BTS protects your privacy when you visit our website.

APPENDIX 2

TRIS Citations for "One-Way Streets"

appendix 2 page 2-1



1917 - C

00/00/1937	REPORT OF COMMITTEE ON TRAFFIC REGULATION IN MUNICIPALITIES- ONE-WAY STREETS	<u>More.</u>
	Journal: Highway Research Board Proceedings AUTHOR(S): Canning, WS	
00/00/1938	REPORT OF COMMITTEE ON TRAFFIC REGULATION IN MUNICIPALITIES; ONE-WAY STREETS Journal: Highway Research Board Proceedings AUTHOR(S): Burch, JS DISCUSSER	<u> More</u>
10/00/1972	STUDY OF THE OPERATIONAL ASPECTS OF ONE-WAY AND TWO-WAY STREETS AUTHOR(S): Enustun, N	<u>More</u>
00/00/1955	CAPACITIES OF ONE-WAY AND TWO-WAY STREETS WITH SIGNALS AND WITH STOP SIGNS Journal: Highway Research Board Bulletin AUTHOR(S): French, A	<u> More</u>
07/00/1969	THE ECONOMIC AND ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS OF ONE-WAY STREETS IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS	<u> </u>
10/00/1971	ECONOMIC AND ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS OF ONE-WAY STREETS IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS Journal: Appraisal Journal AUTHOR(S): Hill, D	<u>More</u>
00/00/1970	ECONOMIC AND ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS OF ONE-WAY STREETS IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS Journal: Highway Research Record No: 305 AUTHOR(S): Hill, D	<u>More</u>
00/00/1962	ACCELERATED D.C. HIGHWAY PROGRAM AND ONE-WAY STREET PLAN. REPORT OF THE SPECIAL SUBCOMMITTEE ON TRAFFIC, STREETS, AND HIGHWAYS OF THE COMMITTEE ON THE DISTRIC	<u>More</u>
06/00/1962	ACCELERATED D.C. HIGHWAY PROGRAM AND ONE-WAY STREET PLAN: HEARINGS BEFORE THE SPECIAL SUBCOMMITTEE ON TRAFFIC, STREETS, AND HIGHWAYS OF THE COMMITTEE ON THE D	<u>More</u>
01/00/1985	INCREASING THE ROAD NETWORK CAPACITY BY INTRODUCING THE ONE-WAY STREET SYSTEM Journal: Japan Society of Civil Engineers, Proceedings AUTHOR(S): Masuya, Y	<u>More</u>
00/00/1990	SAFETY OF ONE-WAY URBAN STREETS Journal: Transportation Research Record No: 1270 AUTHOR(S): Bar-Ziv, J	<u>More</u>
00/00/1992	OPTIMAL ONE-WAY STREETS ASSIGNMENT IN A RECTANGULAR CITY AUTHOR(S): Ai, CM	More
00/00/1996	ONE-WAY CONVERSIONS FOR CALMING DENVER'S STREETS Conference: Moving Forward in a Scaled-Back World.	<u> </u>

.

1

	Challenges and Opportunitie Professional. 1996 ITE Inter AUTHOR(S): Dorroh, RF	es for the Transportation mational Conference.		
08/00/1998	ONE-WAY STREETS PRO CONVENIENCE Journal: ITE Journal Vol: (AUTHOR(S): Stemley, JJ	OVIDE SUPERIOR SAFE	TY AND	<u>More</u>
06/00/1998	ONE-WAY DOWNTOWN DIRECTIONS Journal: Planning Vol: 64 M AUTHOR(S): Jossi, F	STREETS MOVE IN TV	VO	<u> More</u>
00/00/1994	NETWORK DESIGN OF C SIMULATED ANNEALIN Journal: PAPERS IN REG AUTHOR(S): LEE, CHI-K	ONE-WAY STREETS WI G. IONAL SCIENCE. ANG.	TH	<u>More</u>
09/00/1996	THE EFFECT OF VEHICU CRIME AND EMERGENC LOCATION OF CUL-DE-S STREETS. Journal: JOURNAL OF TH SOCIETY, AUTHOR(S): HURTER, A	LAR FLOW PATTERNS Y SERVICES THE SACS AND ONE-WAY HE OPERATIONAL RES	S ON EARCH	<u>More</u>
08/00/1963	RIGHT OF WAY MULT Journal: TRAFFIC DIGES	I-LANE ONE-WAY STR T AND REVIEW,	EETS	<u>More</u>
Criteria: ON Search Perio Sort: PUBD	E-WAY AND STREETS od: ALL ATE	Records Collection 32 TITLES 30 ABSTRACTS		

Pages: 1 |2|3|

Display: 1-25 of Total Found: 76

54 KEYWORDS

TRIS is a bibliographic database funded by sponsors of the <u>Transportation Research Board</u> (TRB), primarily the state departments of transportation and selected federal transportation agencies. TRIS Online is hosted by the <u>National Transportation Library</u> under a cooperative agreement between the <u>Bureau of Transportation Statistics</u> and TRB.

How BTS protects your privacy when you visit our website.



Pages: <u>1 | 2 | 3 |</u>

Date	Description	More
06/00/1973	THE CORPORATION: JUST A GRANFALLOON? Journal: IEEE Spectrum Vol: 10 No: N6 AUTHOR(S): West, JS	<u>More.</u>
00/00/1974	A FEASIBILITY STUDY OF A REVERSIBLE-LANE FACILITY FOR A DENVER STREET CORRIDOR (ABRIDGMENT) Journal: Transportation Research Record No: 514 AUTHOR(S): Hemphill, J	<u> More</u>
12/00/1977	RIGHT TURN ON RED A TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SIMULATION Journal: Simulation Vol: 29 No: 6 AUTHOR(S): Lidor, G	<u>More</u>
00/00/1965	ANALYSIS OF A THREE-STREET TRAFFIC SYSTEM Journal: Highway Research Record, Hwy Res Board AUTHOR(S): Bissell, HH	<u>More</u>
00/00/1967	IMPROVED STREET UTILIZATION THROUGH TRAFFIC ENGINEERING Journal: Highway Research Board Special Reports	<u> </u>
00/00/1960	EFFECT OF CURB PARKING ON INTERSECTION CAPACITY Journal: Highway Research Board Bulletin AUTHOR(S): Galioto, AJ	<u>More</u>
00/00/1971	OPTIMIZING FLOW ON EXISTING STREET NETWORKS Journal: Highway Research Board Nchrp Report	<u> </u>

7/26/00 1:37 PM

• • • • •

- |

1.50 million and 1.50 m

	AUTHOR(S): Kraft, WH	
00/00/1970	UTS-1: A MACRO SYSTEM FOR TRAFFIC NETWORK SIMULATION AUTHOR(S): Morgan, HL	<u> More</u>
07/00/1979	MODERN ROTARIES Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 49 No: 7 AUTHOR(S): Todd, K	<u> </u>
04/00/1980	PEDESTRIAN SAFETY: THE HAZARDS OF LEFT-TURNING VEHICLES Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 50 No: 4 AUTHOR(S): Habib, PA	<u> More</u>
02/00/1983	FEASIBILITY OF ROADWAY COUNTERMEASURES FOR PEDESTRIAN ACCIDENT EXPERIENCE AUTHOR(S): Zegeer, CV	<u> More</u>
03/00/1985	JAPAN-U.S. TECHNICAL INFORMATION EXCHANGE : A ONE-WAY STREET? Journal: AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING Vol: 93 No: 3 AUTHOR(S): RUBINGER, B	<u> More</u>
12/00/1985	BELLEVUE ONE-WAY STREET STUDY	<u>More.</u>
00/00/1962	ONE-WAY STREET REPORT, SAN JOSE	<u>More.</u>
00/00/1954	ONE WAY BUSINESS STREETS	<u> </u>
00/00/1965	INVESTIGATION AND STUDY OF URBAN RENEWAL AND REDEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS AND PARKING AND ONE-WAY STREET PLANNING IN THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA: REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA, HOUSE OF R- Journal: HOUSE REPORT 88TH CONGRESS, 2D SESSION ; NO 1947 No: 1947] <u>More.</u>
09/00/1986	WORK ZONE SAFETY. UTILITIES, STREET DEPARTMENT COORDINATE WORK Journal: Better Roads Vol: 56 No: 9	<u> </u>
00/00/1988	SAFETY IMPACTS OF BICYCLE LANES Journal: Transportation Research Record No: 1168 AUTHOR(S): Smith, RL, Jr	<u> More</u>
04/00/1986	CONSOLIDATION OF LOCAL HIGHWAY DEPARTMENTS: THE CASE OF ADAMS COUNTY AND THE CITY OF HETTINGER AUTHOR(S): Zink, DL	<u> </u>
09/00/1993	LICENSE TAG SURVEYS - DATA COLLECTION, PROCESSING AND ANALYSIS: THE PENSACOLA STREET REALIGNMENT STUDY (TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA) Conference: 4th National Conference on Transportation	<u> </u>

	Planning Methods Applicati Compendium of Papers AUTHOR(S): Schiffer, RC	ons, Volumes I and II. A		
00/00/1995	CAPACITY OF ONE-WAY INTERSECTIONS Journal: Transportation Re AUTHOR(S): Al-Masaeid,	Y YIELD-CONTROLLE esearch Record No: 1484 HR	D	<u>More.</u>
08/00/1998	VITAL SIGNS: CIRCULA CITYAN OVERVIEW O Journal: ITE Journal Vol: AUTHOR(S): Forbes, G	TION IN THE HEART (F DOWNTOWN TRAFF 68 No: 8	OF THE IC	<u>More.</u>
08/00/1998	CONVERTING BACK TO DOWNTOWN LUBBOCK Journal: ITE Journal Vol: AUTHOR(S): Hart, J	TWO-WAY STREETS 68 No: 8	IN	<u>More.</u>
00/00/1999	REDUCING CRASHES IN ONE-WAY STREETS Conference: Transportation 69th Annual Meeting of the Engineers AUTHOR(S): Forbes, G	NMULTIPLE TURN LAT n Frontiers for the Next M Institute of Transportatic	NES ON fillennium: m	<u>More.</u>
00/00/1999	FUZZY LOGIC TWO-PHA CONTROL FOR COORDI Journal: IEEE Midnight-Si Methods in Industrial Appli SMCia/99 proceedings AUTHOR(S): Nittymaki, J	ASE TRAFFIC SIGNAL NATED ONE-WAY STI un Workshop on Soft Con cations (1999 : Kuusamo,	REETS mputing Finland).	<u>More</u> .
Criteria: ON Search Peri	E-WAY AND STREETS	Records Collection - 32 TITLES		

Sort: PUBDATE Display: 26-50 of Total Found: 76

Pages: 1 |2|3|

How BTS protects your privacy when you visit our website.

30 ABSTRACTS

54 KEYWORDS

TRIS is a bibliographic database funded by sponsors of the <u>Transportation Research Board</u> (TRB), primarily the state departments of transportation and selected federal transportation agencies. TRIS Online is hosted by the <u>National Transportation Library</u> under a cooperative agreement between the <u>Bureau of Transportation Statistics</u> and TRB.



AUTHOR(S): Bushnak, A

7/26/00 1:37 PM

1 of 3

E.

10/00/1988	THEORY OF HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SIGNALS. FINAL REPORT AUTHOR(S): Newell, GF	<u>More</u>
09/00/1993	TRAFFIC ASSIGNMENT MODEL CALIBRATION WHEN PRECISION IS ESSENTIAL Conference: Compendium of Technical Papers, ITE, 63rd Annual Meeting AUTHOR(S): Fricker, ID	<u>More</u>
00/00/1993	THE TRAFFIC SAFETY TOOLBOX: A PRIMER ON TRAFFIC SAFETY	<u>More</u>
12/00/1993	TRAFFIC CHAOS Journal: BUSINESS REVIEW Vol: 22 No: 275 AUTHOR(S): Dhammashart, B	<u> More</u>
12/00/1994	INTRODUCTION TO TRAFFIC PRACTICES: A GUIDEBOOK FOR LOCAL AGENCIES AUTHOR(S): James, D	<u> More</u>
08/00/1997	U.S. EXPERIENCE WITH TRAFFIC CALMING Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 67 No: 8 AUTHOR(S): Ewing, R	<u>More</u>
11/00/1997	CRASH REDUCTIONS RELATED TO TRAFFIC SIGNAL REMOVAL IN PHILADELPHIA Journal: Accident Analysis and Prevention Vol: 29 No: 6 AUTHOR(S): Hauer, E	<u>More</u>
04/00/1997	FATAL CRASH RISK FOR OLDER DRIVERS AT INTERSECTIONS AUTHOR(S): Ferguson, SA	<u> More</u>
08/00/1998	TRAFFIC ISSUES FOR SMALLER COMMUNITIES Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 68 No: 8 AUTHOR(S): Edwards, JD	<u> More</u>
08/00/1998	SANSOME STREET CONTRAFLOW TRANSIT LANE: A PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SUCCESS STORY Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 68 No: 8 AUTHOR(S): Folks, TP	<u>More</u>
11/00/1998	THE EFFECTS OF ACCESS DENSITY ON OPERATING SPEED Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 68 No: 11 AUTHOR(S): Fitzpatrick, K	<u>More</u>
11/00/1997	NEW PROCEDURES HELP IMPROVE FRONTAGE ROAD OPERATIONS Journal: Texas Transportation Researcher Vol: 33 No: 3 AUTHOR(S): Fitzpatrick, K	More
00/00/1999	HARMONIZING A PEDESTRIAN-ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT WITH COMMUTER TRAFFIC DEMANDS Conference: Transportation Frontiers for the Next Millennium: 69th Annual Meeting of the Institute of Transportation	<u> More</u>

	Engineers AUTHOR(S): Choa, F	
00/00/1999	CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT TR. CIRCULATION IMPROVEMENTA SALINA, KANSAS Conference: Transportation Frontiers fo	AFFIC CASE STUDY: or the Next Millennium:
	69th Annual Meeting of the Institute of Engineers AUTHOR(S): Fulton, TH	Transportation
00/00/1999	A PRACTICAL APPROACH FOR DE DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC CIRCULATI STUDY	VELOPING A ON PLANA CASE
:	Conference: Transportation Frontiers for 69th Annual Meeting of the Institute of Engineers AUTHOR(S): Meyer, JA	or the Next Millennium: Transportation
00/00/1999	THE TRAFFIC SAFETY TOOLBOX: A	A PRIMER ON <u>More.</u>
00/00/1990	METRO MANILA URBAN TRANSPO PLAN (1990-2000) PROJECT : ACTIC ASSESSMENT OF THE PROPOSED (FOR DOMESTIC ROAD AND ELECT PASAY. AUTHOR(S): COMMUNICATIONS.	DRT DEVELOPMENT <u>More.</u> ON STUDIES: ONE-WAY SCHEME RICAL ROAD,
00/00/1998	A GIS-BASED APPROACH FOR ONE NETWORK PLANNING Journal: TRAFFIC AND TRANSPOR PROCEEDINGS OF ICTTS'98. AUTHOR(S): LU, FENG.	E-WAY TRAFFIC
Criteria: ONI Search Peric Sort: PUBDA Display: 51-7	E-WAY AND STREETS bd: ALL ATE 75 of Total Found: 76 Records Co 32 TITLI 30 ABS 54 KEY	Illection Es TRACTS WORDS

Pages: $\underline{1} | \underline{2} | \underline{3} |$

TRIS is a bibliographic database funded by sponsors of the <u>Transportation Research Board</u> (TRB), primarily the state departments of transportation and selected federal transportation agencies. TRIS Online is hosted by the <u>National Transportation Library</u> under a cooperative agreement between the <u>Bureau of Transportation Statistics</u> and TRB.

How BTS protects your privacy when you visit our website.



7/26/00 1:38 PM

APPENDIX 3

.....

ALC: NO

alline i see iii dama antid

1.1

TRIS Citations for "One-Way/Two-Way Conversions"

appendix 3 page 3-1



Select the items below by checking the boxes, then select a function from the BASKET CONTROL panel above.

Select/Deselect all displayed items

	Pages	:						
Date	Description			More				
01/00/1988	1988 ATTITUDES CONCERNING TWO-WAY AND ONE-WAY FRONTAGE ROADS. INTERIM REPORT AUTHOR(S): Gattis, JL							
06/00/1988	A STUDY TO DEVELOP WAR TO ONE-WAY FRONTAGE RO AUTHOR(S): Gattis, IL	RANTS FOR CONV DADS, FINAL REPO	/ERSION)RT	<u>More</u>				
08/00/1998	SANSOME STREET CONTRA PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SU- Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 68 N AUTHOR(S): Folks, TP	FLOW TRANSIT L/ CCESS STORY 0: 8	ANE: A	<u> More</u>				
08/00/1998	08/00/1998 CONVERTING BACK TO TWO-WAY STREETS IN DOWNTOWN LUBBOCK Journal: ITE Journal Vol: 68 No: 8 AUTHOR(S): Hart, J							
06/00/1998	ONE-WAY DOWNTOWN STR DIRECTIONS Journal: Planning Vol: 64 No: (AUTHOR(S): Jossi, F	EETS MOVE IN TV	VΟ	<u>More</u>				
Criteria: ON CONVERSIO Search Perio Sort: PUBD Display: 1-5	E-WAY AND TWO-WAY AND ONS od: ALL ATE of Total Found: 5	Records Collection o titles 2 ABSTRACTS 4 KEYWORDS						

APPENDIX 4

64

• {

周

1

Alternatives Evaluation Summary Matrix

This matrix is taken from the "Belmont-Morrison Project Report & Recommendations" done by the Office of Transportation of the City of Portland (Oregon). It is illustrative of the type of evaluation done in support of determining whether a one-way pair of streets (couplet) should be converted to two-way operations.

BELMONT-MORRISON PROJECT

f

Alternatives Evalution Summary Matrix

Evalution Criteria	No-Build	Alternative A 9th Avenue	Alternative B 12th Avenue	Alternative B 13th Avenue
 Traffic Operations Volume Average Daily volume, 12th–20th Ave. (2015) 	Beimont: 15,900 Morrison: 11,750	Belmont: 19,300 Morrison: 5,350	Belmont: 22,200 Morrison: 4,700	Belmont: 22,950 Morrison: 4,700
Over-capacity intersections Intersections with level-of- service 'E' or worse	0	3	3	0
 Queuing at intersections % increase in cumulative length compared to No-Build 	-	AM: +560% PM: +150%	AM: +230% PM: +220%	AM: +160% PM: +120%
 Diversion # of cars diverted during PM peak period 	0	300	75	0
 Speed Belmont 	AM: 23 mph PM: 27 mph	AM: 22 mph PM: 20 mph	AM: 21 mph PM: 20 mph	AM: 21 mph PM: 16 mph
Morrison	AM: 20 mph PM: 19 mph	AM: 25 mph PM: 18 mph	AM: 23 mph PM: 18 mph	AM: 23 mph PM: 20 mph
Transit Operations	 Least impact to travel times due to congestion 	 Increased travel time due to congestion Greater difficulty moving in and out of stops 	• Same as Alt. A	 Less travel time impact due to congestion than Alts. A or B Same as Alt. A
Bicycle Operations	 Speeding makes bicycling unsafe One-way travel safer for bicycles 	 Reduced traffic speeds Two-way travel less safe for bicycles 	• Same as Alt. A	• Same as Alt. A
On-Street Parking Supply Loss of spaces	-23 spaces	-53 spaces	-58 spaces	-83 spaces
Pedestrian Environment	 Faster traffic speeds, less safe for pedestrians More gaps in traffic for crossing one-way streets at unsignalized intersections 	 Slower traffic speeds Fewer gaps in traffic crossing two-way streets 	 Same as Alt. A Same as Alt. A 	 Same as Alt. A Same as Alt. A

Ē

İ.

BELMONT-MORRISON PROJECT

Evalution Criteria	No-Build	Alternative A 9th Avenue	Alternative B 12th Avenue	Alternative B 13th Avenue
Land Use Impacts	 East-west access to properties separated, impairs business visibility Most street capacity 	 East-west access on same street Business visibility on Belmont improved, reduced on Morrison 	 Same as Alt. A Same as Alt. A 	 Same as Alt. A Same as Alt. A
	and on-street parking supply available for redevelopmemt	 Driveway access more difficult on Belmont, less on Morrison 	 Same as Alt. A 	• Same as Alt. A
		 Parking and volume impacts associated with transition zone outside of residential neighborhood Significant potential for diversion of traffic on to adjacent streets during peak periods 	 Parking and volume impacts associated with transition zone at edge of residential neighborhood Significant potential for diversion of traffic to adjacent streets during peak periods 	 Parking and volume impacts associated with transition zone within neighborhood, adjacent business impacts No traffic diversion to adjacent streets anticipated

APPENDIX 5

Excerpts from ITE's Traffic Engineering Handbook

These excerpts are regarding one-way streets including a listing of "criteria for use of one-way streets."

One-way streets

Most major streets and highways are originally designed for use by two-way traffic. The need for the adoption of one-way traffic regulations may arise from increased traffic usage, conflicts among vehicular flows and between pedestrians and vehicles, and the resulting congestion and accidents. Conversion to one-way street operation (often in conjunction with parking restrictions) may also be needed to provide additional capacity to serve new development.

In major activity centers, such as the central business district of a city with many high-traffic, closely spaced intersections, one-way regulations are frequently used because of traffic signal timing considerations and to improve street capacity. In the development of new activity centers such as shopping malls, sports arenas, and industrial parks, one-way regulations are sometimes included in original street and traffic plans.

Some minor street and alleys are also designated for oneway operation because of limited width or in order to prevent through traffic within a neighborhood.

One-way streets are generally operated in one of three ways:

- 1. A street on which traffic moves in one direction at all times.
- A street that is normally one-way in a particular direction but at certain times is operated in the reverse direction to provide additional capacity in the predominant direction of flow.
- 3. A street that normally carries two-way traffic but which during peak traffic hours is operated as a one-way street. Such a street may be operated in one direction during the

morning peak hour and in the opposite direction during the evening peak hour, with two-way traffic during all other hours.

Advantages and disadvantages

One-way regulations are generally used to reduce congestion and to increase the capacity of a street network. Oneway streets may also affect safety and the types of uses on adjacent land. An intersection of two one-way streets has substantially fewer potential conflicts than does an intersection with two two-way streets, as shown by Figure 11-1.

The following advantages may be expected in terms of capacity, safety, and operating conditions:

Effect on capacity. Traffic conflicts and delay at intersections are a principal cause of congestion and longer travel time on two-way urban streets. On one-way streets, turning movements are not delayed by opposing vehicular traffic, but they may be obstructed by heavy pedestrian volumes and thus encounter significant delay. With one-way streets, more complete use may be made of street pavements with unusual width. The capacity of a street may be increased by as much as 50% by use of one-way regulations (see Chapter 5).

The increased capacity afforded by one-way regulations may also make it possible to permit parking either part- or full-time on streets that, if operated as two-way streets, could not be used for parking. More efficient signal timing can also increase street capacity because of improved traffic progression between signalized intersections, as discussed in Chapter 9.

Effect on safety. One-way streets with traffic signal controls at major intersections are more likely to have gaps in traffic for safer crossing movements by pedestrians and vehicles at other cross streets and driveways along the route. In addition, drivers and pedestrians crossing one-way streets need be concerned with and wait for traffic from only one direction.

Numerous studies have shown that the conversion of twoway streets to one-way operation reduces total accidents on an order of 10% to 50%.⁴ In some cases, specific kinds of accidents are reduced even more.

However, vehicles turning left out of one-way streets appear to hit pedestrians significantly more frequently than do all other turning vehicles, probably because of automobile roof support pillars blocking the view of the crosswalk, which

⁴J.A. Bruce, "One-Way Major Arternal Streets." *Improved Street Utilization Through Traffic Engineering*. Highway Research Board Special Report 93, Washington, DC, May 1967.

Figure 11-1. Intersection conflicts. SOURCE: Manual of Geometric Design Standards for Canadian Roads, Roads and Transportation Association of Canada, Ottawa, 1986, p. D15. Intersection Conflicts



Possible Conflicts

- Diverging
- Merging
- O Through-flow Crossing
- O Turning-flow Crossing 12

Number of Conflicts:

4-leg intersection single-lane approach no signal control



Possible Conflicts

- △ Diverging
 □ Merging
- C Through-flow Crossing
- O Turning-flow Crossing Number of Conflicts:

4-leg intersection one-way streets no signal control

8

8

4

32

2

2

1

0

is parallel to the original direction of travel.⁵ Minor midblock collisions have been known to increase as a result of improper weaving by drivers to position themselves for an available parking space or to get in the proper lane for a turn. In addition, transition areas between one-way and two-way operations are frequently hazardous and require special traffic control treatment.

Effect on operating conditions. A primary reason for use of one-way streets is to improve traffic operations and reduce congestion. The degree of improvement in operating conditions, travel time, and safety depends, of course, upon the particular operating elements of the previous situation. Generally, travel times can be reduced from 10% to 50% and accidents by the same rate even with a slight increase in total traffic volumes.⁶ (See Tables 11–1 to 11–3.)

Such general improvement in traffic operations must be balanced against the following disadvantages:

³P.A. Habib and others, *Analysis of Pedestrian Crosswalk Safety on One-Way Street Networks*, Report DOT-OS-70057, U.S. Department of Transportation, Washington, DC, September 1978.

⁶P.A. Mayer, "One-Way Streets," *Traffic Control and Roadway Elements*—*Their Relationship to Highway Safety*. Highway Users Federation for Safety and Mobility, Washington, DC, 1971, Chapter 10.

- 1. Some motorists must travel extra distances to reach their destination. Overall, this extra distance will likely increase the amount of fuel used and the travel time.
- Changes in travel patterns will eliminate turning movements at some intersections and increase them at others, possibly resulting in new control problems at different locations in the area.
- 3. Strangers may become confused with the one-way street pattern, especially if network geometry is irregular or the one-way pattern is not uniform. Additional directional signing, pavement markings, channelization, and signal indications may be required to handle unexpected travel routing.
- 4. Transit operations may be adversely affected if vehicles are forced to operate on two streets instead of one. Where a narrow strip of trip generators exists along one street, walking distances to the nearest bus stop for the desired travel direction may increase.
- 5. Emergency vehicles may need to take a more circuitous route to reach some destinations.

Effect on area economic conditions. In many cases, improved traffic movement and increased safety can produce broad economic benefits both to adjacent land users and to the general public. Nevertheless, when implementing a one-way street system, especially one involving commercial

TA	BLI	E 1	-1
----	-----	-----	----

Change in Traffic Volume, Trip Time, and Number of Stops after Conversion to One-Way Operation, Fifth Avenue, New York City

	Ave	rage Daily Traffic	Volume	Av	erage Trip Ti	me (min)	Av	erage Number	of Stops
Section	Before	After	Change (%)	Before	After	Change (%)	Before	After	Change (%
Washington Sq. to 23rd St. [0.8 mi (1.3 km)]	15,265	18,722	+ 23	4,7	2.4	- 49	3	1	-67
23rd St. to 42nd St. [0.9 mi (1.45 km)]	21,725	23,591	+ 9	7.3	2.9	- 60	s	I	- 80
42nd St. to 57th St. 10.7 mi (1.1 km)]	26,130	29,965	+ 15	7.4	4,4	- 39	5	3	~ 40
57th St. to 138th St. [4.1 mi (6.6 km)]	11,592	14,953	+ 29	22.4	16.4	- 28	14.8	7	- 53
Totals (averages)	(16,411)	(19,595)	(+19)	42.1	26.4	- 37	27.8	11	- 6 0

SOURCE: J. A. BRUCE, "One-Way Streets." Improved Street Utilization through Traffic Engineering, Highway Research Board Special Report 93, May 1967.

TABLE 11-2

	Accid	ent Changes and	Traffic Charact	eristics on On	e-Way Streets	, London, En	gland		
£2 ⁸⁸⁸⁹⁹⁹⁹⁹⁹	<u> </u>	Percent Change in Traffic (Average Weekday)		Percent C Travel	Percent Change in Accidents			
Street	Mileage	Volume	Vehicle- Miles	Off Ea Dire	Peak ch ction	Рм Ea Dire	Peak ch ction	Injury	Pedes- trian
Tottenham Ct. Rd."	5.1	+4	+8	- 49	- 34	- 43	- 14	- 21	- 33
Baker St.*	2.1	+ 2	+ 3	- 48	- 35	- 65	- 55	+4	-3
Earls Ct. Rd.	6.3	+ 10	+ 12	- 33	- 15	- 27	- 16	27	- 13
Kings X*	2.5	- 2	+ 18	- 28	0	- 27	+ 40	- 33	- 40
Bood St.*	1.3	+9	+ 14	- 26	- 38	- 15	- 38	0	0
Piccadilly*	1.3	-4	0	- 19	- 12	- 5	- 12	- 14	- 32

% months before and after.

'3 months before and after.

SOURCE: J. T. DUFF, "Traffic Management," Conference on Engineering for Traffic, 1963, p. 49.

332 Traffic Engineering Handbook

A 11 3			N	iumber of Accide	nts		-		. 83
Made One-Way	Period	Angle	Rear End	Turning	Other	Pedestrian	Accidents	Injured	Ra
Madison Ave.,	Before	23	49	53	67	N .3	140	167	16.7
23rd St. to 135th	After	23	34	24	45	· •	158	101	S
St. [5.7 mi (9.2 km)]	% change	0	- 31	- 49	Ш.	-41	I n	-40	
Fifth Ave.,	Before	40	65	68	84	61 L	3.26	190	20.4
Washington So.	After	38	53	52	73	45	261	156	13.7
to 38th St., [6.5 mi (10.5 km)]	% change	- 5	-18	- 23	- 13	29	- 18	- 18	-32
Both streets	Before	63	114	121	151	11.	572	357	18
	After	61	87	76	118	71	419	257	11.2
	% change	- 3	- 24	- 37	22	- 34	- 27	- 28	- 38

TABLE 11-3 Accidents and One-Way Servets, New York City

*Accidents per million vehicle-miles.

SOURCE: J. A. BRUCE, "One-Way Major Arterial Streets," Improved Street Utilization through Traffic Engineering, Highway Research Board Special Report 93, May 1967.

streets, traffic engineers should expect objections from affected business owners, who may contend that one-way streets will adversely affect their trade.

Studies made in various parts of the United States have generally tended to disprove such claims. Moreover, where one-way systems have once been implemented, many business owners formerly opposed to the one-way street plan have become supporters.

Although the economic and environmental impact on converting to a one-way street system will undoubtedly vary from one place to another, a study by the Michigan Department of State Highways revealed that opposition tended to come from property owners immediately adjacent to oneway streets, with more support from others in the area. Despite fears of losses in business and property values, there was no indication of adverse economic impact on either business activity or residential property values.⁷

Trends in one-way street usage

The number and total mileage of one-way streets have increased significantly over the years. In 32 European towns, the total mileage of one-way streets increased from 225 to 575 km in a 10-year period after the end of World War II.⁸ Figures are not readily available for the United States, but general observation suggests a similar trend. It may not be realistic to expect continued expansion of one-way street systems in large cities, but increased usage in many smaller and medium-sized cities has been noted.

Criteria for use of one-way streets

Legal background. Although the Model Traffic Ordinance⁹ directs that the traffic engineer be authorized to determine and designate one-way streets and alleys (S tion 32-301), many cities and counties require the approval of the governing body. Following such approval, if needed, the traffic engineer arranges for the placement and main nance of the necessary traffic control devices, giving public notice thereof. The Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) specifies the design and location f such signs.

Traffic studies. An engineering evaluation is needed to determine the advisability of one-way operation in a given street network. Such a network may range in size from the parallel streets to all streets in an area. The evaluation should include:

- 1. Physical inventory of existing system to determine: a. Widths and adaptability to one-way operation.
 - b. Termination points where needed traffic control (vices can be effectively provided.
 - c. Transit operational needs within the network.
 - d. Existing traffic control devices.
 - e. Parking needs and practices.
 - f. Major street and driveway intersection locations.
 - g. Heavy pedestrian crossings.
- - b. Turning movement counts during peak hours at critical intersections with streets and major driveways.
 - c. Counts on streets parallel to the one-way pair(s) be g considered, to estimate the effects of possible trail c diversion.
- 3. Speed and delay studies in both peak and off-peak periods to provide data on overall travel times and the lotions and causes of major delays.
- Traffic signal studies to evaluate existing progression programs and to determine the improvement that mic¹t be gained from one-way operation.
- 5. Parking studies to determine the feasibility of curb parking prohibitions on one or both sides during all hours or only in peak periods as an alternative or support = measure to one-way operation.

^{*} The Economic and Environmental Effects of One-Way Streets in Residential Areas, Department of State Highways, Lansing, MI, 1969.

⁶E. Nielsen, "Experience from 10 Years' Fight against Traffic Congestion." 36th International Congress, International Union of Public Transport. Brussels, Belgium, 1965, p. 15.

[&]quot;National Committee on Uniform Traffic Laws and Ordinances, Uniform Vehicle Code and Model Traffic Ordinance.

- 6. Comparative capacity analyses of various alternative forms of operations.
 - a. Capacity restrictions in the existing system that might be alleviated.
 - b. Directional capacity of the existing network.
 - c. Directional capacity of the proposed network.
 - d. Directional capacity with parking prohibitions on the existing and proposed systems.
 - e. Directional capacity using unbalanced operation techniques (two-way streets with off-center movement to encourage traffic to use one street in one direction and the other in the opposite direction, with progressive signal timing favoring the direction having more lanes) or reversible lanes (see next section).
- 7. Estimates of added travel distance and increase in total travel time in the network.
- 8. Feasibility studies with respect to transit routing and location of stops.
- 9. Investigation of probable effect on movement of emergency vehicles.
- 10. Investigation of probable effect of one-way operation on businesses, passenger loading zones (hotels, theaters, etc., may be on the "wrong" side of street), parking facility entrances and exits, and other land-use or curb-use activities.
- Analysis of frequency, severity, and types of accidents along the proposed one-way street, with estimates of possible changes.
- 12. Pedestrian studies to evaluate the possible effects of one-way operation.

13. Economic evaluation of the costs of various types of operation in relation to the overall benefits that are anticipated.¹⁰

Planning considerations. The amount of data to be collected and analyzed in planning for one-way traffic regulations will depend largely on the size and complexity of the one-way system under consideration. The following questions should be considered:

- 1. Is the layout of the street system such that one or more pairs of one-way streets can be implemented on a practical basis? In other words, will it be logical and make sense and be accepted by the public?
- 2. What effect would the proposed one-way street(s) have on transit operations and patronage?
- 3. Must parking be restricted in certain areas to provide the proper number of traffic lanes?
- 4. What changes need to be made in signs, markings, parking meters, traffic signal indications and detectors, and other traffic control devices?
- 5. What impact would one-way traffic have on freight delivery and truck routing?
- 6. Are there major traffic generators on the streets to be considered for one-way operation, and what, if any, effect would there be on such generators?

7. Are the geometric elements of the street sections proposed for one-way operation such that the transition to two-way traffic (or termination at an intersection) would not cause safety or congestion problems?

As a general rule, two-way streets should be made oneway only if:

- 1. It can be shown that a specific traffic problem will be alleviated and the overall efficiency of the transportation system will be improved.
- 2. One-way operation is more efficient, safe, and cost-effective than alternative solutions.
- 3. Parallel streets of adequate capacity, preferably not more than a block apart, are available or can be constructed.
- Such streets provide adequate traffic service to the area traversed and carry traffic through and beyond the congested area.
- 5. Safe transition to two-way operation can be provided at the end points of the one-way sections.
- 6. Proper transit service can be maintained.
- 7. Such streets are consistent with the master street or highway plan and compatible with abutting land uses.
- 8. Thorough study shows that the overall advantages significantly outweigh any disadvantages.

Benefits of one-way traffic regulations

Increased capacity. One-way streets will often:

- 1. Reduce intersection delays caused by vehicle turning movement conflicts and pedestrian-vehicle conflicts.
- 2. Allow lane-width adjustments that increase the capacity of existing lanes or provide an additional lane.
- 3. Reduce travel time.
- 4. Permit improvements in public transit operations, such as routings without turnback loops (out on one street and return on a parallel street).
- 5. Permit turns from more than one lane and doing so at more intersections than would be possible with two-way operation. (Care must be taken that designated turning lanes are clearly marked and do not block needed through lanes.)
- 6. Redistribute traffic onto adjacent streets to relieve congestion.
- 7. Simplify traffic signal timing by:
 - a. Permitting a wider range of offsets for progressive movement of traffic.
 - b. Permitting offsets to achieve wider through bands.
 - c. Reducing multiphase requirements by eliminating leftturn conflicts and/or making minor streets one-way away from complex intersections.

Increased safety. One-way streets are likely to:

- 1. Reduce vehicle-pedestrian and vehicle-vehicle conflicts at many intersections.
- 2. Prevent pedestrian entrapment between opposing traffic streams.
- 3. Improve drivers' fields of vision at some intersection approaches.

¹⁰W. S. Homburger and J. H. Kell, *Fundamentals of Traffic Engineering*, 12th edition (Berkeley: University of California. Institute of Transportation Studies, 1988), p. 25-2.

Improved economy and environmental protection. Oneway streets may:

- 1. Provide additional capacity to satisfy traffic requirements for a substantial period of time without large capital expenditures for new street construction.
- 2. Permit stage development of a master plan.
- 3. Meet changing traffic patterns quickly and at a relatively low cost.
- 4. Facilitate the loading and unloading of commercial vehicles with minimal impact on traffic flows.
- Preserve sidewalks, trees, and other valuable frontage assets that would otherwise be lost because of the widening of existing two-way streets.
- 6. Be used to prohibit traffic from entering a residential neighborhood by making short lengths of street one-way outbound from the neighborhood.
- 7. Provide for parking on one side of a street that would otherwise be too narrow to permit parking and adequate clearance or sight distance for safe operation.
- 8. Be part of a freeway, expressway, rotary, or other system utilizing ramps, frontage roads, or connecting streets that handle movements that are essentially unidirectional in nature.

Roadway requirements

Although one-way systems will differ in details, there are certain basic factors to consider in developing a network of one-way streets:

- 1. The capacity of the street(s) in one direction should approximately balance the capacity of the street(s) in the opposite direction. If capacities cannot be balanced, the street having the lower capacity must have adequate capacity for current traffic and, if possible, for some time into the future.
- 2. Preferably, the one-way pair should be adjacent streets (although systems are operating satisfactorily where there are intervening parallel streets).

Design of termini

Some street patterns readily lend themselves to good traffic operations at one-way system termini—as when two streets join in a "Y" pattern to become one. In a gridiron pattern, however, the one-way system usually ends at a typical fourway intersection. When the one-way system would normally terminate at a major cross arterial, it is usually desirable to extend the system one block beyond that point. This is particularly true of the one-way street carrying traffic toward the crossing arterial. Construction of diagonal connections to facilitate transition from two-way traffic to one-way traffic should be considered when one-way streets are part of an arterial system.

APPENDIX 6

and and the second s

Same and Same

. . . .

.

104

List of Contacts and Response Status

appendix 6 page 6-1

Date Printed:	5/31/00	1353183	Date Updated	4/25/00	Margaret Market States			CONTRACTOR			e Pallar Brainsland		La Verte contra				
STATE.	STA	TR [25]	A THINAME COM	SOURCE	PHONE	LINAIL CONTRACTOR	Astret	I be 2 week	Parties	Both	97, 198, 198	Follow Up	Type of follow-up	41.212.2152 4	Perwarded to	Suggested by	Agency/Position
in a star of the s	5336339	<u> 1987 (n</u>	Cont Oliver	DOROTO DOT	SAMA NA ARABITRA	Const Oliver Only and the state of	Survey Star	ALC: NO.	Southern and	nesters);	9.802801	100000000	Serves 160				11-213-11-222 - 223
1105K8	A	<u>к</u>	Kart Smith	DOT		Kurt Smith@dol.state.ak.us									Kari Smith	Kurt Smith	DOT
labama	٨	L I	David Brown	DOT	(205) 348-6363	brown@cs.us.edu	уез				X	Na				Not Canel	
	A	L	Cecil Colson	DOT	(334) 242-6393	colsonc@dot.state.us	·										DOT
	A	<u>k</u>	Charles Turney	DOT	1(334) 242-6393	tumeyc@dol.state.s].us		ļ								D	DOT
	A	<u>ь</u> ь	William J. Meizger	internet search	1(554) 242-0128	metzger@ci.mobile.al.us		İ								David Brown	state traffic engineer
Arkansas	٨	R.	Keith Stevens	DOT	(501) 569-2000	kasd212@ahid.state.ar.us											···
	A	R	Scott Bennett	DOT	(501) 569-2542	sebd 154@ahid.stale.ar.us											
Arizona Selifornia	<u>^</u>	<u>.</u>	Paul Basha	internet search	(016) 651 3075	pbasha@ci.scoitsdale.az.us		_									
-411104(120	- C	<u>`</u>	Angiel F. Khorshid	internet search	(310)033-3070	akhorsid/@ci.calabasas.ca.us											
	Ċ,	1	Barney Burke	internet search		barney.burke@ci.minview.ca.us	yes			BP		25-Apr	eneil	responded			
	C/	4	Crolg Smith	internet search	(805) 783-7719	canith@ci.sun-luls-obispo.ca.us	yes	SP				20-Apr	phone				
	<u> </u>	<u>}</u>	E. Camin Cion C. Annanual	internet search		ecamia@ci.calabasas.ca.us	yes				X	No		······			
			Intriet Hanson	internet search		gaggarwaikgci.vacaviae.ca.us ibaasoofici tan-luis-obievo ca ut											
	C/	·	Raymond E. Davis	internet search		rdavis@ci.san-leandro.ca.us	yes				х	No			·		
	. ¢/		Robert B. Yalda	internet search		ryakla@ci.celabasas.ce.us											
anada	Ca	<u>n.</u>	H. Chuan Kua	referred by OrDOT	(10.1) 777 01 (5	Chuan Kua@gov.edmonton.ab.cs										Jell Bender	Plan/Dev. Edmonton Alber
000000		5	Sentiago	001	(303) 757.9348	ramen. Maurengeol state co.us	ver				Y	Na					DOT
Connecticut	ç	r	Susan Reynolds	DOT	1999/912-9112	susan revnolds@po.state.ct.us	ves				x	No			Busch & Howard	······	DOT
	C	r	Frank Busch	DOT	Î	Frank Busch@po.stale.ct.us											
	<u> </u>		John A. Vivari	DOT		John Vivari@po.slate.cl.us	yes				<u> </u>	No					
Viet of Columbia	C	<u> </u>	Richard J. Howard Montgomony Cauloby	DOT		Richard Howard@po.state.cl.us	<u>ус</u> я				<u> </u>	No			John Viveri		
lorida	51		Patrick Brady	DOT	(850) 488-3546	nartrick.brady@dol.state.fl.us		-									DOT
	FI		Ahmed E. Aburehmeh	internet search	(941) 748-4501 ext 5293	ahmed.aburahmah@co.manatee.fl.vs	yes.		PP			24-Apr	phone				
	ក		Chuck Lovell	internet search		Chuck_LOVEIL/@dot.state.fl.us											DOT
	<u></u>	·	Donald Galloway	internet search	(941) 336-3460	dgalloway@co.sarasota.fl.us										Ahmed Aburahmah	
	F1		Jeff Dodge	internet search		jeffrey.dodge@dol.state.fl.us	yes Ves	· SP			X	NO 25-Aor	email		Trateic oper, Dept.	·····	001
	FI		Jeffrey Morgan	internet search		jeffrey.morgan@doi.state.fl.us											DOT
	FI	·	Mike Comeja	internet search		Mike.Comejo@dot.state.fl.us										Steve Homan	DOT
	<u></u>	<u> </u>	Ralfael De Arazoza	internet search	(305) 377-5900	mfoel.dearazoza@dot.state.fl.us									1	Jeff Dodge	
			Tom Speights	internet search		tomple.speiohis@dot.state.fl.us	yes Vei				X	No No			Mike Comeja		
icorgia	G/		Dick Graves	DOT	(404) 635-8381	dick.graves@dot.state.fl.us											DOT
	G/	`	Joseph Fleicher	DOT		Joseph Fletcher@dot.state.ga.us	yes				X	No	email				
	<u>a</u>	<u> </u>	Marion Waters	DOT	(404) 635-8038	marion.walers@dot.siste.ga.us	yes.				<u> </u>	No			Joseph Fletcher		
wa	<u></u>		Scolt Logan	DUI	(515) 239-1513	ICPOLENZINGOLE-MAILEON						NO					Amer IA (mffir een
isho	iD		Steve Rich	DOT	(208) 334-6116	srich@itd.state.id.us	ycs	x					cinaii		Lance Johnson		Panta or anticent.
	ID		Joe Rosenlund	DOT	(208) 387-6140	jrosenlu@achd.ada.id.us											
	ID	·	Lance Johnson	DOT		Ljohnson@itd.state.id.us	yes			9P		20-Apr	email	responded			
	<u>ш</u>		Marty Jensvold Rob Burchfield	001		martin_r,jensyoid@odpt.state.or.us										Sleve Rich	Queens Terffle Managemen
	ID		Terry Little	DOT	(208) 387-6141	tlittle@echd.ads.id.us	ves	SR				20-Apr	phone			oleve Alen	Transa Italite waisskeine
linois	EL.		Rick Meyers	DOT	(217) 782-2575	meyersrs@nt.dol.state.il.us											DOT
	<u>n</u>		Lawrence W. Gregg	DOT	(217) 782-7414	gregglw@nt.dot.stale.il.us									,		DOT
diana	UN		NISRY KANA	DOI	(/65) 494-9310	hisari@ecn.purdue.edu						Na			Bower Daw		Univ. of Purdue
	KS		Arroa Bartlett	referred by DOT	(785) 832-3153	nbartlett/aci.lawrence.ks.us				•••••••••	<u>^</u> -				TROTALS LOON	Thomas Dow	MPO
	KS		David Warm	referred by DOT	(816) 474-4240	dwassn@marc.org										Thomas Dow	MPO
	KS		Jamsheed Mehta	referred by DOT	(316) 268-4561	mehta j@ci.wichita.ka.us										Thomas Dow	MPO
	<u>KS</u>		John Dugan Kan Donaldson	referred by DOT	(785) 295-3728	idugan@lopeka.org	1/80					No				Thomas Dow Tadd Giedlen	MPO
	KS		Linda Fiazer	referred by DOT	(785) 832-3153	llinger@ci.lawrence.ks.us										Thomas Dow	MPO
	KS		Linda Voss	DOT	(785) 296-3618	voss@ksdoLarg	tss (X	No					DOT
	KS		Marvin Krout	referred by DOT	(316) 268-4561	krout_m@ci.wichita.ks.ua										Thomas Dow	MPO
	<u>KS</u>		Mell Henderson	referred by DOT	(816) 474-4240	mellfi@masc.org]				Thomas Dow	MPO
	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	Todd Girdler	referred by DOT	(785) 295-3779	tairdler@tooeka.org	Vet	·			<u>x</u>	No			Ken Donatdaan	Thomas Dow	MPO
entucky	103 101		Simon Cornett	DOT	(502) 564-3020	scorneti/@mail.kytc.state.ky.us,									PRINT OF STREET, STREE	Greeg Witt	04.9
	KY		Duane Thomas	DOT	502-564-3020	dthomas@meil.kytc.state.ky.us	yes				X	No					
	KY.		Gregg Will	DOT	(502) 564-7183	gwitt@mail.kytc.state.ky.us	yes				<u>x</u>	No			Simon Cornett		KYTC
	<u></u>		Pat Johnson Ron Marrington	referred by DOT	502-574-3111											Duate Thomas	Louisville City Engineer
antiziuo	N		con mennagion	DOT	(225) 935-0103	pallain@dotdmail.dotd.state.la.us										Comin (Holing	Coungion City Engineer
	M		Amle Soolman		<u></u>	amle@ctps.org											·····
	M/		Eli Pagitons	internet search		efip@clps.org											Public Safely
				and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second													· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

,

•

n e substantistic entre de la servici per a conservici entre de la servici antista entre entre entre entre entre

Page 1 of 3

na se estas en la seconda en la seconda de la seconda en la seconda de la seconda de la seconda de la seconda e

entra de la contra de Maxima de Contra de

Contraction contraction and a second

STATE	STATE	NAME	SOURCE	PHONE	EMAIL	Asswered	1 to 2 way	Forting	Beth	No Iafo	Follow Up	Type of follow-up	-Stain-Marine Stain-States	Forwarded to	Suggested by	Agentry/Posti
1998 Avenue Artista de la	MA	Lauten Preston	internet scarch	C IN CONTRACTOR OF A CARD AND A CARD A CA	(preston@cl.cambridge ma.us	- A AREA IN THE REAL PROPERTY	1998 1997 1993 AU	Structure and	1990 BLOCK	CONTRACTOR OF THE	1.5 25 24 24 24 19 19 19 19 10	A REAL COST OF A SECTION		and a second second second as a second	Contraction of the State of the	Consideration of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second
	MA	Susanne Rasmussen			srasmussen@cl.cambridge.ma.us										1	
Maryland	MD	Manu Shah	DOT	(410) 787-5825	mshah/@sha.state.md.us									Bob French		
	<u>MD</u>	Bob French	DOT		Bfrench@sha.state.md.us	yes				<u> </u>	No	ļ				
		Limberly TRAN	DOT		Diynedi (@mdol.state.md.us	yes	·	<u> </u>		X Y	N0 No	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	Manu Shah	MUDOT
	MD	Ron Linns	DOT	(410) 787-4017	elinos@shi.stale.md.us	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>									f	
	MD	Thomas Hicks	internet search		thicks@sha.state.md.us				[]					·	Carlton Robinson	
Maine	ME	Rabert Baker	DOT	(207) 287-3134	robert.baker@state.me.us											
Michigan	MI	Robert Briere	MDOT	(616) 337-3920	brieren@mdpt.state.mi.us											DOT
	<u>M</u>	Dovid Berridge	referred by MDOT	(517)773-7971 wrong	N.C	yea	<u>x</u>	<u> </u>				l			Paul Ajegba	City of Lansing I
	<u>MI</u>	Long Majurrah	releved by MDOI	1211113-7911	disaments and basing mine	<u>yes</u>	Sr				25-Apr	phone			Join Sulter	City of ML PL
	M	Lichn Saller	MOOT	(5)2)754-0878	Salleri@mdnt.state mi us			<u> </u>							<u></u>	DOT
	м	Jon Slart	referred by MDOT	(616) 337-8533 wrong #							[t		t	Robert Briene	City of Kalar
	МІ	Ken Feldt	referred by MDOT	(517) 463-8346	kfeldt@ci.alma.mi.us	1			<u> </u>						John Seller	City of Al
	M	Kenneth Tiffany	referred by MDOT	(517) 780-7870	tiffanyk@mdot.state.mj.us	yes	SG				20-Apr	phone			Paul Ajegba	DOT
	м	Max Pheres	referred by MDOT	(616) 966-3338	MVPhares@ci.battle-creek.mi.us	yes		L	BP		20-Apr	phone			Robert Briero	City of Battle
	MI	Paul Ajegha	MDOT	(517) 780-7500	Ajegba?(@mdot.state.m).us										P	DOT
disperals	M	Warren Keninado	DOT	(217) 788-4023	Loten Hill@dot state ma la	Ver				Y	No	}		John Marzka	Trant Ajegoa	City al Jackson
71801030tu	MN	Daniel Honnan	DOT	(651) 582-1063	Design and a state of the state	1						t		Joint Discov	<u>†</u>	
	MN ·	John Anderson	DOT	(651) 284-3456	on anderson@dot.state.mn.us	yes				X	No					DOT
	MN	John Maczko	DOT	·	john.maczko.@sipaul.gov	yes .	S R				13-Apr	ensil			Loren Hill	
	MN	Mike Weiss	DOT	(651) 284-3440	mike.wciss@dot.state.mn.us	yes				X	No			<u> </u>		
	MN	Paul Stein	DOT	(651)-286-9973	paul.stine(2)doi.state.mn.us									Į		ļ
Pt. Jadasł	MN	Tom Campbell	internet search		tom.campbell@dot.stale.mn.us	yes				X	No	[·	<u> </u>	City of Ind
VIERIZZICU	MS	Bob Mahry	DOT		hundry@udet_stele_ms_us	y <u>y s</u>		PP			25-Apr	email	remonded	Eddie Robinson		
	MS	Eddie Robinson	DOT		erobinson@mdot_state.ms.us	1									f	DOT
	MS	Wayne Parrish	DOT	(601) 359-7707	wparrish@mdoi.state.ms.us	1								Bob Mabry	· · · ·	DOT
iontana	MT	Al Goke	DOT		agoic@stale.mt.us	yes				x	No			Don Dusek		DOT
	MT	Don Dusek	DOT	(406) 444-6217	ddusek@siate.ml.us										Al Goke	
	MT	Duane Williams	DOT		duwilliams@state.mi.us	y⇔			<u> </u>	X	<u>No</u>	ļ		Don <u>Dusck</u>	<u> </u>	DOT
forth Carolina	NC	John H. Grant	DOT		grank@dol.state.nc.us				DD	·····	12 477		·····			001
	NC	Gan/ Faulkner	001		nawyenegobic.coc.state.nc.us	<u>yes</u>			<u> </u>	·····	13-7-94	Cillan		·····	A D (Topy) Wyett	
	NC	Jimmy Lynch	DOT	(919) 733-3915	ilvnch@dot.state.nc.us	i									1 CD. (10)) 11) 64	DOT
forth Dakoia	ND	Joel Cranford	DOT	(701) 328-4397	ajunder@state.nd.us	i									[
	ND	Al Covlin	DOT	(701) 328-4398	acovlin@state.nd.us	1							[
(ebraska	NE	Bob Grant	DOT	(402) 479-4645	bgrant@dor.slate.ne.us											DOR
	NE	Randy Peters	DOT	(402) 479-4594	Rnndy Peters@dor.state.ne.us											por
lew Hampshire	NH NH	Lyle Knowiton	DOT	[603] 27]-229	Iknewitopided.state.nb.us						``					DOL
Turn fastrate	NI	W. Lampen	DOT		webmatter/denm dat elste ni ve	yes				^	- 140					бот
tew Jetsej	NI	los Monte	DOT		Imote@csm dot state # Us	Ner.				- <u>v</u>	No			Sist.		DOT
	NI	reol name unknown	DOT		correspondenceunit@xiol.state.ni.us	<u> </u>								Joe Moore		DOT
New Mexico	NM	James Davis	DOT	(505) 277-3305	iwdavis@uom.edu											
	NM	Diane CDeBaca	DOT	(505) 827-5189	dianecebaca@nmshtd.state.nm.us											
	NM	Elizer Pena	DOT	(505) 827-5529	e.pen#@nmshtd.nm.us											
Vevada	NV	Kelly Arrig	DOT	(775) 888-7468	konvig@dol.state.nv.us											·
	<u>VV</u>	Frederick M. Drocs	DOT	(775) 888-7490	(droes@dot.stale.av.us	Į								Co. Andels M. Donne	Mike Lawson	1001
1	NY NY	Mike Lawson	DUT	(775) 858-7943	mia/vson/20dot.state.nv.us	<u> </u>					No			FIEDERICK M. LITCES		DOI DOI
NEW YOR	NY NY	Bachera Abrahamer	DOT		BABRAHAMER/Rev dot state ny us	<u>yes</u>					No			2011 2/107		DOT
	NY	Jen Bray	TOG		jsbray@gw.dot.state.ny.ua										Sandra Rosner	
Dhio	OH	Arthur Garrell	DOT	(614) 644-8159	sgarreti@dot_state.oh.us	1										DOT
)ktahome	ок	Ginger Miller	DOT	(405) 522-0985	gmillen@odot.org	yes				<u> </u>	No			Urban Tran. Plan, Dept.	ļ	DOT
Dregon	OR	Steven.L.Reed	DOT		Steven.L.REED/Bodoi.state.or.us											DOT
	OR	Crystal Aikins	internel search		CAC@trans.ci.portiand.or.us	}								C	Distant West	
		Michael A. Coleman	informet securit		COLEMAN@trans.ci.portland.or.pa					×				Settloor a preserver	Idenand Wood	
	OR	Paul M. Davis	DOT		Paul M.DA VIS/@odot.state.or.us	<u> </u>										DOT
	OR	Rich Newlands	internet search		RICHN@trans.ci.port[and.or.us	Yes	SR				13-Apr	email			1	
	OR	Richard M. Wood	DOT	(503)986+3589	Richard, M.WOOD (20 dot.state.or.us	y es	SP				25-Apr	email	responded			1
	OR	Richard T. Heinemann	DOT	(503)986-3611	Richard T.HEINEMANN@odot.state.or.us	yea		PP			25-Apr	cmail	responded			DOT
	OR	Reb Burchfield	E con		burentesysteng.cl.portland.or.us	 		L					I	Main antonn & Wa-1	Dishard Weed	DOT
	OR	Samuel A Johnston	DOT		Samuel A.JUHNSTON@odol.state.or.us	yes			h	<u> </u>	No			rscindmann & wood	Incentra Wood	100
chode Island	<u>KI</u>	Parker	001		cipara ciganoli Sinternitis	·									t	
South Compliant	50	NGATA TANK IN	DAUL 1		REPARTED AND A STORP SELSA	N 105		- FF								
outh Carolina	SC SC	Riddle, Joey D David Brewer	DOI		trafengri@columbiasc.net	<u> </u>			<u> </u>							

i kana ayoo Lyf

ante des port. Secondados

Contraction of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second s

ويتيني ميرين ميرين (1 - 4 - 1 - 4 - 4 المريد ميرين

Page 2 of 3

• • 0.40

Date Printed	5/31/00	Oate Updated	4/25/00													
Contraction of the	distantia di serie	Advertise of the second	Sector Sector		and a dealer and an end of the second		Repo	sie to Surve	$\mathbf{P} \in \mathcal{X}$	146-04-00	No.	Type of		14-15-00-02 - 24-02 - 14		August and a second second
SIAIR	SIVIE .	NAME	SURVECE	PROME	- EMAIL	Astront	1.6.2	Pirting	Both	No Info	NOCION NO	Cilon-up		Perserved to	· Singscubed by	Agency/Position
126426372306637213	CONCERNED OF MILLION	10000000000000000000000000000000000000	HERE HERE AND ADDRESS OF ADDRES ADDRESS OF ADDRESS br>ADDRESS OF ADDRESS OF ADDR	102260280002800000	CARACITER STRATEGY AND A STRATEGY AND A STRATEGY AND	STATISTICS.	PRESSOR	es se fere de s	0.8629.855	ALCONCERS.	Charles Policy	1001001-001	_		CONTRACTOR OF A	PROFESSION AND A DESCRIPTION OF A DESCRI
	SC	John Adier	DOI	1(665) 7/3-3704	John Adlerigistate solus		<u> </u>						······			
	SC	Islanicy Sheniy	internet search		ShearySEigeool.state.sc.us		<u> </u>	L	.						<u>}</u>	DOT
Tennessee		David Lolter	001	1(615) 741-0968	diollar/opmail.state.in.us		ļ		·				··			
lexes		Den tays	001	(512) 424-2298	Accident.records/artyaps.state.cc.us	yes			<u> </u>	×	NO					Department of Public Safety
i		David G. Genero,	5.07	((10) 10((10)	davia.gerarogica.ausun.ox.us		<u> </u>	· · ·	ļ		·					
<u> </u>	12	Contract Granam		(312) 480-3100	IngranamigraoLstate.tv.us			+			l					DOT
	01	Mack Christiensen	DOI	(801) 903-4264	mennistandolisille, di, di				I				*			Dor
·		Tantati Kasa	bor	(PDI) 046 4117	wsaanpo,mergisquisture.uc.ue	<u>ງສ</u>	-		I	· · ^	210				ļ	<u></u>
h	11	Fundary Rueser	DOI	1004) 786 4567			<u>+</u>		I				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
Virginis	YA NA	reas name unknown	1001	(804) /85-4567	KTBY_TTM:@YOOLSIALE.VA.US		ł		ł							DOT
	1 <u>YA</u>	Elona Kastengoler	internet search		Kasicinoler jogydol.stale.va.iis		}		ł							DOI
Vermont	Vi	Amy Gambic	DO1	(802) 828-2685	amy.gambledastate.vi.us		ļ	ļ	ļ							
l <u></u>		Mark Ljungvals	1001		MIJUNGVALL@STATE.VI.US			↓	<u> </u>							
Washington	WA	Kas Denneu	1001	<u> </u>	BENNETRØWSDOT.WA.GOV			ļ		~						DOT
[WA.	Gelt Bender	[<u> </u>	(jeff, bender (2)ci, seattle, wa. us	yes .	[N 0	((l
	WA	Nocile Million	internet search		noelle.million/aci.sestile.wa.us		ļ									DOT
	WA	Rick Motvids	DOT	(360) 765-7988	MowldsR@WSDOT.WA.GOV	yes.				X	No					DOT
L	WA.	Wayne Wentz	Internet search		Wwentz@ci.everett.wa.us				I							
Wisconsin	Wi	Mark Morrison	DOT	(608) 266-1675	mark.morrison@dot.state.wi.us	yes.				. ×	No			Peter Rusch		DOT
	WI	Mark Truby	DOT	(608) 266-9349	mark truby@doi.state.wi.us		ļ								Richard Lange	DOT
	WI	Peter Rusch	DOT		peter.rusch@dot.state.wi.us				ļ				~		Mark Morrison	DOT
	wi wi	Richard Lange	DOT		richard.lange@dot.state.wi.us	<u>yes</u>		PPO			25-Apr	emai)		Mark Truby		DOT
West Virginia	WY	Ray Lewis	TOG	(304) 558-8912	rlewis@dot.stste.wr.us	<u> </u>			BP		20-Apr	phone			·	DOT
Wyoming	WY	Kevin Messman	DOT	(307) 777-3944	kmessman@state.wy.us				[DOT
	xx unknown	Andrew O'Brien	internet search		andyob@ibm.nct											
	xx unknown	Angela M. Christo	internel search		angela.m.christo@parsons.com										1	
	xx unknown	Brenda C. Kragh	internet search		brenda cregh@fhwa.doi.gov	yes				x	No			Douwes, Stills, Sillian, B	erman	FHWA
	xx unknown	Carlton C. Robinson	internet search		ccarlton@erols.com	yes .	L			X	No					
	XX urknown	Christopher Douwes	Internet search	(202) 366-5013	christopher.douwes@fhwa.dot.gov		[Brenda Kraugh	
	xx unknown	Crawford Jencks	internet search		CJeneks@nas.edu	yes				X	No			Derr, Maher	Jon Williams	TRB contact
	NX URKBOWR	Oate L. Picha	internet senreh		d-picha@tamu.edu											l
	хх шихлочи	Davey Warren	internet search		Davey.Warren@fhwa.dot.gov				·							FHWA
	xx unknown	Ed Cline	internet search	[{562] 908-6244		yes			L	x	No					l
	XX unknown	Frederick C. Dock	internet search		frederick.dock@parsons.com											
	XX WIKNOWA	George E. Frangos	internet search		trancegci, nr. mo. us	L										
	xx unknown	Hernry Monie	internet search	<u> </u>	hmaeng@eattnink.det											
	xx unknown	John VV. Van Winkle	internet search		vanwinkiegoal cos.xt2.th.us											
	XX UNKNOWN	Jon Williams	internet search	(202) 334-2938	JWilliam(ghos.edu	yes	<u>SR</u>				14-Apr	cinta) J			Brenda Kreugh	TRB contact
	XX UNKNOWTI	Lauren Sturez	internet search		LSUBJEZICI WILLDAN.com	yes					NO			Ed Cline		
	SX BUGROWD	Lisa Finlana	internet search	(202) 554-8050 ext 116							waiting				Brenda Kraugh	
	sos unknown	Michael J. Workosky	internet search		mjworkosky@mjwells.com		ļ			<u>x</u>	No					·
	xx unknown	Paul Mackey	unternet search		ruesecuregoc.clc.net				L				~~			
	XX Unknown	Ray Der	internet search		RDerranas.edu					X	No				Crawford Jencks	TRB contact
- <u></u>	NX Unknown	Reid H. EWing	internel search	 	r.ewing@ren/snopeers.com		ļ					÷		·		
L	XX WARDOWR	Hose Marie Zigenius	internet search	ļ	eutsgevansville.net		ļ				ļ		*****			j
	XX URKNOWR	Seppo Sillan	unternel search		seppo_siilan(@lhvs.dol.gov										Brenda Kraugh	
	xx unknown	Stephen Maher	internet search		SMaher(@nas.edu	ycs 🛛				X	No.				Crawford Jencks	TRB contact
	XX unknown	Wayne Berman	internel search		berman.wayne@lnwa.dol.gov										Brenda Kraugh	Į
	XX unknown	Wendell Stills	internet search		stills, wendel(allnvs.dol.gov						·				Brenda Kraugh	
				1	1				I			8				

.

Summary tatal contacts = 192

.

This person has done PP = parking projects SP = 1 to 2 projects BP = Both projects

Page 3 of 3

total responses to survey (incl follow-up) = 72

1

5

_
APPENDIX 7

میں میں ایروں ان ان میں ایروں ملک ان میں ان ان

Practitioner E-Mail Survey Instrument

appendix 7 page 7-1 We are working with the Michigan Department of Transportation on two topics: A) the conversion of one-way streets to two-way operation; and B) allowing parking where none had been allowed) on through and/or state-numbered streets and roads. You have been identified as an individual in your organization who might be aware of your organization's views/policies on these issues OR who could forward this inquiry to someone who is.

Basically, we are looking for experiences and/or studies that articulate the impacts of such conversions. If your experiences have been with the "reverse" of these actions (e.g., the impacts of converting from two-way to one-way operation), that would be useful as well. In this regard, your completion of the short survey below would be greatly appreciated.

If you forward this inquiry to someone else, please let us know who received it so that we can follow up with them.

Inquiry was forwarded to (please include e-mail address):

A. ONE-WAY TO TWO-WAY STREET CONVERSIONS

1. Has your organization done any projects that involved changing one-way operations to two-way? ____yes ____no

2. Has your organization produced any reports on the impacts of specific one to-two-way conversions or on such conversions in general? ___yes (specific projects) ___yes (general idea) ___no

3. Does your organization have policies, guidelines, or warrants on allowing (or when to do) one-to-two-way conversions? yes (policies) yes (guidelines) no

4. Has your organization done any projects, produced any reports, or have any policies or guidelines on the REVERSE type of conversions (i.e., two-way to one-way conversions)?

___yes (projects) ___yes (reports) ___yes (policies/guidelines) ___no

5. Who is the best person in your organization to contact for more detailed information about getting reports, policies, and generally discussing this topic in more detail?

name	and	title:		
e-mai	1:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
phone	e:		··	

6. Do you know of any other individuals or agencies in your state who have experience with one-to-two-way operation conversions (e.g., a city traffic engineer)?

name and	title:		
e-mail:			
phone:			
city and	state:		

B. CONVERSION TO PERMITTED PARKING ON STATE-NUMBERED ROUTES WHERE NONE HAD EXISTED

1. Has your organization done any projects that involved changing to permitted parking on state-numbered routes? ____yes ____no

2. Has your organization produced any reports on the impacts of allowing parking on state-numbered routes? yes (specific projects) yes (general idea) no

3. Does your organization have policies or guidelines on describing conditions that warrant permitted parking on state-numbered routes? yes (policies) yes (guidelines) no

4. Has your organization done any projects, produced any reports, or developed any policies or guidelines on the REVERSE type of conversions (i.e., parking removal)?

__yes (projects) __yes (reports) __yes (policies/guidelines) __no

5. Who is the most appropriate person in your organization to contact for more detailed information about getting reports, policies, and generally discussing this topic in more detail?

name	and	title:	 	
e-mai	1:			
phone	e:			

6. Do you know of any other individuals or agencies in your state who have experience with conversions to permitted parking (e.g., a city traffic engineer, parking task force)?

name and	title:	
e-mail:		
phone:		
city and	state:	

Virginia Sisiopiku, Assistant Professor Richard Lyles, Professor Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering Michigan State University East Lansing, Michigan 48824-1226 (USA) telephone: 517-355-2250, 517-355-5107 (messages); FAX: 517-432-1827 e-mail: lyles@egr.msu.edu, sisiopik@egr.msu.edu web: http://www.egr.msu.edu/CEE/

APPENDIX 8

÷İ

1

and the second se

Summary of Responses to E-Mail Survey

SUMMARY OF RESPONSES TO E-MAIL SURVEY

Today's Date May 27, 2000

Last Update May 4, 2000

OTATE	BIANE	AGENCY	ONE-WAY TO TWO-WAY STREET CONVERSION					CONVERSION TO PERMITTED PARKING						
SIAIC		AGENCI	PROJECTS	REPORTS	POLICIES	REVERSE	CONTACT	OTHER	PROJECTS	REPORTS	POLICIES	REVERSE	CONTACT	other
AK	Gary Oliver	AK-DOT	I					YES				1	1	YES
AK	Duane F. Doerflinger	AK-DOT	NO	NO	NO	Y-PR	YES	NO	YES	NO	NO	Y-PR	YES	NO
AL	David Brown	Univ. of AL	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES	NO
СА	Elaine Camia		NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO
CA	Craig Smith		YES	NO	NO	NO	YES							
CA	Raymond E. Davis		NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO
CA	Ed Celine		NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES	NO	NO	NO	Y-PR	NO	YES
СТ	John A. Vivari	CT-DOT	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES	NO
DC	Brenda Kragh	FHWA					YES	YES					YES	YES
DC	Stephan Maher	TRB	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO
FL	Jeffrey Dodge	FL-DOT	YES	NO	NO	NO	YES	YES	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES
FL	Gene O'Dell	FL-DOT						YES						YES
FL	Steve Homan	FL-DOT						YES						YES
FL	Jeffrey Morgan	FL-DOT					YES						YES	
FL	Mike Cornejo	FL-DOT	YES		NO		YES	YES					YES	
GA	Joseph Fletcher	GA-DOT	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO
IA	Tim Crouch	IA-DOT	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES	YES	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES	NO
ID	Terry Little	ID-DOT	YES	NO	NO	Y-R	YES	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO
ID	Lance Johnson	ID-DOT	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO
KS	Carol Folkmann						YES	YES					YES	YES
KS	Linda Voss	KS-DOT	NO	NO	NO	NO								
KY	Duane Thomas	KY-DOT	YES	NO	NO	NO	YES	YES	YES	NO	Y-P	Y-PR	YES	YES
MD	Kimberley Tran	SHA	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO
MD	Bob French	SHA												
MD	Carlton C. Robinson						YES						YES	
MI	Kenneth V. Tiffany	MI-DOT	NO	Y-Gen	Y-G	Y-PR	YES	NO	NO	Y-Gen	Y-G	Y-R	YES	NO
MI	Duane Ellis		YES	NO	NO	NO	YES	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES
MN	John Maczko	MN-DOT	YES	Y-SP	NO	NO	YES	YES	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES	NO

STATE	NAME	AGENCY	ONE-WAY TO TWO-WAY STREET CONVERSION						CONVERSION TO PERMITTED PARKING					
			PROJECTS	REPORTS	POLICIES	REVERSE	CONTACT	OTHER	PROJECTS	REPORTS	POLICIES	REVERSE	CONTACT	OTHER
MN	Mike Weiss	MN-DOT						YES			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			YES
MN	Tom Campbell	MN-DOT					YES			Y-R			YES	
MS	Dan Gaillet		NO	NO	NO	NO	YES	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES	YES
NC	Anthony D. Wyatt	NC-DOT	YES	Y-SP	Y-G	Y-R	YES	NO	YES	NO	Y-P	Y-PR	YES	NO
NH	Bill Lambert	NH-DOT	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	YES
NJ	Reid	Rutgers					YES						YES	
NY	Sandra Rosner	NY-DOT					YES						YES	
OK	Ginger Miller	OK-DOT	l					YES						YES
OR	Rich Newlands		YES	Y-SP	NO	NO	YES	NO						
OR	Samuel A. Johnston	OR-DOT												
OR	Michael A. Coleman		NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO					-	
OR	Richard M. Wood	OR-DOT	YES				YES				•		YES	
SC	Joey D Riddle	SC-DOT	NO	NO	NO	Y-PG	YES	NO	YES	NO	NO	NO	YES	NO
υτ	Tammy Kaeser	UT-DOT					YES						YES	
VT	Amy L. Gamble	VT-DOT							NO	NO			YES	YES
WA	Noelle Million							YES						YES
WA	Jeff Bender						YES						YES	

SUMMARY OF COUNTS

.

.

1 - 175 12 - 12 - 12 - ANT SOUT

	ONE-WAY TO TWO-WAY STREET CONVERSION						CONVERSION TO PERMITTED PARKING					
	PROJECTS	REPORTS	POLICIES	REVERSE	CONTACT	OTHER	PROJECTS	REPORTS	POLICIES	REVERSE	CONTACT	OTHER
YES	10	0	0	0	27	15	4	0	0	0	22	15
NO	17	21	24	20	8	17	18	21	18	16	11	15
Y-SP: Yes (Specific Projects)	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Y-Gen:Yes (General Idea)	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Y-P: Yes (Policies)	0	0	0 .	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0
Y-PG: Yes(Policies/ Guidelines)	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Y-PR: Yes (Projects)	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	0
Y-R: Yes (Reports)	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	0
Y-G: Yes (Guidelines)	0	0	2	Ó	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0
NO RESPONSE	18	20	19	20	10	13	23	22	24	24	12	15

ing 1997) Statistics